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NOTICE is hereby given that the 8th Annual General 
MeeƟng of the Members of Emami Infrastructure Limited 
will be held at Emami Tower, 687 Anandapur, E.M. Bypass, 
Kolkata - 700 107 on Thursday, 29th September, 2016 at 
12.00 Noon to transact the following businesses :

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial 
Statements (including Consolidated Financial 
Statements) of the Company for the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2016 together with the Reports of 
the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Basant Kumar 
Parakh (DIN: 00103176), who reƟres by rotaƟon and 
being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment.

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modificaƟon(s), the following resoluƟon as an Ordinary 
ResoluƟon: 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder 
and pursuant to the resoluƟon passed by the Members 
at the 6th Annual General MeeƟng held on 5th 
September 2014 and on recommendaƟon of Audit 
CommiƩee and Board of Directors, the appointment 
of M/s. S. K. Agrawal & Co., Chartered Accountants 
(RegistraƟon No. 306033E) as Statutory Auditors of 
the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of this 
Annual General MeeƟng unƟl the conclusion of next 
Annual General MeeƟng of the Company, be and is 
hereby raƟfied at a remuneraƟon to be decided by the 
Board of Directors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESSES

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modificaƟon(s), the following resoluƟon as an Ordinary 
ResoluƟon:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
SecƟons 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and any other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“Act”) and Companies (Appointment and QualificaƟon 
of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modificaƟon(s) or re-enactment thereof for the Ɵme 
being in force) and RegulaƟon 17 & 25 of the SEBI (LisƟng 
ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015, Mr. Debasish Bhaumik (DIN: 06933306), who was 

appointed as an AddiƟonal Director of the Company 
under SecƟon 161 of the Act w.e.f. 22nd July 2016 by 
the Board of Directors to hold office up to the date of 
this Annual General MeeƟng and in respect of whom 
the Company has received a noƟce in wriƟng under 
SecƟon 160 of the Act, from a member proposing his 
candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby 
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company 
to hold office for a term of 5 years w.e.f. 22nd July, 2016 
and whose office shall not be liable to determinaƟon 
by reƟrement of Directors by rotaƟon.”

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modificaƟon(s), the following resoluƟon as a Special 
ResoluƟon:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
SecƟons 149, 152 and any other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), Mr. Rajesh Bansal 
(DIN 00645035), who was appointed as an AddiƟonal 
Director of the Company under SecƟon 161 of the 
Act with effect from 22nd July 2016 by the Board of 
Directors to hold office up to the date of this Annual 
General MeeƟng and in respect of whom the Company 
has received a noƟce in wriƟng under SecƟon 160 of 
the Act, from a member proposing his candidature for 
the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a 
Director of the Company liable to reƟre by rotaƟon.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to SecƟons 196, 
197, 198 and 203 read with Schedule V and all other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder, the recommendaƟons of NominaƟon 
& RemuneraƟon CommiƩee and the Board of Directors, 
the consent of the members of the Company be and 
is hereby accorded to the appointment of Mr. Rajesh 
Bansal (DIN 00645035) as a Whole-Ɵme Director of 
the Company with effect from 22nd July, 2016 for a 
term expiring on 9th August, 2018, on the terms and 
condiƟons as set out in the Explanatory Statement 
annexed to this NoƟce convening the meeƟng and as 
enumerated in the Agreement dated 22nd July, 2016, 
a copy whereof, has been submiƩed to this meeƟng, 
which Agreement is also hereby approved, with 
liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinaŌer referred 
to as the “Board” which term shall be deemed to 
include the NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon CommiƩee 
consƟtuted by the Board) to alter and vary the terms 
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& condiƟons of the said appointment and / or the 
remuneraƟon, subject to the same not exceeding the 
limits specified in Schedule V to the Act, including any 
statutory modificaƟon or re-enactment thereof for the 
Ɵme being in force or as may hereaŌer be made by the 
Central Government in that behalf from Ɵme to Ɵme, 
or any amendments thereto.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in pursuance of the 
provisions of SecƟon 197(3) and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Act, and the Rules framed 
thereunder, Mr. Rajesh Bansal, Whole Time Director 
of the Company, may be paid the above menƟoned 
remuneraƟon as minimum remuneraƟon in the event 
of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial 
year during his term of office as Whole-Ɵme Director, 
in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V to the 
Act.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving 
effect to the above, the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things, as it 
may in its absolute discreƟon deem necessary, proper 
or desirable and to seƩle any quesƟon, difficulty or 
doubt that may arise in the said regard.”

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modificaƟon(s), the following resoluƟon as a Special 
ResoluƟon:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SecƟons 
149, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), Mr. Sanjay Choudhary 
(DIN 00669470), who was appointed as an AddiƟonal 
Director of the Company under SecƟon 161 of the 
Act with effect from 22nd July 2016 by the Board of 
Directors to hold office up to the date of this Annual 
General MeeƟng and in respect of whom the Company 
has received a noƟce in wriƟng under SecƟon 160 of 
the Act, from a member proposing his candidature for 
the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a 
Director of the Company liable to reƟre by rotaƟon.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to SecƟons 
196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V and all other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder, the recommendaƟons of NominaƟon 
& RemuneraƟon CommiƩee and the Board of Directors, 
the consent of the members of the Company be and 
is hereby accorded to the appointment of Mr. Sanjay 
Choudhary (DIN 00669470) as a Whole-Ɵme Director 
of the Company with effect from 22nd July, 2016 for a 
term expiring on 31st March 2018, on the terms and 

condiƟons as set out in the Explanatory Statement 
annexed to this NoƟce convening the meeƟng and as 
enumerated in the Agreement dated 22nd July, 2016, 
a copy whereof, has been submiƩed to this meeƟng, 
which Agreement is also hereby approved, with 
liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinaŌer referred 
to as the “Board” which term shall be deemed to 
include the NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon CommiƩee 
consƟtuted by the Board) to alter and vary the terms 
& condiƟons of the said appointment and / or the 
remuneraƟon, subject to the same not exceeding the 
limits specified in Schedule V to the Act, including any 
statutory modificaƟon or re-enactment thereof for the 
Ɵme being in force or as may hereaŌer be made by the 
Central Government in that behalf from Ɵme to Ɵme, 
or any amendments thereto.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in pursuance of the 
provisions of SecƟon 197(3) and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Act, and the Rules framed 
thereunder Mr. Sanjay Choudhary, Whole Time Director 
of the Company, may be paid the above menƟoned 
remuneraƟon as minimum remuneraƟon in the event 
of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial 
year during his term of office as Whole-Ɵme Director, 
in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V to the 
Act.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving 
effect to the above, the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things, as it 
may in its absolute discreƟon deem necessary, proper 
or desirable and to seƩle any quesƟon, difficulty or 
doubt that may arise in the said regard.”

7. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modificaƟon(s), the following resoluƟon as a Special 
ResoluƟon:

 “RESOLVED THAT in parƟal modificaƟon of the 
resoluƟon passed by the shareholders in the Annual 
General MeeƟngs held on 21st September 2012, 
12th August 2013 and 5th September, 2014 and 
pursuant to the provisions of the SecƟons 196, 197 
and 203 read with Schedule V and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) 
and the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modificaƟon(s) or re-enactment thereof, 
for the Ɵme being in force), the consent of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded for payment of 
such remuneraƟon to Mr. Girija Kumar Choudhary 
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(DIN: 00821762) as a Whole Time Director & CFO of 
the Company as set out in the Explanatory Statement 
annexed to the NoƟce convening the meeƟng, and as 
enumerated in the Supplementary Agreement dated 
22nd July, 2016, a copy whereof, has been submiƩed to 
this meeƟng, which Agreement is also hereby approved, 
with liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinaŌer 
referred to as the “Board” which term shall be deemed 
to include the NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon CommiƩee 
consƟtuted by the Board) to alter and vary the terms 
& condiƟons of the said appointment and / or the 
remuneraƟon, subject to the same not exceeding the 
limits specified in Schedule V to the Act, including any 
statutory modificaƟon or re-enactment thereof for the 
Ɵme being in force or as may hereaŌer be made by the 
Central Government in that behalf from Ɵme to Ɵme, 
or any amendments thereto.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in pursuance of the 
provisions of SecƟon 197(3) and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Act, and the Rules framed 
thereunder Mr. Girija Kumar Choudhary, Whole Time 
Director & CFO of the Company, may be paid the above 
menƟoned remuneraƟon as minimum remuneraƟon in 
the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any 
financial year during his term of office as Whole-Ɵme 
Director & CFO, in accordance with the provisions of 
Schedule V to the Act.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving 
effect to the above, the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things, as it 
may in its absolute discreƟon deem necessary, proper 
or desirable and to seƩle any quesƟon, difficulty or 
doubt that may arise in the said regard.”

8. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modificaƟon(s), the following resoluƟon as an Ordinary 
ResoluƟon:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SecƟons 
13, 61, 64 and other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013, (including any statutory 
modificaƟon or re-enactment thereof for the Ɵme 
being in force) and in accordance with the provisions 
of the Memorandum and ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of 
the Company, 20,50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- 
each in the Authorised Share Capital of the Company, 
transferred on amalgamaƟon of Emami Realty Limited 
and Emami Rainbow Niketan Private Limited (since 
amalgamated with the Company), be and are hereby 
sub-divided into 1,02,50,000 Equity Shares of the 

face value of Rs. 2/- each and accordingly, the exisƟng 
Clause V of the Memorandum of AssociaƟon of the 
Company be and is hereby amended by subsƟtuƟon 
thereof by the following clause:

 V.  The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is 
Rs. 7,05,00,000/- (Rupees Seven Crore Five Lakhs 
only) divided into 3,52,50,000 (Three Crores FiŌy 
Two Lakhs FiŌy Thousand only) Equity Shares of 
Rs. 2/- (Rupees Two only) each with such rights, 
privileges and condiƟons aƩaching power to 
increase and reduce the capital of the Company 
and to divide or sub-divide the shares in capital for 
the Ɵme being into several classes and to aƩach 
thereto respecƟvely such preferenƟal, qualified or 
special rights, privileges or condiƟons as may be 
determined by or in accordance with the ArƟcles 
of the Company for the Ɵme being and to modify 
or abrogate of any such rights, privileges or 
condiƟons in such manner as may be permiƩed by 
the act, or provided by the ArƟcles of AssociaƟon 
for the Ɵme being.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving 
effect to the above, the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things, as it 
may in its absolute discreƟon deem necessary, proper 
or desirable and to seƩle any quesƟon, difficulty or 
doubt that may arise in the said regard.”

9. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modificaƟon(s), the following resoluƟon as a Special 
ResoluƟon:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 
180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and in supersession of the 
resoluƟon passed by the members at the Annual 
General MeeƟng held on 5th September 2014 in this 
regard, the consent of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company 
(hereinaŌer referred to as the “Board” which term 
shall include any commiƩee thereof for the Ɵme being 
exercising the powers conferred on the Board by this 
ResoluƟon) for borrowing from Ɵme to Ɵme, any sum 
or sums of monies in any form, from one or more 
bodies corporate, banks, financial insƟtuƟons, or from 
other enƟty by way of advances, loans, debentures/
bonds or any other securiƟy(ies) or otherwise and 
whether secured or unsecured, which together with the 
monies already borrowed by the Company (apart from 
temporary loans obtained or to be obtained from the 
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Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business), 
may exceed the aggregate of the paid-up capital of the 
Company and its free reserves, that is to say, reserves 
not set apart for any specific purpose, provided that 
the total outstanding amount so borrowed shall not, 
at any Ɵme, exceed the limit of ` 4000 Crores and 
that borrowings made by the Company and/or Emami 
Realty Limited (since amalgamated with the Company), 
in any, under the authority of the Board and all acts, 
deeds and things done in this regard, be and are hereby 
raƟfied, approved and confirmed. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the “Board” be and is 
hereby authorized and empowered to arrange or seƩle 
the terms and condiƟons on which all such monies 
are to be borrowed from Ɵme to Ɵme as to interest, 
repayment, security or otherwise howsoever as it may 
think fit and to do all such acts, deeds and things as 
they may deem necessary to give effect to the above 
resoluƟon and/or to execute all such documents, 
instruments and wriƟngs as may be required.”

10. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modificaƟon(s), the following resoluƟon as a Special 
ResoluƟon:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to SecƟons 180(1)(a) and 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013, consent of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to the Board of Directors (hereinaŌer 
referred to as the “Board”, which term shall include any 
CommiƩee consƟtuted by the Board or any person(s) 
authorized by the Board to exercise the powers 
conferred on the Board by this ResoluƟon) to mortgage 
and/or create charge, in such form and manner and 
with such ranking as to priority and for such Ɵme and 
on such terms as the Board may determine, on the 
movable and / or immovable assets and properƟes of 
the Company, wherever situate, present and future, 
in favour of any person including, but not limited to, 
financial / investment insƟtuƟon(s), bank(s), corporate 
body(ies), etc. to secure the loans, borrowings, 
debentures, and / or working capital faciliƟes and 
other credit faciliƟes availed / to be availed by the 
Company as the Board deem fit, subject to the limits 
approved under secƟon 180(1)(c) of the Act from Ɵme 
to Ɵme and that charges created on the movable and 
immovable properƟes of the Company and/or Emami 
Realty Limited (since amalgamated with the Company), 
if any, and agreements, deeds, papers etc. executed for 
the purpose, under the authority of the Board and all 
acts, deeds and things done in this regard, be and are 

hereby raƟfied, approved and confirmed.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving 
effect to the above, the Board be and is hereby 
authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things and 
deal with all such maƩers and take all such steps as 
may be necessary and to sign and execute any deeds/ 
documents/ undertakings/ agreements/ papers/ 
wriƟngs as may be required in this regard and to seƩle 
any quesƟon, difficulty or doubt that may arise in this 
regard and also to delegate all or any of the above 
powers to any other person.”

11. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modificaƟon(s), the following resoluƟon as an Ordinary 
ResoluƟon:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to SecƟon 188 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, if 
any, read with Rules made thereunder and RegulaƟon 
23 of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 and pursuant to the 
consent of the Audit CommiƩee and Board of Directors 
vide resoluƟons passed in their respecƟve meeƟngs, 
the approval of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to enter into transacƟons with related parƟes 
for the financial year commencing on April 1, 2016 and 
for every financial year thereaŌer, as detailed in table 
forming part of the Explanatory Statement annexed to 
this NoƟce and that the Board of Directors (which term 
shall include any CommiƩee consƟtuted by the Board 
or any person(s) authorized by the Board to exercise 
its power, including the powers conferred by this 
ResoluƟon) be and is hereby authorised to do all such 
acts, deeds and things and take all such steps as may 
be necessary and to sign and execute any documents/  
agreements/ papers/ wriƟngs as may be necessary and 
relevant  for giving effect to this resoluƟon and for the 
maƩers connected therewith or incidental thereto.”

12. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modificaƟon(s), the following resoluƟon as Special 
ResoluƟon:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
SecƟon 42, 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”), (including any statutory modificaƟon(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the Ɵme being in force) read 
with the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) 
Rules, 2014, and the Companies (Prospectus and 
Allotment of SecuriƟes) Rules, 2014 and all other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the relevant provisions of the Memorandum 
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and ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the Company and subject 
to direcƟons and / or regulaƟons issued by SEBI or RBI 
in this regard as may be applicable, the consent of the 
members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of 
Directors of the Company (hereinaŌer referred to as 
“the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any 
CommiƩee which the Board may consƟtute to exercise 
its powers, including the powers conferred by this 
ResoluƟon or any Director as may be approved by the 
Board), to issue/offer/invite for subscripƟon to Secured 
/ Unsecured Redeemable Non-ConverƟble Debentures 
(‘NCDs’) whether listed or unlisted, including but not 
limited to subordinated Debentures, bond, and/or 
other debt securiƟes, etc., on private placement basis, 
in one or more tranches during a period of one year 
from the date of passing of this resoluƟon, to eligible 
person(s), provided the outstanding amount at any 
Ɵme during the period shall not exceed the overall 
borrowing limits of the Company as may be approved 
by the Members from Ɵme to Ɵme, on such terms 
and condiƟons including the price, coupon, premium/
discount, tenor etc., as may be determined by the 
Board. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving 
effect to the above, the Board be and is hereby 
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, maƩers and 
things and to execute all such agreements, documents, 
instruments, applicaƟons etc. as may be required, with 
power to seƩle all quesƟons, difficulƟes or doubts 
that may arise in regard to the aforesaid ResoluƟon as 
it may in its sole discreƟon deem fit and to delegate 
all or any of its powers herein conferred to any of the 
Directors and/or Officers of the Company.”

 By Order of the Board
For Emami Infrastructure Limited

Place : Kolkata Payel Jain
Date : 11th August, 2016 Company Secretary 

NOTES:

1. A member enƟtled to aƩend and vote at the Annual 
General MeeƟng (the “MeeƟng”) is enƟtled to 
appoint a proxy to aƩend and vote on a poll instead 
of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the 
Company. Proxy, to be effecƟve, must be deposited at 
the registered office of the Company not less than 48 
hours before the commencement of the MeeƟng.

 A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members 
not exceeding fiŌy and holding in the aggregate not 

more than ten percent of the total share capital of the 
Company carrying voƟng rights. A member holding 
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the 
Company carrying voƟng rights may appoint a single 
person as proxy and such person shall not act as a 
proxy for any other person or member.

2. Corporate members intending to send their authorized 
representaƟves to aƩend the MeeƟng are requested 
to send to the Company, a cerƟfied copy of Board 
ResoluƟon authorizing their representaƟve to aƩend 
and vote on their behalf at the MeeƟng. 

3. In case of joint holders aƩending the meeƟng, only 
such joint holder who is higher in the order of names 
will be enƟtled to vote.

4. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to SecƟon 102 
of the Companies Act, 2013 in relaƟon to the Special 
Businesses is annexed hereto and forms part of this 
NoƟce.

5. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books 
of the Company shall remain closed from 23rd day 
of September, 2016 to 29th day of September, 2016, 
(both days inclusive).

6. A statement containing details of the Director seeking 
appointment/re-appointment at the MeeƟng as 
required under RegulaƟon 36(3) of the SEBI (LisƟng 
ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015 is annexed.

7. As an austerity measure, copies of the Annual Report 
will not be distributed at the MeeƟng; members are 
requested to bring their copies to the MeeƟng.

8. Members are requested to inƟmate to the Company, 
queries, if any, regarding the audited accounts at least 
ten days before the MeeƟng to enable the Management 
to keep the informaƟon ready at the MeeƟng.

9. Members / Proxies are requested to bring their 
AƩendance Slip sent herewith, duly filled in, for 
aƩending the MeeƟng. 

10. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) 
has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every parƟcipant in securiƟes 
market. Members holding shares in electronic form 
are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to 
their Depository ParƟcipants with whom they are 
maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding 
shares in physical form can submit their PAN details 
to the Company/RTA for registraƟon of transmission/



6 infrastructure limited

transposiƟon, deleƟon of name etc.

11. In support of the “Green IniƟaƟve” measures taken 
by Ministry of Corporate Affairs enabling electronic 
delivery of documents, electronic copy of the Annual 
Report for 2015-16 and NoƟce of the 8th Annual General 
MeeƟng of the Company, interalia, indicaƟng the 
process and manner of e-voƟng along with AƩendance 
Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all such members 
whose email IDs are registered with the Company/
Depository ParƟcipants(s) for communicaƟon purposes 
unless any member has requested for a hard copy of 
the same. For members who have not registered their 
email address, physical copies of the Annual Report 
and NoƟce of the 8th Annual General MeeƟng of the 
Company, interalia, indicaƟng the process and manner 
of e-voƟng along with AƩendance Slip and Proxy Form 
is being sent in the permiƩed mode. Members may 
also note that NoƟce of 8th Annual General MeeƟng 
and Annual Report for 2015-16 will also be available on 
Company’s website at www.emamirealty.com for their 
download.  

12. Members who have not registered their e-mail 
addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail 
address for receiving all communicaƟon including 
Annual Report, NoƟces, Circulars, etc. from the 
Company electronically.

13. In terms of SecƟon 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
AdministraƟon) Rules, 2014 as amended and RegulaƟon 
44 of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015, the Company is 
pleased to provide the facility of remote e-voƟng to 
all members, for which purpose the Company has 
engaged the services of Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited (CDSL). The Board has appointed Mr. 
Manoj Banthia, PracƟcing Company Secretary (ACS No. 
11470, CP No. 7596) as the ScruƟnizer for this purpose.   

14. Unclaimed FracƟonal Share Sale Proceeds amounƟng 
to ` 24,638/- will be due for transfer to the Investor 
EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund on 21st September, 
2017. In respect of the said Proceeds, it will not be 
possible to entertain claims received by the Company / 
RTA aŌer 21st September, 2017. Any member who has 
not claimed his/her FracƟonal Share Sale Proceeds is 
requested to approach the Company / RTA immediately.

15. VoƟng rights will be reckoned on the paid-up value 
of shares registered in the name of the Members as 
on 22nd September, 2016 (cut-off date). Only those 

members whose names are recorded in the Register 
of Members of the Company or in the Register of 
Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as 
on the cut-off date will be enƟtled to cast their votes 
by remote e-voƟng or ballot voƟng at the AGM. A 
person who is not a Member on the cut-off date should 
accordingly treat this NoƟce as for informaƟon purpose 
only.

16. The facility for voƟng through ballot paper will also be 
made available at the AGM and the members aƩending 
the AGM who have not cast their vote through remote 
e-voƟng shall be able to exercise their right at the AGM 
through ballot paper. The members who have already 
cast their vote through remote e-voƟng may aƩend 
AGM but will not be enƟtled to cast their votes again.

The instrucƟons for members for voƟng electronically are 
as under :
(i) The voƟng period begins on Monday, 26th September, 

2016 from 10:00 a.m. (IST) and ends on Wednesday, 
28th September, 2016 5:00 p.m. (IST). During this 
period shareholders of the Company, holding shares 
either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as 
on the cut-off date of 22nd September 2016, may cast 
their vote electronically. The e-voƟng module shall be 
disabled by CDSL for voƟng thereaŌer.

(ii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voƟng website 
www.evoƟngindia.com 

(iii) Click on “Shareholders” tab.
(iv) Now, select the “EMAMI INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED” 

from the drop down menu and click on “SUBMIT”
(v) Now Enter your User ID:
 a) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
 b) For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits 

Client ID, 
 c) Members holding shares in Physical Form should 

enter Folio Number registered with the Company.
(vi) Next enter the Image VerificaƟon as displayed and Click 

on Login.
(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged 

on to www.evoƟngindia.com and voted on an earlier 
voƟng of any company, then your exisƟng password is 
to be used. 

(viii) If you are a first Ɵme user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and in 
Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN 
issued by Income Tax Department 
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as 
well as physical shareholders)
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o Members who have not updated their 
PAN with the Company/Depository 
ParƟcipant are requested to use the first 
two leƩers of their name and the 8 digits 
of the sequence number in the PAN field.

o In case the sequence number is less than 
8 digits enter the applicable number 
of 0’s before the number aŌer the first 
two characters of the name in CAPITAL 
leƩers. Eg. If your name is Ramesh 
Kumar with sequence number 1 then 
enter RA00000001 in the PAN field–
Sequence number is communicated in 
the Covering LeƩer.

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your 
demat account or in the company records 
for the said demat account or folio in dd/
mm/yyyy format.

Dividend 
Bank 
Details

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded 
in your demat account or in the company 
records for the said demat account or folio.

Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank 
Details in order to login. If the details are not 
recorded with the depository or company 
please enter the member id/ folio number 
in the Dividend Bank details field.

(ix) AŌer entering these details appropriately, click on 
“SUBMIT” tab.

(x) Members holding shares in physical form will 
then directly reach the Company selecƟon screen. 
However, members holding shares in demat form 
will now reach ‘Password CreaƟon’ menu wherein 
they are required to mandatorily enter their login 
password in the new password field. Kindly note that 
this password is to be also used by the demat holders 
for voƟng for resoluƟons of any other company 
on which they are eligible to vote, provided that 
company opts for e-voƟng through CDSL plaƞorm. It 
is strongly recommended not to share your password 
with any other person and take utmost care to keep 
your password confidenƟal.

(xi) For Members holding shares in physical form, the 
details can be used only for e-voƟng on the resoluƟons 
contained in this NoƟce.

(xii) Click on the EVSN for “EMAMI INFRASTRUCTURE 
LIMITED”.

(xiii) On the voƟng page, you will see “RESOLUTION 
DESCRIPTION” and against the same the opƟon 
“YES/NO” for voƟng. Select the opƟon YES or NO as 
desired. The opƟon YES implies that you assent to the 
ResoluƟon and opƟon NO implies that you dissent to 
the ResoluƟon.

(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to 
view the enƟre ResoluƟon details.

(xv) AŌer selecƟng the resoluƟon you have decided to 
vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmaƟon box will 
be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on 
“OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and 
accordingly modify your vote.

(xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resoluƟon, 
you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvii) You can also take out print of the voƟng done by you 
by clicking on “CLICK HERE TO PRINT” opƟon on the 
VoƟng page.

(xviii) If Demat account holder has forgoƩen the changed 
password then Enter the User ID and the image 
verificaƟon code and click on “FORGOT PASSWORD” 
& enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xix) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s 
mobile app m-VoƟng available for android based 
mobiles. The m-VoƟng app can be downloaded from 
Google Play Store. iPhone and Windows phone users 
can download the app from the App Store and the 
Windows Phone Store respecƟvely on or aŌer 30th 
June 2016. Please follow the instrucƟons as prompted 
by the mobile app while voƟng on your mobile. 

Note for InsƟtuƟonal Shareholders & Custodians 

• InsƟtuƟonal shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, 
HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on 
to www.evoƟngindia.com and register themselves as 
Corporates and Custodians respecƟvely. 

• A scanned copy of the RegistraƟon Form bearing the 
stamp and sign of the enƟty should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evoƟng@cdslindia.com. 

• AŌer receiving the login details they have to create a 
user who would be able to link the account(s) which 
they wish to vote on. 

• The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.
evoƟng@cdslindia.com and on approval of the 
accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

• A scanned copy of the Board ResoluƟon and Power 
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of AƩorney (POA) which they have issued in favour 
of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF 
format in the system for the scruƟnizer to verify the 
same.

(xx) In case you have any queries or issues regarding 
e-voƟng, you may refer the Frequently Asked 
QuesƟons (“FAQs”) and e-voƟng manual available at 
www.evoƟngindia.co.in under help secƟon or write 
an email to helpdesk.evoƟng@cdslindia.com.

(xxi) The voƟng rights of shareholders shall be in proporƟon 
to their share of the paid up equity share capital of 
the Company.

(xxii) Those who become Members of the Company aŌer 
dispatch of the AGM NoƟce but on or before 22nd 
September 2016 (cut-off date) may write to CDSL at 
helpdesk.evoƟng@cdslindia.com or to the Company 
at infra@emamirealty.com requesƟng for e-voƟng 
details. However, those Members already registered 
with CDSL for remote e-voƟng can login to website 
www.evoƟngindia.com and exercise their votes.

(xxiii) The results of voƟng will be declared within 48 hours 
from the conclusion of AGM and the resoluƟons 
proposed thereat will be deemed to be passed on the 
date of AGM, subject to receipt of requisite number 
of votes. The declared results, along with ScruƟnizer’s 
Report, will be available on the Company’s website 
www.emamirealty.com and on the website of CDSL, 
such results will also be forwarded to the Stock 
Exchanges where the Company’s shares are listed. 

(xxiv) In case of members receiving the physical copy they 
are advised to follow all steps from serial no. (i) to 
(xvii) above.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

As the members are aware, the Scheme of Arrangement for 
AmalgamaƟon (“Scheme”) of the wholly-owned subsidiary 
companies, viz., Emami Realty Limited and Emami Rainbow 
Niketan Private Limited with the Company was approved by 
the Hon’ble High Court of CalcuƩa vide its Order dated 14th 
June, 2016. The cerƟfied copy of the said Order has been 
filed with the Office of Registrar of Companies on 22nd July, 
2016 and accordingly, the Scheme have become operaƟve 
with effect from the Appointed Date i.e., 1st April, 2015.

Item No. 4 

The Board of Directors at its meeƟng held on 22nd July, 

2016 has appointed Mr. Debasish Bhaumik as an AddiƟonal 
Director (Category – Independent) of the Company to hold 
office up to the date of the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng 
of the Company under SecƟon 161 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Bhaumik, fulfils the 
condiƟons specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 
made thereunder for appointment as Independent Director 
of the Company and he is independent of the management. 
Accordingly, in compliance of SecƟon 149, 152, Schedule 
IV and any other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and on the recommendaƟon of NominaƟon & 
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee, Mr. Bhaumik is proposed to be 
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to 
hold office for a term of 5 years with effect form the date 
of appointment. A NoƟce pursuant to SecƟon 160 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, with the required deposit has been 
received from a shareholder signifying his intenƟon to 
propose his appointment as Director of the Company.

A copy of the draŌ LeƩer of Appointment of Mr. Bhaumik as 
Independent Director seƫng out terms and condiƟons of 
his appointment, is available for inspecƟon at the corporate 
office of the Company between 11.00 am and 1.00 pm on 
all working days except Saturdays and is also available on 
the website of the Company.

The Board considers that the associaƟon of Mr. Bhaumik 
would be of immense benefit to the Company. Accordingly, 
the Board recommends the Ordinary ResoluƟon at Item 
No. 4 for approval by the Members.

Except Mr. Debasish Bhaumik, the appointee himself and 
his relaƟves, none of the Directors or Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company and their relaƟves are concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the ResoluƟon. 

Item No. 5

The Board of Directors at its meeƟng held on 22nd July, 
2016 has appointed Mr. Rajesh Bansal as an AddiƟonal 
Director of the Company to hold office up to the date of the 
ensuing Annual General MeeƟng of the Company under 
SecƟon 161 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has 
received a noƟce from a member proposing his candidature 
for the office of Director of the Company. 

The Board of Directors in its above meeƟng also appointed 
Mr. Rajesh Bansal as the Whole-Ɵme Director for a period 
expiring on 9th August, 2018, subject to approval of the 
shareholders. He was holding the office of Whole-Ɵme 
Director in Emami Realty Limited (since amalgamated with 
the Company) for a period of 3 years w.e.f. 10th August, 
2015.
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The NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee has 
approved terms of appointment and remuneraƟon of the 
Whole-Ɵme Director in its meeƟng held on 22nd July, 2016. 
For the purpose, an agreement has been entered into by 
the Company with the Whole-Ɵme Director. The main 
terms and condiƟons of appointment of the Whole-Ɵme 
Director, as contained in the said agreement dated 22nd 
July, 2016 are furnished below:

a. Salary of ` 63,800/- (Rupees Sixty Three Thousand 
Eight Hundred only) per month with such increment 
as may be recommended by the NominaƟon and 
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee from Ɵme to Ɵme and 
approved by the Board of Directors subject to the 
same not exceeding the limits specified in Schedule V 
to the Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory 
modificaƟon or re-enactment thereof for the Ɵme 
being in force or as may hereaŌer be made by the 
Central Government in that behalf from Ɵme to Ɵme, 
or any amendments thereto; 

 Perquisites and other benefits: 

 Besides the above salary, Mr. Rajesh Bansal will 
be enƟtled to the perquisites and other benefits 
which may include HRA, Children Allowance, Special 
Allowance, Bonus, Medical Reimbursement or any 
other allowance/perquisite as may be decided by the 
Board.

 Minimum RemuneraƟon:

 Where in any financial year, the Company has no 
profits or its profits are inadequate, appointee shall 
be enƟtled to above remuneraƟon as minimum 
remuneraƟon, within the limits as laid down in SecƟon 
II of Part II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. 

b. Other terms: 

 1. The Whole-Ɵme Director, subject to the 
superintendence, control and direcƟon of the 
Board of Directors of the Company, shall conduct 
and manage the business and affairs of the 
Company as specified in the Agreement.

 2. The Whole-Ɵme Director shall not be paid any 
siƫng fees for aƩending the meeƟng of the Board 
of Directors or commiƩee thereof from the date 
of his appointment.  

 3. The Whole-Ɵme Director shall be liable to reƟre 
by rotaƟon and his reappointment at the AGM 
as a Director reƟring by rotaƟon would not 
consƟtute a break in his appointment as Whole-
Ɵme Director. 

 4. The agreement may be terminated by either 
party by giving to the other party three months’ 
noƟce of such terminaƟon.

Your Directors seek your approval to the said resoluƟon. 
Except Mr. Rajesh Bansal, the appointee himself and his 
relaƟves, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company and their relaƟves, are concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the ResoluƟon. 

Copy of the agreement dated 22nd July, 2016 referred to 
the above is available for inspecƟon at the corporate office 
of the Company between 11.00 am and 1.00 pm on all 
working days except Saturdays.

The disclosures as required under SecƟon II, Part II of the 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 are given as an 
annexure to this NoƟce. 

Item No. 6

The Board of Directors at its meeƟng held on 22nd July, 
2016 has appointed Mr. Sanjay Choudhary as an AddiƟonal 
Director of the Company to hold office up to the date of the 
ensuing Annual General MeeƟng of the Company under 
SecƟon 161 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has 
received a noƟce from a member proposing his candidature 
for the office of Director of the Company. 

The Board of Directors in its above meeƟng also appointed 
Mr. Sanjay Choudhary as the Whole-Ɵme Director for a 
period expiring on 31st March, 2018, subject to approval of 
the shareholders. He was holding the office of Whole-Ɵme 
Director in Emami Realty Limited (since amalgamated with 
the Company) for a period of 3 years w.e.f. 1st April, 2015.

The NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee has 
approved terms of appointment and remuneraƟon of the 
Whole-Ɵme Director in its meeƟng held on 22nd July, 2016. 
For the purpose, an agreement has been entered into by 
the Company with the Whole-Ɵme Director. The main 
terms and condiƟons of appointment of the Whole-Ɵme 
Director, as contained in the said agreement dated 22nd 
July, 2016 are furnished below:

a. Salary of ` 3,75,000/- (Rupees Three Lakhs Seventy 
Five Thousand only) per month with such increment 
as may be recommended by the NominaƟon and 
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee from Ɵme to Ɵme and 
approved by the Board of Directors subject to the 
same not exceeding the limits specified in Schedule V 
to the Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory 
modificaƟon or re-enactment thereof for the Ɵme 
being in force or as may hereaŌer be made by the 
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Central Government in that behalf from Ɵme to Ɵme, 
or any amendments thereto; 

 Perquisites and other benefits: 

 Besides the above salary, Mr. Sanjay Choudhary will be 
enƟtled to the perquisites and other benefits which 
may include HRA, Special Allowance, Bonus, Medical 
Reimbursement or any other allowance/perquisite as 
may be decided by the Board.

 Minimum RemuneraƟon:

 Where in any financial year, the Company has no 
profits or its profits are inadequate, appointee shall 
be enƟtled to above remuneraƟon as minimum 
remuneraƟon within the limits as laid down in SecƟon 
II of Part II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. 

b. Other terms: 

 1. The Whole-Ɵme Director, subject to the 
superintendence, control and direcƟon of the 
Board of Directors of the Company, shall conduct 
and manage the business and affairs of the 
Company as specified in the agreement.

 2. The Whole-Ɵme Director shall not be paid any 
siƫng fees for aƩending the meeƟng of the Board 
of Directors or commiƩee thereof from the date 
of his appointment.  

 3. The Whole-Ɵme Director shall be liable to reƟre 
by rotaƟon and his reappointment at the AGM 
as a Director reƟring by rotaƟon would not 
consƟtute a break in his appointment as Whole-
Ɵme Director.

 4. The agreement may be terminated by either 
party by giving to the other party three months’ 
noƟce of such terminaƟon.

Your Directors seek your approval to the said resoluƟon. 
Except Mr. Sanjay Choudhary, the appointee himself and his 
relaƟves, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company and their relaƟves, are concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the ResoluƟon. 

Copy of the agreement dated 22nd July, 2016 referred to 
the above is available for inspecƟon at the corporate office 
of the Company between 11.00 am and 1.00 pm on all 
working days except Saturdays.

The disclosures as required under SecƟon II, Part II of the 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 are given as an 
annexure to this NoƟce. 

Item No. 7

Mr. Girja Kumar Choudhary was appointed as the Whole 
Time Director & CFO of the Company with effect from 15th 
May 2012 for a period of 5 years. He was also the Whole-
Ɵme Director of Emami Realty Limited (since amalgamated 
with the Company) and drawing remuneraƟon therefrom 
w.e.f. 1st April, 2015. Pursuant to the amalgamaƟon of 
Emami Realty Limited with the Company and considering 
his overall performance and leadership, the Board of 
Directors, at its meeƟng held on 22nd July, 2016, based on 
the recommendaƟons of NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee, has decided that the remuneraƟon of Mr. 
Choudhary which includes the remuneraƟon received 
from Emami Realty Limited, be increased with effect from 
1st April, 2016, upto the unexpired period of his tenure as 
Whole-Ɵme Director & CFO of the Company.

The broad parƟculars of revision in remuneraƟon to the 
Whole-Ɵme Director & CFO during his term of Office are 
as under:

(a) Basic Salary of ` 5,70,000/- per month with effect 
from 1st April, 2016, with HRA, perquisites and other 
benefits including contribuƟon to Provident Fund, 
contribuƟon to NaƟonal Pension Scheme, LTA etc. 
upto the unexpired period of his tenure as Whole-Ɵme 
Director & CFO of the Company as per Agreement 
dated 22th July, 2016; 

(b) All the other terms and condiƟons of appointment 
of Whole-Ɵme Director & CFO as approved by 
Shareholders at their meeƟng held on 15th May 2012 
remain unaltered. 

Your Directors seek your approval to the said resoluƟon. 
Except Mr. Girja Kumar Choudhary, the appointee himself 
and his relaƟves, none of the Directors or Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company and their relaƟves, are concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the ResoluƟon. 

Copy of the supplimentary agreement dated 22nd July, 
2016 referred to the above is available for inspecƟon at the 
Corporate office of the Company between 11.00 am and 
1.00 pm on all working days except Saturdays.

The disclosures as required under SecƟon II, Part II of the 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 are given as an 
annexure to this NoƟce. 

Item No. 8

Pursuant to the Order of the Hon’ble High Court at 
CalcuƩa dated 14th June, 2016 sancƟoning the Scheme of 
Arrangement for AmalgamaƟon of Emami Realty Limited 
and Emami Rainbow Niketan Private Limited (“Transferor 
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Companies”) with the Company and as part of the Para 
5.12 of the Scheme, the Authorised Share Capital of the 
Transferor Companies stand transferred to and vested in 
the Company and, accordingly the Authorised Share Capital 
of the Company stand increased from ` 5,00,00,000/- to ` 
7,05,00,000/-. 

In order to have uniform face value, it is proposed that 
20,00,000 equity shares of `10/- each transferred on 
amalgamaƟon of Emami Realty Limited and 50,000 equity 
shares of ` 10/- each transferred on amalgamaƟon of 
Emami Rainbow Niketan Private Limited be sub-divided into 
1,02,50,000 Equity Shares of the face value of ` 2/- each 
and consequent alteraƟon be made in the exisƟng Clause V 
of the Memorandum of AssociaƟon of the Company.

As per SecƟon 13 read with SecƟon 61 of the Act, approval 
of the members is required by means of an Ordinary 
ResoluƟon for alteraƟon of the Capital Clause of the 
Memorandum of AssociaƟon as aforesaid. Accordingly, 
the Board recommends the resoluƟon at item No.8 for 
approval of the members.

A copy of the Memorandum of AssociaƟon of the Company 
along with proposed alteraƟon is available for inspecƟon 
at the corporate office of the Company between 11.00 am 
and 1.00 pm on all working days except Saturdays.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and/or their relaƟves is concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in this resoluƟon.

Item No. 9

The shareholders of the Company by way of special 
resoluƟon passed at its 6th Annual General MeeƟng held on 
5th September, 2014, had authorized the Board of Directors 
to borrow from Ɵme to Ɵme, by way of loans, advances, 
debentures/bonds or any other security(ies) or otherwise, 
upto a limit of ̀  500 Crores on such terms and condiƟons as 
it may deem fit under secƟon 180(1)(c) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. In view of the amalgamaƟon of Emami Realty 
Limited with the Company and anƟcipaƟng the need for 
addiƟonal funds that may be required for execuƟng of 
various exisƟng and future projects, it is necessary to revise 
the borrowing limits to the extent of ` 4000 Crores which 
shall include the outstanding borrowings of Emami Realty 
Limited.

The Board recommends the Special ResoluƟon at item no. 
9 for your approval.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company and/or their relaƟves is concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in this resoluƟon.

Item No. 10

In view of the amalgamaƟon of Emami Realty Limited with 
the Company and in order to create mortgage / charge on 
the movable & immovable properƟes of the Company to 
secure any loans/borrowings availed/to be availed by the 
Company including the charges/mortgages created by 
Emami Realty Limited and exisƟng as on effecƟve date of 
the Scheme, it is necessary to obtain the approval of the 
members in terms of the requirements of secƟon 180(1)
(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 upto the borrowing limits 
of the Company. 

To create mortgage and / or charge upto the said limit, 
approval of the Members is required to be obtained 
pursuant to SecƟon 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 
authorizing the Board of Directors of the Company in this 
regard. The Board accordingly recommends the Special 
ResoluƟon in item no. 10 for your approval.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
their relaƟves, are concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in this ResoluƟon.

Item No. 11

The provisions of SecƟon 188(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“Act”) that govern the related party transacƟons 
require a company to obtain prior approval of the Board 
of Directors and in case the value of transacƟon exceeds 
the 10% of turnover or Rs. 50 Crores whichever is lower, 
the prior approval of shareholders by way of an ordinary 
resoluƟon. Further, in terms of RegulaƟon 23(4) of LisƟng 
RegulaƟons, all material related party transacƟon, i.e., 
transacƟon which individually or taken together exceeds 
10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the listed 
enƟty as per the last audited financial statements, require 
approval of the shareholders and the related parƟes to the 
parƟcular transacƟon shall abstain from voƟng on such 
resoluƟons. Accordingly, in case of parƟes under Serial No. 
1 to 6 which are covered under SecƟon 2(76) of the Act, 
the cut-off value for approval has been taken as 10% of the 
Company’s turnover while in case of all other parƟes, 10% 
of annual consolidated turnover has been considered.

In the light of above provisions, the Board of your Company, 
on recommendaƟons of the Audit CommiƩee has approved 
the transacƟons along with limits that the Company may 
enter into with related parƟes for the financial year 2016-
17 and beyond.
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InformaƟon required to be provided under Rule 15(3) of the Companies (MeeƟng of the Board and its Power) Rules, 2014 
is as under:   

Sl. No. Name of Related Party Name of the 
director or KMP 
who is related

Nature of RelaƟ onship Nature and material terms of TransacƟ on Aggregate maximum 
monetary value of the 
contract or arrangement 
per fi nancial year

1. Delta PV Pvt. Ltd. Mr. Girja Kumar 
Choudhary is 
Director

Subsidiary Loan/ Interest/ Reimbursement of Expenses ` 50 Crores

2. New Age Realty Pvt. Ltd. -Do- -Do- -Do- ` 50 Crores

3. Zandu Realty Limited None, excluding 
the Independent 
Directors

Associate Reimbursement/payment of expenses/ Service 
Charges/ Loan/ Advances/ Interest on Loan/ Guarantee
The proposed contracts/ arrangements/ transacƟ ons 
of inter corporate loan(s) or any sale /purchase /
service contract transacƟ on(s) or any security(ies) / 
guarantee(s) in connecƟ on with loan(s) and/or any form 
of debt and/or a combinaƟ on thereof are as per Related 
Party TransacƟ on Policy of the Company so the same 
may be decided by the Board of Directors at relevant 
Ɵ me as mutually agreed between the Company and 
Zandu Realty Limited within the overall limits approved 
by the members.

` 500 Crores 

4. Roseview Developers 
Pvt. Ltd.

Mr. Girja Kumar 
Choudhary is 
Director

Associate Interest/ Reimbursement of expenses ` 5 Crores

5. Bengal Emami Housing 
Ltd.

-Do- -Do- Loan/ Interest/ Reimbursement of expenses ` 100 Crores

6. Swanhousing & Infra 
Pvt. Ltd.

None -Do- -Do- ` 100 Crores

7. Lohitka ProperƟ es LLP

Mr. Girja Kumar 
Choudhary is a 
Designated Partner 

Limited Liability 
Partnership wherein the 

Company is a Partner
Loan/ Reimbursement of expenses/ Interest/ Corporate 
Guarantee/ Commission

` 200 Crores

8. Sanjeevani Vypaar LLP EnƟ ty where Promoters 
have signifi cant 

Infl uence

` 150 Crores

9. Dev Infracity Pvt. Ltd. Mr. Rajesh Bansal is 
a member

Enterprises over which 
one KMP has signifi cant 
infl uence

Corporate Guarantee/ Interest/ Advance/ 
Reimbursement of expenses

` 250 Crores

10. Raj InfraproperƟ es 
Pvt. Ltd.

` 300 Crores

11. Jhansi ProperƟ es Pvt. 
Ltd.

None EnƟ ty where Promoters 
have signifi cant 
Infl uence

Loan/ Interest/ Corporate Guarantee/Commission/ 
Reimbursement of expenses

` 250 Crores

12. Emami Estates Pvt. Ltd. None -Do- -Do- ` 250 Crores

13. Paradise Agriculture 
Pvt. Ltd.

None -Do- -Do- ` 250 Crores

15. CreaƟ ve CulƟ vaƟ on 
Pvt. Ltd.

None -Do- JDA Deposit/ Loan/ Interest/Reimbursement of 
expenses

` 50 Crores

16. Oriental Sales Agencies 
(India) Pvt. Ltd.

None -Do- Loan/ Reimbursement of expenses/ Corporate 
Guarantee/ Interest

` 100 Crores
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17. Emami Agrotech Ltd. None -Do-

Loan/ Reimbursement/ Corporate Guarantee/ Security/ 
Interest/ Commission

The said Corporate Guarantee/security shall be as per 
the requirement of Banks/ fi nancial insƟ tuƟ ons/ NBFCs 
or any other Lenders.

Aggregate limit of ` 700 
Cr for these 7 companies, 
severally and / or jointly

18. Newway ConstrucƟ ons 
Ltd.

None -Do-

19. Midkot Trades Pvt. Ltd. None -Do-

20. Suntrack Commerce 
Pvt. Ltd.

None Promoter Group 
company

21. Bhanu Vyapaar Pvt. Ltd. None -Do-

22. Diwakar Viniyog Pvt. 
Ltd.

None -Do-

23. Suraj Viniyog Pvt. Ltd. None -Do-

The rate of interest on Loan as contemplated above shall 
not be lower than the prevailing yield of one year, three 
year, five year or ten year Government Security closest to 
the tenure of the Loan

Any other informaƟon relevant or important for the 
members to take a decision on the proposed resoluƟon: NIL

The Audit CommiƩee has approved the abovesaid related 
party transacƟons and has noted that these transacƟons 
are in the ordinary course of business and are at arm’s 
length. 

Accordingly, approval of the members is sought under 
first proviso to SecƟon 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
to the extent applicable and RegulaƟon 23(4) of LisƟng 
RegulaƟons for entering into related party transacƟons as 
menƟoned above, by way of an ordinary resoluƟon. 

Your Directors recommend the resoluƟon for members’ 
approval by an Ordinary ResoluƟon.

Except as menƟoned in the above table, none of the 
Directors, KMPs or their relaƟves, are concerned or 
interested or deemed to be concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the aforesaid resoluƟon. 

Item No. 12

Pursuant to SecƟon 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, read 
with Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment 
of SecuriƟes) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to obtain 
approval of its members by way of a special resoluƟon, 
before making any offer or invitaƟon for issue of Non 

ConverƟble Debentures (“NCDs”) on a private placement 
basis. The said approval shall be the basis for the Board 
to determine the terms and condiƟons of any issuance of 
NCDs by the Company for a period of 1 year from the date 
on which the members have provided the approval by way 
of the special resoluƟon.

In order to augment resources for general corporate 
purposes, the Company may offer or invite subscripƟon 
for NCDs, in one or more tranches on private placement 
basis, for a period of 1 (one) year from the date of passing 
the ResoluƟon, on such terms and condiƟons including the 
price, coupon, premium / discount, tenor etc., as may be 
determined by the Board of Directors (or any other person 
authorized by the Board of Directors), at the prevailing 
market condiƟon, within the overall borrowing limits of the 
Company, as may be approved by the Members from Ɵme 
to Ɵme.

Accordingly the Board recommends the Special ResoluƟon 
in item no. 12 for your approval.

None of the Directors, KMP or their relaƟves are in any way 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in this 
ResoluƟon. 

 By Order of the Board
For Emami Infrastructure Limited

Place : Kolkata Payel Jain
Date : 11th August, 2016 Company Secretary 
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 Disclosures as required under SecƟ on II, Part II of the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Item No. 5, 
6 & 7 are stated hereinbelow:
General informaƟ on:
1 Nature of Industry Real Estate Development
2 Date or expected date of commencement of commercial producƟ on The Company was incorporated on January 04, 2008 

as a private limited company. The Company had since 
commenced the business

3 In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of 
acƟ viƟ es as per project approved by fi nancial insƟ tuƟ ons appearing 
in the prospectus

Not Applicable

4 The fi nancial performance of the Company during the preceding three fi nancial years is as under:                                 (` in Lakhs)

ParƟ culars 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14
Total Income 29,772.36 72.00 28.99
Total Expense 30,595.94 76.85 60.51
Profi t/(Loss) Before tax (823.58) (4.85) (31.52)
Less: Tax Expense 3.45 1.37 -

Profi t/(Loss) AŌ er Tax (827.03) (6.22) (31.52)
5 Foreign investments or collaborators, if any NIL

InformaƟ on about the appointee: Mr. Rajesh Bansal
1 Background details Mr. Rajesh Bansal is a B.Com (Hons) from Bundelkand University, Jhansi. Mr. 

Bansal has 22 years of rich experience in Real Estate Industry. He is amember of 
Bundelkhand Chamber of Commerce since 5 years.

2 Past remuneraƟ on During the Financial Year 2015-16, Mr. Rajesh Bansal received ` 11.54 Lakhs 
as Whole-Ɵ me Director of Emami Realty Limited (since amalgamated with the 
Company)

3 RecogniƟ on or awards -
4 Job profi le and his suitability Mr. Bansal plays a key role in development of Company’s project namely “Emami 

Nature” at Khailar, Jhansi which is spread over 100 acres of land. The Company 
derives a lot of benefi t from his experƟ se and experience in real estate business. 

5 RemuneraƟ on proposed As set out in the Explanatory Statement
6 ComparaƟ ve remuneraƟ on profi le with 

respect to industry, size of the company, 
profi le of the posiƟ on and person (in case 
of expatriates the relevant details would be 
w.r.t. the country of his origin)

The remuneraƟ on to be paid to Mr. Bansal is in line with remuneraƟ on paid 
by other companies, keeping in view his job profi le, the size of operaƟ ons and 
complexity of business of the Company.

7 Pecuniary relaƟ onship directly or indirectly 
with the company, or relaƟ onship with the 
managerial personnel, if any.

Apart from receiving remuneraƟ on as stated above, he has no pecuniary 
relaƟ onship with the Company.
Mr. Bansal is not related to any Director of the Company. 

InformaƟ on about the appointee: Mr. Sanjay Choudhary
1 Background details Mr. Sanjay Choudhary is a Commerce Graduate from St. Xavier’s college, Kolkata 

and has carved a niche for himself in Real Estate and ConstrucƟ on industry, with 
an enriched experience of more than 31 years. 

2 Past remuneraƟ on During the Financial Year 2015-16, Mr. Sanjay Choudhary received ` 120 Lakhs 
as Whole-Ɵ me Director of Emami Realty Limited (since amalgamated with the 
Company).

3 RecogniƟ on or awards --
4 Job profi le and his suitability The role of Mr. Choudhary includes contribuƟ on and involvement in 

implementaƟ on of the Projects of the Company. He has an excellent track record 
in realty business and shares a good reputaƟ on and rapport with professionals 
and Govt. agencies involved in the Real Estate business. The Company derives a lot 
of benefi t from his diverse experƟ se and experience in project implementaƟ on.
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5 RemuneraƟ on proposed As set out in the Explanatory Statement
6 ComparaƟ ve remuneraƟ on profi le with 

respect to industry, size of the company, 
profi le of the posiƟ on and person (in case of 
expatriates the relevant details would be w.r.t. 
the country of his origin)

The remuneraƟ on to be paid to Mr. Choudhary is in line with remuneraƟ on paid 
by other companies, keeping in view his job profi le and the size of operaƟ ons. 

7 Pecuniary relaƟ onship directly or indirectly 
with the company, or relaƟ onship with the 
managerial personnel, if any.

Apart from receiving remuneraƟ on as stated above, he has no pecuniary 
relaƟ onship with the Company.
Mr. Choudhary is not related to any Director of the Company. 
Mr. Sanjay Choudhary is a Director of New Age Realty Private Limited, being the 
subsidiary company and does not receive any remuneraƟ on therefrom.

InformaƟ on about the appointee: Mr. Girja Kumar Choudhary
1 Background details Mr. Girja Kumar Choudhary is a B.Com (Hons) Gold Medalist and a Chartered 

Accountant. He has more than 25 years of experience in the industry and 
profession.

2 Past RemuneraƟ on During the Financial Year 2015-16, Mr. Girja Kumar Choudhary received ` 40.08 
Lacs as Whole-Ɵ me Director & CFO of Emami Infrastructure Limited and ` 79.88 
Lacs as the Whole-Ɵ me Director of Emami Realty Limited (since amalgamated 
with the Company).

3 RecogniƟ on or awards B.Com (Hons) Gold Medalist 
4 Job profi le and his suitability The role of Mr. Choudhary as Whole-Ɵ me Director & CEO of the Company 

includes overall responsibility for the growth and day to day business acƟ vity of 
the Company. He provides the necessary strategic direcƟ on to all business lines/
interests of the Company. He is instrumental in the overall business development 
of the Company as well.
Keeping in view his working with the Company and his prior experience and 
posiƟ ons held with various Corporates, he is suitable for the present posiƟ on. 
The Company derives a lot of benefi t from his diverse professional experƟ se and 
experience at Board Level and as well as in OperaƟ ons of the Company. He is 
the key person in strategic decision making on criƟ cal issues in the business and 
management of the Company.

5 RemuneraƟ on proposed As set out in the Explanatory Statement
6 ComparaƟ ve remuneraƟ on profi le with 

respect to industry, size of the company, 
profi le of the posiƟ on and person (in case of 
expatriates the relevant details would be w.r.t. 
the country of his origin)

The remuneraƟ on paid/proposed to be paid to Mr. Choudhary is in line with 
remuneraƟ on paid by other companies, keeping in view his job profi le, the size of 
operaƟ ons and complexity of business of the Company.

7 Pecuniary relaƟ onship directly or indirectly 
with the company, or relaƟ onship with the 
managerial personnel, if any.

Apart from receiving remuneraƟ on as stated above, he has no pecuniary 
relaƟ onship with the Company.
Mr. Choudhary is not related to any Director of the Company. 

Other InformaƟ on:

1 Reasons of loss or inadequate profi ts The Projects launched by the Company are either in progress or in advanced stage 
of compleƟ on. Although we have been able to generate booking of sales, yet the 
revenue from the said Projects will be recognized in the accounts in subsequent 
years in accordance with the guiding principles of AccounƟ ng Standard - 9, 
noƟ fi ed in the Companies (AccounƟ ng Standards) Rules 2006.
Normal product cycle of a project in the real estate company is at least 3-4 years. 
Hence looking at the response which these projects have witnessed, the Company 
is very posiƟ ve that in the coming years, we will be able to show stronger results 
than before.

2 Steps taken or proposed to be taken for 
improvement

3 Expected increase in producƟ vity and profi ts 
in measurable terms

Disclosures:
1 RemuneraƟ on package of the managerial 

personnel
As set out in the Explanatory Statement

2 Disclosures to be menƟ oned in the Board of 
Director’s Report under the head “Corporate 
Governance”, if any, aƩ ached to the Annual 
Report

As per aƩ ached 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders,
Your Directors have pleasure in presenƟng the 8th Annual 
Report together with the Revised Audited Accounts of the 
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION

The Scheme of Arrangement for AmalgamaƟon (“Scheme”) 
of the wholly-owned subsidiary companies viz. Emami 
Realty Limited (“ERL”) and Emami Rainbow Niketan Private 
Limited (“ERNPL”) with the Company was approved by the 
Hon’ble High Court at CalcuƩa vide its Order dated 14th 
June, 2016. The cerƟfied copy of the said Order was filed 
with the office of Registrar of Companies on 22nd July, 
2016 and accordingly, the Scheme have become operaƟve 

with effect from the Appointed Date i.e., 1st April, 2015. 
The Financial Statements of the Company for the year 
ended 31st March, 2016, were earlier approved by the 
Board of Directors at their meeƟng held on 27th May, 
2016 on which the Statutory Auditors of the Company had 
issued their report dated 27th May, 2016. These financial 
statements have been reopened and revised to give effect 
to the Scheme, since the Appointed Date is 1st April, 2015.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The standalone performance of the Company for the year 
ended on 31st March, 2016 is stated below:

     (` in Lacs)

ParƟculars 2015-16 * 2014-15

Revenue from OperaƟons 64.06 -

Other Income 9,306.75 72.00

Increase/(Decrease) in Inventories 20,401.55 -

Total Revenue 29,772.36 72.00

Total Expenses 30,595.94 76.85

Loss Before Tax (823.58) (4.85)

Tax Expenses

   - Current Tax - -

   - Income Tax paid for Earlier Years 3.45 1.37

Loss for the Year (827.03) (6.22)

Profit Brought Forward from Previous Year 1,281.31 1,287.52

Add: Transferred on amalgamaƟon (2,220.75) -

Less: Expenses wriƩen off (0.01) -

Net Surplus/(Deficit) in the Statement of Profit & Loss (1,766.48) 1,281.31
* In view of the amalgamaƟon of Emami Realty Limited and Emami Rainbow Niketan Private Limited with the Company with effect from 
1st April 2015, the figures for the current year are not comparable with those of the previous year.

OPERATIONS
Your Directors are pleased to inform that our Project 
‘Emami City’ is ahead of delivery schedule and we are very 
confident that the delivery of apartments to the customers 
will be well in advance. 

In respect of our Chennai Project ‘Emami Tejomaya’, your 
Company has awarded the construcƟon contract to Larsen 
& Tourbo Limited, to ensure best possible quality of service. 
We have also aligned the size of units, to suit the financial 
reach of individual customers. Our Project has received 
good response from the customers.

The consolidated revenue of your Company for the year 
ended 31st March, 2016 is ` 32,763.07 Lacs and Loss 
aŌer Tax is ` 423.98 Lacs as compared to the consolidated 
revenue and Profit aŌer Tax for the previous year of 
` 7,295.50 Lacs and ̀  1,227.22 Lacs respecƟvely, mainly due 
to unsold stock lying with one of the Associate Company 
due to poor market condiƟons. 

AWARDS & ACHIEVEMENTS

You would be glad to learn that our Emami City Project has 
received a “Prashansha Patra – 2015” from NaƟonal Safety 
Council of India for developing and implemenƟng effecƟve 
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Management Systems & Procedures and achieving good 
performance in OccupaƟonal Safety & Health during the 
year 2014.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

During the year under review, there has been no change in 
the nature of business of the Company. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFTER THE 
BALANCE SHEET DATE

There have been no material changes and commitments, 
except for the approval of the Scheme by the Hon’ble High 
Court as stated above, affecƟng the financial posiƟon of 
the Company which have occurred between the end of 
the financial year of the Company to which the financial 
statements relate and the date of the report.

SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATES/JOINT VENTURES

In compliance with AccounƟng Standard 21 specified under 
SecƟon 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, your 
Company has prepared Consolidated Financial Statements, 
which forms part of this Annual Report. Further, pursuant 
to SecƟon 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing 
the salient features of the financial statements of the 
subsidiaries & associates in the prescribed form AOC-1 has 
also been provided as a part of this Annual Report. The 
Company does not have any joint venture.

The highlights of performance of subsidiaries & associate 
companies and their contribuƟon to the overall 
performance of the Company during the period under 
review, is tabulated below:

 (` in Lacs)

ParƟculars Turnover Profit / 
(Loss) AŌer 

Tax

Profit / Loss 
considered in 
consolidaƟon

Networth aƩributable 
to Equity Shareholders 

as on 31.03.2016
Subsidiaries
Sneha Ashiana Pvt. Ltd. - (0.57) (0.57) (22.35)
Delta PV Pvt. Ltd. - 0.01 0.006 9.67
New Age Realty Pvt. Ltd. - (246.00) (147.60) (523.71)
Associates
Zandu Realty Limited 866.79 704.91 250.31 6485.19
Roseview Developers Pvt. Ltd. - (0.16) (0.08) (2.86)
Prajay Urban Pvt. Ltd. - (0.41) (0.20) (1.02)
Bengal Emami Housing Limited - (2.66) (0.80) 1.54
Swanhousing & Infra Pvt. Ltd. - 2.75 0.93 69.02

As per the provisions of SecƟon 136 of the Act, separate 
audited financial statements of the subsidiaries are being 
placed on the Company’s website www.emamirealty.com 
and a copy of such separate audited financial statements 
of the subsidiaries will be provided to the shareholders on 
request.

A Policy has been formulated for determining the Material 
Subsidiaries of the Company in compliance with the 
SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015 (“LisƟng RegulaƟons”). The said Policy 
has been posted on the Company’s website at the weblink 
www.emamirealty.com/code.php.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

ParƟculars of loans, guarantees and investments made by 
the Company pursuant to SecƟon 186 of the Act have been 
disclosed in the Notes to the Audited Financial Statements.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH 
RELATED PARTIES

All transacƟons with Related ParƟes entered during the 
financial year by the Company were on an arms’ length 
basis and in the ordinary course of business. There were 
no material related party transacƟons, i.e., transacƟons 
exceeding ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover 

as per the last audited financial statements, entered into 
during the year. Accordingly, the disclosure required under 
SecƟon 134(3)(h) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in Form AOC-2 is not 
applicable to your Company.

A policy on ‘Materiality of and dealing with Related Party 
TransacƟons’ has been devised by the Board of Directors 
and the same may be referred to, at the Company’s website 
at the weblink www.emamirealty.com/code.php

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not invited or accepted deposits from 
the public covered under SecƟon 73 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 
2014. 

AUDITORS & AUDITOR’S REPORT

At the Annual General MeeƟng held on 5th September 
2014, M/S S. K. Agrawal & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm 
RegistraƟon No. 306033E) were appointed as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company to hold office Ɵll the conclusion 
of the 11th Annual General MeeƟng, subject to raƟficaƟon 
by the members annually. Accordingly, the appointment of 
M/S S. K. Agrawal & Co., Chartered Accountant, as Statutory 
Auditors of the Company is placed for raƟficaƟon by the 
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shareholders. In this regard, the Company has received a 
cerƟficate from the auditors to the effect that if they are re-
appointed, it would be in accordance with the provisions of 
SecƟon 141 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Auditors’ Report to the shareholders for the year under 
review does not contain any qualificaƟon. 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 204 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the 
Board has appointed M/S MKB & Associates, PracƟsing 
Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditor of the Company. 
The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 
31st March 2016 is annexed herewith as “Annexure - 1”. The 
Report does not contain any qualificaƟon.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

I. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

(a) Appointment of Independent Directors:

Mrs. Karabi Sengupta (DIN: 02534951), was 
appointed as an AddiƟonal Director of the 
Company with effect from 31st March, 2015 and 
the members, at the Annual General MeeƟng 
of the Company held on 9th September, 2015, 
approved her appointment as an Independent 
Director for a term of 5 years with effect from the 
date of appointment. 

On the recommendaƟon of the NominaƟon & 
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee, Mr. Debasish Bhaumik 
(DIN: 06933306), was appointed as an AddiƟonal 
Director (Category – Independent) of the Company 
with effect from 22nd July, 2016 by the Board 
of Directors of the Company and subject to the 
approval of the Members, also as Independent 
Director, with effect from 22nd July, 2016 for a 
term of 5 years.  

(b) Statement on declaraƟon given by Independent 
Directors under sub- secƟon (6) of secƟon 149:

The Company has received declaraƟons from all the 
Independent Directors of the Company confirming 
that they meet the criteria of independence as 
laid down under SecƟon 149(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and RegulaƟon 16(1)(b) of the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons.

(c) FamiliarizaƟon Programme undertaken for 
Independent Directors:

 The Independent Directors are familiarised with 
the Company, their roles, rights, responsibiliƟes 
in the Company, nature of the industry in which 
the Company operates, business model of the 
Company, etc. On appointment, the Independent 
Director is issued a LeƩer of Appointment seƫng 
out in detail, the terms of appointment, duƟes, 
responsibiliƟes and expected Ɵme commitments. 
Each newly appointed Independent Director is 

taken through a formal inducƟon program on the 
Company’s operaƟons, markeƟng, finance and 
other important aspects. The Company Secretary 
briefs the Director about their legal and regulatory 
responsibiliƟes as a Director. The familiarizaƟon 
program is available on the Company’s website 
under the weblink www.emamirealty.com/code.
php.

II. NON- INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

 ReƟrement by RotaƟon 

 As per the provisions of SecƟon 152(6)(c) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Basant Kumar Parakh (DIN: 
00103176) reƟres by rotaƟon, and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment. In view of his considerable 
experience and contribuƟon to the Company, your 
Director recommend his re-appointment.

 Appointment of Whole-Ɵme Directors

 On the recommendaƟons of the NominaƟon & 
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee, Mr. Rajesh Bansal (DIN: 
00645035) and Mr. Sanjay Choudhary (DIN: 00669470), 
the Whole-Ɵme Directors of ERL, since amalgamated 
with the Company, were appointed by the Board of 
Directors of the Company as AddiƟonal Directors of 
your Company, and subject to the approval of the 
Members, also as Whole-Ɵme Directors, with effect 
from 22nd July, 2016. 

III. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (“KMP”)

 Dr. Kalyanasundaram Ramamurthy, the CEO of ERL, 
since amalgamated with the Company, was appointed 
as the CEO of the Company with effect from 22nd July, 
2016.

NoƟces under SecƟon 160 of the Act have been received for 
the appointment of Mr. Debasish Bhaumik, Mr. Rajesh Bansal 
and Mr. Sanjay Choudhary who have filed their consents to 
act as Directors of the Company, if appointed. Appropriate 
resoluƟons seeking your approval to the aforesaid 
appointments are appearing in the NoƟce convening the 8th 
AGM of your Company.

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2016, six 
Board MeeƟngs were held, details of which are given in the 
Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between 
the MeeƟngs was within the period prescribed under the 
Companies Act, 2013.

MEETINGS OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the year under review, a meeƟng of Independent 
Directors was held on 11th February, 2016 wherein the 
performance of the Non-Independent Directors and the 
Board as a whole was reviewed. The Independent Directors 
at their meeƟng also assessed the quality, quanƟty and 
Ɵmeliness of flow of informaƟon between the Company 
management and the Board of Directors of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Disclosures pertaining to remuneraƟon and other details as 
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required under SecƟon 197(12) read with Rule 5(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 are aƩached as “Annexure - 2”. 

In terms of the provisions of SecƟon 197(12) of the Act read 
with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment 
and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a 
statement showing the names and other parƟculars of the 
employees drawing remuneraƟon in excess of the limits 
set out in the said rules are provided in the Annual Report, 
which forms part of this Report.

Having regard to the provisions of the first proviso to 
SecƟon 136(1) of the Act and as advised, the Annual Report 
excluding the aforesaid informaƟon is being sent to the 
members of the Company. The said informaƟon is available 
for inspecƟon at the corporate office of the Company during 
working hours and any member interested in obtaining 
such informaƟon may write to the Company Secretary and 
the same will be furnished on request.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement of SecƟon 134(3)(c) and 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to 
Directors’ Responsibility Statement, the Directors hereby 
confirm that:- 

(i) in the preparaƟon of the annual accounts for the year 
ended 31st March, 2016, the applicable accounƟng 
standards, have been followed and there are no 
material departures from the same;

(ii) the Directors have selected such accounƟng policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and esƟmates that are reasonable and prudent  so as 
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at the end of the financial year and of the 
loss of the Company for that period;

(iii) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care 
for the maintenance of adequate accounƟng records 
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
prevenƟng and detecƟng fraud and other irregulariƟes; 
and

(iv) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts of 
the Company on a ‘going concern’ basis.

(v) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls 
to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operaƟng 
effecƟvely.

(vi) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operaƟng 
effecƟvely.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A Report on Corporate Governance and Management 

Discussion and Analysis for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2016 is presented in separate secƟons forming part 
of the Annual Report.

CEO & CFO CERTIFICATION

As required by RegulaƟon 17(8) of the LisƟng RegulaƟons, 
the CEO & CFO cerƟficaƟon has been submiƩed to the 
Board and a copy thereof is contained elsewhere in this 
Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate 
with its size, requirement and the nature of operaƟons. 
The Company’s system of internal control has been 
designed to provide a reasonable assurance with regard 
to maintenance of proper accounƟng controls, monitoring 
of operaƟons, protecƟng assets from unauthorized use 
or losses, compliance with regulaƟons and for ensuring 
reliability of financial reporƟng. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has in place adequate financial controls 
commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its 
operaƟons. The Company has policies and procedures 
in place to properly and efficiently conduct its business, 
safeguard its assets, detect fraud and errors, maintain 
accuracy and completeness of accounƟng records and 
prepare financial records in a Ɵmely and reliable manner.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the LisƟng RegulaƟons, the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee evaluated the performance of all the Directors 
on parameters such as level of engagement, independence 
of judgement, contribuƟon to the strategic planning 
process, safeguarding the interest of the stakeholders, etc. 
and in context of the role played by them as a member of 
the Board at its meeƟngs, in assisƟng the Board in realising 
its role of strategic supervision of the funcƟoning of the 
Company.

The Independent Directors at their meeƟng held without 
the presence of Non- Independent Directors and members 
of the management, evaluated the performance of the 
Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole.

The Board, aŌer taking into consideraƟon the evaluaƟon 
exercise carried out by the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee and by the Independent Directors, carried 
out an evaluaƟon of its own performance and that of 
its CommiƩees and individual Directors. Structured 
quesƟonnaires covering various aspects of the Board’s 
funcƟoning such as adequacy of the composiƟon of the 
Board and its CommiƩees, Board culture, execuƟon and 
performance of specific duƟes, obligaƟons and governance, 
designed on the basis of the Company’s Board EvaluaƟon 
Policy and framework adopted by the Board were used for 
the purpose of carrying out the evaluaƟon process.

The Directors expressed their saƟsfacƟon over the 
evaluaƟon process and results thereof.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The composiƟon and terms of reference of the Audit 
CommiƩee has been furnished in the Corporate Governance 
Report forming a part of this Annual Report. There has 
been no instance where the Board has not accepted the 
recommendaƟons of the Audit CommiƩee.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The composiƟon and terms of reference of the NominaƟon 
and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee has been furnished in the 
Corporate Governance Report forming a part of this Annual 
Report. 

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The composiƟon and terms of reference of the Stakeholders 
RelaƟonship CommiƩee has been furnished in the 
Corporate Governance Report forming a part of this Annual 
Report. 

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Policy of the Company on Directors’ appointment 
and remuneraƟon, including criteria for determining 
qualificaƟons, posiƟve aƩributes, independence of a 
director and other maƩers provided under SecƟon 178(3) 
of Companies Act, 2013, is appended as “Annexure – 3” to 
this Report.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has formed a Whistle Blower Policy/ 
Vigil Mechanism as required under SecƟon 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and RegulaƟon 22 of the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons. A Vigil (Whistle Blower) mechanism provides 
a channel to the employees and Directors to report to the 
management concerns about unethical behavior, actual or 
suspected fraud or violaƟon of the Codes of Conduct or 
policy. The mechanism provides for adequate safeguards 
against vicƟmizaƟon of employees and Directors to avail of 
the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the 
Chairman of the Audit CommiƩee in excepƟonal cases. The 
said Policy may be referred to, at the Company’s website at 
the weblink www.emamirealty.com/code.php.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has a defined Risk Management framework 
to idenƟfy, assess, monitor and miƟgate various risks 
to key business objecƟves. Major risks idenƟfied by the 
businesses and funcƟons are systemaƟcally addressed 
through miƟgaƟng acƟons on a conƟnuing basis.

The Risk Management Policy provides for idenƟficaƟon of 
risk, its assessment and procedures to minimize risk. The 
Policy is periodically reviewed to ensure that the execuƟve 
management controls the risk as per decided Policy. 

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

Your Company is commiƩed to provide a work environment 
which ensures that every woman employee is treated with 
dignity, respect and equality. There is zero-tolerance towards 
sexual harassment and any act of sexual harassment invites 
serious disciplinary acƟon. 

The Company has established a Policy against Sexual 
Harassment for its employees. The Policy allows every 
employee to freely report any such act and prompt 
acƟon will be taken thereon. The Policy lays down severe 
punishment for any such act. Further, your Directors state 
that during the year under review, there was no case of 
sexual harassment reported to the Company pursuant 
to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(PrevenƟon, ProhibiƟon and Redressal) Act, 2013.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

Extract of the Annual Return as on the financial year ended 
31st March, 2016 in Form MGT 9 is annexed hereto as 
“Annexure - 4” and forms a part of this report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 
REGULATORS / COURTS / TRIBUNALS

There are no significant material orders passed by the 
Regulators / Courts/Tribunals which would impact the going 
concern status of the Company and its future operaƟons.

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, 
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNING & OUTGO 
A.    The operaƟ ons of the Company are not energy intensive 

as the Company is not engaged in any manufacturing 
acƟ vity and hence reporƟ ng under this does not arise.

B.    No technology has been developed and / or imported 
by way of foreign collaboraƟ on.

C.  During the year, foreign exchange infl ow was Nil and 
ouƞ low was ` 106.11/- Lacs (P.Y. - Nil).

TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION 
FUND (IEPF)

As on 31st March 2016, the balance lying in Unclaimed 
FracƟonal Share Sale Proceeds Account is ` 24,638/- which 
is due for transfer to the Investors EducaƟon and ProtecƟon 
Fund (IEPF) on 21st September 2017. 

Pursuant to the provisions of IEPF (Uploading of InformaƟon 
regarding Unpaid and Unclaimed Amounts lying with 
companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has uploaded the 
details of Unclaimed FracƟonal Share Sale Proceeds lying 
with the Company on the its website, as also on the website 
of Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

APPRECIATION

Your Directors wish to extend their thanks and appreciaƟon 
for the valuable and conƟnued support received from 
the Shareholders, Company’s Bankers, Central and State 
Government AuthoriƟes, Stock Exchange(s), Depositories 
and all other Business Associates for the growth of the 
organizaƟon.  

Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep 
appreciaƟon to all the employees for their commitment 
and conƟnued contribuƟon to the Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Kolkata Abhijit DaƩa
August 11, 2016 Chairman
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Annexure-1

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016
[Pursuant to secƟon 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the 
Rules and RegulaƟons made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

v) The RegulaƟons and Guidelines prescribed under the 
SecuriƟes & Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI 
Act”) or by SEBI, to the extent applicable:

 a) The SecuriƟes & Exchange Board of India 
(SubstanƟal AcquisiƟon of Shares and Takeover) 
RegulaƟons, 2011

 b) The SecuriƟes & Exchange Board of India 
(ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 2015

 c) The SecuriƟes & Exchange Board of India 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2009

 d) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Share 
Based Employee Benefits) RegulaƟons, 2014.

 e) The SecuriƟes & Exchange Board of India (Issue 
and LisƟng of Debt securiƟes) RegulaƟons, 2008

 f) The SecuriƟes & Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
RegulaƟons, 1993

 g) The SecuriƟes & Exchange Board of India 
(DelisƟng of Equity Shares) RegulaƟons, 2009

 h) The SecuriƟes & Exchange Board of India 
(Buyback of SecuriƟes) RegulaƟons, 1998

vi) Other than fiscal, labour and environmental laws 
which are generally applicable to all manufacturing/
trading companies, no other laws/acts are specifically 
applicable to the Company as there is no direct real 
estate project in the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the following:

a) Secretarial Standards issued by The InsƟtute of 

To
The Members,
EMAMI INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance 
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate pracƟces by EMAMI INFRASTRUCTURE 
LIMITED (hereinaŌer called “the Company”). Secretarial 
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 
reasonable basis for evaluaƟng the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

The Company’s Management is responsible for preparaƟon 
and maintenance of secretarial and other records and for 
devising proper systems to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of applicable laws and RegulaƟons. 

Based on our verificaƟon of the books, papers, minute 
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the informaƟon provided 
by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representaƟves during the conduct of secretarial audit, 
we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, 
during the audit period covering the financial year ended 
on 31st March, 2016 generally complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism 
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporƟng made hereinaŌer:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms 
and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016, 
to the extent applicable, according to the provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made 
thereunder;

ii) The SecuriƟes Contracts (RegulaƟon) Act, 1956 and 
Rules made thereunder; 

iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and RegulaƟons and Bye-
laws framed thereunder; 

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Company Secretaries of India. [Applicable from 1st 
July, 2015]

b) The LisƟng Agreements entered into by the Company 
with BSE Limited and NaƟonal Stock Exchange of 
India Limited and the provisions of the SecuriƟes 
and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons 
and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015. 
[Applicable from 1st December, 2015]

During the period under review the Company has generally 
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, RegulaƟons, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. menƟoned above. 

We further report that

a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly 
consƟtuted with proper balance of ExecuƟve 
Directors, Non-ExecuƟve Directors and Independent 
Directors. The changes in the composiƟon of the 
Board of Directors that took place during the period 
under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act.

b) Adequate noƟce is given to all directors to schedule 
the Board MeeƟngs, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, 
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 

informaƟon and clarificaƟons on the agenda items 
before the meeƟng and for meaningful parƟcipaƟon 
at the meeƟng.

c) None of the directors in any meeƟng dissented on 
any resoluƟon and hence there was no instance 
of recording any dissenƟng member’s view in the 
minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and 
processes in the Company commensurate with the size 
and operaƟons of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulaƟons and 
guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, a Scheme 
of AmalgamaƟon of Emami Realty Limited and Emami 
Rainbow Niketan Private Limited with the Company has 
been filed before the Hon’ble High Court at CalcuƩa, which 
is pending disposal. 

For MKB & Associates 
Company Secretaries

Saheb Ali
[Partner]

Date: 27th May, 2016  ACS no. 33361
Place: Kolkata  COP no. 12653
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Annexure-2

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES 
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

i) RaƟo of remuneraƟon of each Director to the median remuneraƟon of the Employees of the Company for the Financial 
Year 2015-16:

Sl. No. Name RaƟo
1 Mr. Girja Kumar Choudhary, Whole-Ɵme Director & CFO 12.62

ii) Percentage increase in remuneraƟon of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief ExecuƟve Officer, Company 
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the Financial Year 2015-16:

                                       (Rs. in Lacs)

Sl. 
No.

Name of the Director/KMP and DesignaƟon RemuneraƟon of 
Director/ KMP for FY 

2015-16

% increase in 
RemuneraƟon in the 

FY 2015-16
1 Mr. Girja Kumar Choudhary, Whole-Ɵme Director & CFO

         From Emami Infrastructure Limited
         From Emami Realty Limited   
         (AmalgamaƟng Company)

40.08
79.88

NIL
N.A.

Total 119.96
2 Ms. Payel Jain, Company Secretary 10.08 3.60
3 Mr. Rajesh Bansal, Whole-Ɵme Director w.e.f. 10.08.2015 in 

Emami Realty Limited (AmalgamaƟng Company)
11.54 N.A.

4 Mr. Sanjay Choudhary, Whole-Ɵme Director w.e.f. 01.04.2015 in 
Emami Realty Limited (AmalgamaƟng Company)

120.00 N.A.

5 Dr. Kalyanasundaram Ramamurthy, CEO w.e.f. 06.07.2015 in 
Emami Realty Limited (AmalgamaƟng Company)

129.88 N.A.

iii)  In terms of the Order of Hon’ble High Court at 
CalcuƩa dated 14th June, 2016 sancƟoning the 
Scheme of AmalgamaƟon of Emami Realty Limited 
and Emami Rainbow Niketan Private Limited 
(“Transferor Companies”) with the Company, all the 
employees of the Transferor Companies have become 
the employees of the Company and accordingly, the 
median remuneraƟon of the employees as above 
have been computed considering the employees 
of Transferor Companies as the Company’s own 
employees.

iv) Read with above, the following informaƟon are given 
with respect to the Company’s Employees :

 (a) Percentage increase in the median remuneraƟon 
of employees in the Financial Year 2015-16: The 
median remuneraƟon of the employees as on 

31st March, 2016 is Rs. 9.50 Lacs. The percentage 
increase in the median remuneraƟon is not 
applicable as on 31st March 2015, as there was 
no permanent employee on the rolls of the 
Company, other than managerial personnel/KMP.

 (b)  Number of permanent employees on the rolls of 
the Company as on 31st March, 2016: 59

 (c)  InformaƟon with respect to average percenƟle 
increase already made in the salaries of 
employees other than the managerial personnel 
in the last financial year is not applicable as 
explained in clause no. (iii) above.

v)  It is hereby affirmed that the remuneraƟon paid is 
as per the RemuneraƟon Policy for Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other Employees. 
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Annexure 3
REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES 

1. PREAMBLE

1.1 The remuneraƟ on policy provides a framework for 
remuneraƟ on paid to the members of the Board 
of Directors (“Board”), Key Managerial Personnel 
(“KMP”) and the Senior Management Personnel 
(“SMP”) of the Company (collecƟ vely referred to as 
“ExecuƟ ves”). The expression ‘‘senior management’’ 
means personnel of the company who are members 
of its core management team excluding Board of 
Directors comprising all members of management 
one level below the execuƟ ve directors, including the 
funcƟ onal heads.

2. AIMS & OBJECTIVES

2.1 The Company has formulated the remuneraƟ on policy 
for its directors, key managerial personnel and other 
employees keeping in view the following objecƟ ves:

2.1.1 Ensuring that the level and composiƟ on of 
remuneraƟ on is reasonable and suffi  cient to aƩ ract, 
retain and moƟ vate, to run the Company successfully.

2.1.2 Ensuring that relaƟ onship of remuneraƟ on to 
performance is clear and meets the performance 
benchmarks.

2.1.3 Ensuring that remuneraƟ on involves a balance 
between fi xed and incenƟ ve pay (if required) 
refl ecƟ ng short and long term performance objecƟ ves 
appropriate to the working of the Company and its 
goals.

3 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

3.1 Members of the CommiƩ ee shall be appointed by 
the Board and shall comprise of three or more non-
execuƟ ve directors out of which not less than one-
half shall be independent directors.

3.2 The CommiƩ ee shall be responsible for:

3.2.1 FormulaƟ on of the criteria for determining 
qualifi caƟ ons, posiƟ ve aƩ ributes and independence 
of a director and recommend to the board of directors 
a policy relaƟ ng to, the remuneraƟ on of the directors, 
key managerial personnel and other employees;

3.2.2 FormulaƟ on of criteria for evaluaƟ on of performance 
of independent directors and the board of directors;

3.2.3 Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

3.2.4 IdenƟ fying persons who are qualifi ed to become 
directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid 
down, and recommend to the board of directors their 
appointment and removal.

3.2.5 Whether to extend or conƟ nue the term of 
appointment of the independent director, on the 
basis of the report of performance evaluaƟ on of 
independent directors.

3.2.6 To carry out any other funcƟ on as is mandated by 
the Board from Ɵ me to Ɵ me and / or enforced by 
any statutory noƟ fi caƟ on or modifi caƟ on as may be 
applicable

4 POLICY FOR REMUNERATION

4.1 RemuneraƟ on to ExecuƟ ve Directors & KMP:

4.1.1 The Company has a credible and transparent 
framework in determining the remuneraƟ on of the 
Managing Director / Whole Time Directors (MD/
WTDs), Key Managerial Personnel(s) (KMPs) and 
Senior Management Personnel(s) (SMPs). Their 
remuneraƟ on shall be governed by the external 
compeƟ Ɵ ve environment, track record, potenƟ al, 
individual performance and performance of the 
company as well as industry standards.

4.1.2 The Board, on the recommendaƟ on of the NominaƟ on 
& RemuneraƟ on (NR) CommiƩ ee, shall review and 
approve the remuneraƟ on payable to the ExecuƟ ve 
Directors of the Company within the overall limits 
approved by the shareholders.

4.1.3 The remuneraƟ on of non-board KMPs and SMPs will 
be decided by the MD/WTD, as the case may be and 
will be placed before the CommiƩ ee in its meeƟ ng 
held next aŌ er such revision. 

4.2 RemuneraƟ on to Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors: 

4.2.1The Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors shall be enƟ tled to siƫ  ng 
fees for aƩ ending the meeƟ ngs of the Board and 
the CommiƩ ees thereof. Beside the siƫ  ng fees they 
are also enƟ tled to reimbursement of expenses for 
aƩ ending meeƟ ngs. The Non-execuƟ ve Directors of 
the Company are not paid any other remuneraƟ on 
or commission. The siƫ  ng fees of the Non-execuƟ ve 
Directors for aƩ ending meeƟ ngs of Board of Directors 
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and the CommiƩ ees of Board of Directors may be 
modifi ed from Ɵ me to Ɵ me only with the approval 
of the Board in due compliance of the provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013.

4.2.2 As a policy, the ExecuƟ ve Directors are neither paid 
siƫ  ng fee nor any commission.

4.3 RemuneraƟ on to other employees

4.3.1 Employees shall be assigned grades according to their 
qualifi caƟ ons and work experience, competencies 
as well as their roles and responsibiliƟ es in the 
organizaƟ on. Individual remuneraƟ on shall be 
determined within the appropriate grade and shall be 
based on various factors such as job profi le, skill sets, 
seniority, experience and prevailing remuneraƟ on 
levels for equivalent jobs.

5 POLICY FOR SELECTION OF DIRECTORS AND 
DETERMINING DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE 

Qualifi caƟ ons and criteria

5.1 The NR CommiƩ ee, and the Board, shall review on an 
annual basis, appropriate skills, characterisƟ cs and 
experience required of the Board as a whole and its 
individual members. The objecƟ ve is to have a Board 
with diverse background and experience in areas that 
are relevant to the Company’s operaƟ ons.

5.2 In evaluaƟ ng the suitability of individual Board 
members, the CommiƩ ee takes into account many 
factors, such as:

5.2.1 general understanding of the Company’s business 
dynamics, global business and social perspecƟ ve, 

5.2.2 educaƟ onal and professional background and 
personal achievements

5.2.3 professional ethics, integrity and values 

5.2.4 ability to balance the legiƟ mate interest and concerns 
of all the Company’s stakeholders in arriving at 
decisions 

5.2.5 willingness to devote suffi  cient Ɵ me and energy 
in carrying out their duƟ es and responsibiliƟ es 
eff ecƟ vely

5.3 The proposed appointee shall also fulfi ll the following 
requirements:

5.3.1 Shall possess a Director IdenƟ fi caƟ on Number;

5.3.2 Shall not be disqualifi ed under the Companies Act, 
2013;

5.3.3 Shall give his wriƩ en consent to act as a Director;

5.3.4 Shall endeavour to aƩ end all Board MeeƟ ngs and 
wherever he is appointed as a CommiƩ ee Member, 
the CommiƩ ee MeeƟ ngs;

5.3.5 Shall abide by the Code of Conduct established by 
the Company for Directors and Senior Management 
Personnel;

5.3.6 Shall disclose his concern or interest in any company 
or companies or bodies corporate, fi rms, or other 
associaƟ on of individuals including his shareholding 
at the fi rst meeƟ ng of the Board in every fi nancial 
year and thereaŌ er whenever there is a change in the 
disclosures already made;

5.3.7 Such other requirements as may be prescribed, from 
Ɵ me to Ɵ me, under the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI 
(LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟ ons, 2015 and other relevant laws.

5.4 The NR CommiƩ ee shall evaluate each individual with 
the objecƟ ve of having a group that best enables the 
success of the Company’s business. 

Criteria of Independence

5.5 The NR CommiƩ ee shall assess the independence of 
Directors at the Ɵ me of appointment / re-appointment 
and the Board shall assess the same annually. The 
Board shall re-assess determinaƟ ons of independence 
when any new interests or relaƟ onships are disclosed 
by a Director. 

5.6 The criteria of independence as laid down in 
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons 
and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟ ons 2015, shall 
be applied by the CommiƩ ee for their assessment. 

5.7 The Independent Directors shall abide by the “Code 
for Independent Directors” as specifi ed in Schedule IV 
to the Companies Act, 2013. 

Other directorships/commiƩ ee memberships:

5.8 The Board members are expected to have adequate 
Ɵ me and experƟ se and experience to contribute to 
eff ecƟ ve Board performance. Accordingly, members 
should voluntarily limit their directorships in other 
listed public limited companies in such a way that 
it does not interfere with their role as directors of 
the Company. The NR CommiƩ ee shall take into 
account the nature of, and the Ɵ me involved in a 
Director’s service on other Boards, in evaluaƟ ng the 



Board & Management Report

12 infrastructure limited

suitability of the individual Director and making its 
recommendaƟ ons to the Board.

5.9 A Director shall not serve as Director in more than 20 
companies of which not more than 10 shall be Public 
Limited Companies.

5.10 A Director shall not serve as an Independent Director 
in more than 7 Listed Companies and not more than 
3 Listed Companies in case he is serving as a Whole-
Ɵ me Director in any Listed Company.

5.11 A Director shall not be a member in more than 10 
CommiƩ ees or act as Chairman of more than 5 
CommiƩ ees across all companies in which he holds 
directorships.

5.12 For the purpose of considering the limit of the 
CommiƩ ee membership, Audit CommiƩ ee and 
Stakeholders’ RelaƟ onship CommiƩ ee of all Public 
Limited Companies, whether listed or not, shall 
be included and all other companies including 
Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and 
Companies under SecƟ on 8 of the Companies Act, 
2013 shall be excluded.

6 PROCEDURE FOR SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF 
EXECUTIVES OTHER THAN BOARD MEMBERS

6.1 The CommiƩ ee shall acƟ vely liaise with the 
relevant departments of the Company to study the 
requirement for management personnel;

6.2 The CommiƩ ee may conduct a wide-ranging search 
for candidates for the posiƟ ons of KMP and SMP 
within the Company, within enterprises controlled 
by the Company or within enterprises in which the 
Company holds equity, and on the human resources 
market; 

6.3 A meeƟ ng of the CommiƩ ee shall be convened, 
and the qualifi caƟ ons of the iniƟ al candidates shall 
be examined on the basis of the condiƟ ons for 
appointment of KMP and SMP; 

6.4 Before the selecƟ on of KMP or SMP, the 
recommendaƟ ons of and relevant informaƟ on on the 
relevant candidate(s) shall be submiƩ ed to the Board 
of Directors;

 The CommiƩ ee shall carry out other follow-up tasks 
based on the decisions of and feedback from the 
Board of Directors. 
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I.  REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN L45400WB2008PLC121426
ii) RegistraƟon Date 04-01-2008
iii) Name of the Company Emami Infrastructure Limited
iv) Category/ Sub-Category of the Company Public Company limited by Shares/

Indian Non-Government Company
v) Address of the Registered office and 

Contact Details
Emami Tower, 2nd Floor, 687 Anandapur, 
E. M. Bypass, Kolkata-700 107
Phone: 033 6613 6264
E-mail: infra@emamirealty.com
Website: www.emamirealty.com

vi) Whether listed company -Yes / No Yes
1. NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Limited
2. BSE Limited
3. The CalcuƩa Stock Exchange Limited

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar 
and Transfer Agent, if any

Maheshwari DatamaƟcs Pvt. Ltd.
6, Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor, 
Kolkata- 700 001
Phone: 033 2243 5809 / 5029
Email: mdpldc@yahoo.com

Annexure 4
Form No. MGT - 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended 31st March 2016

[Pursuant to secƟon 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of 
the Companies (Management and AdministraƟon) Rules, 2014]

II.    PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
       All the business acƟviƟes contribuƟng 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated :

Sl. 
No.

Name and DescripƟon of main products / services NIC Code of the
Product/ service

% to total turnover 
of the Company

1 ConstrucƟon & Real Estate Developement 4100 100

III.     PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl. 
No.

Name and Address of
the Company

CIN/GLN Holding/
Subsidiary/
Associate

% of 
shares
held

Applicable 
SecƟon

1 Emami Rainbow Niketan Private Limited*
Emami Tower, 2nd Floor, 687 Anandapur, 
E. M. Bypass, Kolkata- 700107

U45203WB1995PTC073386 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

2 Zandu Realty Limited
Emami Tower, 2nd Floor, 687 Anandapur, 
E. M. Bypass, Kolkata- 700107

L24239WB1919PLC136397 Associate** 35.51 2(6)

3 Emami Realty Limited*
Emami Tower, 2nd Floor, 687 Anandapur, 
E. M. Bypass, Kolkata- 700107

U45200WB2006PLC111894 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

4 Sneha Ashiana Private Limited
Emami Tower, 2nd Floor, 687 Anandapur, 
E. M. Bypass, Kolkata- 700107

U70101WB1996PTC081365 Subsidiary** 100 2(87)

5 New Age Realty Private Limited
Emami Tower, 2nd Floor, 687 Anandapur, 
E. M. Bypass, Kolkata- 700107

U70101WB2007PTC113240 Subsidiary** 60 2(87)



Board & Management Report

14 infrastructure limited

Sl. 
No.

Name and Address of
the Company

CIN/GLN Holding/
Subsidiary/
Associate

% of 
shares
held

Applicable 
SecƟon

6 Delta PV Private Limited
Emami Tower, 2nd Floor, 687 Anandapur, 
E. M. Bypass, Kolkata- 700107

U40106WB1994PTC064439 Subsidiary ** 55 2(87)

7 Roseview Developers Private Limited
Emami Tower, 2nd Floor, 687 Anandapur, 
E. M. Bypass, Kolkata- 700107

U51109WB2006PTC109662 Associate ** 50 2(6)

8 Prajay Urban Private Limited
ScoƟa Bank Building, 1st Floor
Road No. 1 , Banjara Hills
Hyderabad-500034

U45200TG2007PTC053279 Associate ** 50 2(6)

9 Bengal Emami Housing Limited
Emami Tower, 2nd Floor, 687 Anandapur, 
E. M. Bypass, Kolkata- 700107

U70109WB2009PLC134447 Associate ** 30 2(6)

10 Swanhousing & Infra Private Limited 
97A, Southern Avenue, Kolkata -700029

U70100WB2010PTC151403 Associate ** 33.66 2(6)

* Amalgamated with Emami Infrastructure Limited w.e.f. 22nd July, 2016 (Appointed Date - 1st April, 2015)
** Represents Subsidiaries/Associates of the AmalagamaƟng Companies

IV.   SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
(i)  Category-wise Share Holding

Sl.  No. Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year 
[01.04.2015]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 
[31.03.2016]

% Change 
During the 

Year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
(A) Promoters
(1) Indian
(a) Individual/HUF 7,96,913  –  7,96,913            3.28     7,96,913  – 7,96,913 3.28                   –   
(b) Central Govt  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 
(c) State Govt (s)  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 
(d) Bodies Corp.  1,33,10,427  –  1,33,10,427  54.78  1,33,10,427  –  1,33,10,427  54.78                   –   
(e) Banks / FI  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 
(f) Any Other  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Sub–total (A) (1)  1,41,07,340 –  1,41,07,340  58.06  1,41,07,340 –  1,41,07,340  58.06                   –   
(2) Foreign
(a) NRIs –Individuals          171  –          171            0.00           171  –   171 0.00                   –   
(b) Other – Indivituals  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 
(c) Bodies Corp.  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 
(d) Banks / FI  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 
(e) Any Other  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Sub–total (A) (2)            171 –       171            0.00      171 –    171 0.00                   –   
Total shareholding 
of Promoter (A) = (A)
(1)+(A)(2)

 1,41,07,511 –  1,41,07,511  58.06  1,41,07,511 –  1,41,07,511  58.06                   –   
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Sl.  No. Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year 
[01.04.2015]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 
[31.03.2016]

% Change 
During the 

Year
(B) Public Shareholding
1 InsƟtuƟons

(a) Mutual Funds  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 
(b) Banks / FI  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 
(c) Central Govt  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 
(d) State Govt(s)  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 
(e) Venture Capital 

Funds
 –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

(f) Insurance Companies  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 
(g) FIIs  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 
(h) Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds
 –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

(i) Others (specify)  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 
Sub–total (B)(1)  –               –       –                   –              –                    –        –      –                     –   

2 Non–InsƟtuƟons
(a) Bodies Corp.
(i) Indian  50,34,776  –   50,34,776  20.72  47,43,217 –  47,43,217  19.52  -1.20 
(ii) Overseas  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 
(b) Individuals
(i) Individual 

shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
up to Rs 1 lakh

 43,83,376  21,079  44,04,455  18.13  43,24,729  21,040  43,45,769  17.89  -0.24 

(ii) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal   share 
capital in excess of 
Rs. 1 lakh.

 6,93,930 –  6,93,930  2.86  10,02,906 –  10,02,906  4.13  1.27 

(c) Any Other (specify)
(c–i) Clearing Member  29,121  –  29,121            0.12  65,523  – 65,523 0.27   0.15 
(c–ii) Non Resident 

individual
28,599 –   28,599            0.12     28,666 – 28,666  0.12 –

(c–iii) NBFCs registered 
with RBI

 –  –  –  –             4,800  – 4,800                0.02     0.02 

Sub–total (B)(2)  1,01,69,802  21,079  1,01,90,881  41.94  1,01,69,841  21,040  1,01,90,881  41.94 –
Total         Public 
Shareholding (B)= 
(B)(1)+(B)(2)

 1,01,69,802  21,079  1,01,90,881  41.94  1,01,69,841  21,040  1,01,90,881  41.94 –

(C) Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs 
& ADRs

           –   –         –                   –          –   –        –        –     –   

Grand Total (A+B+C)  2,42,77,313  21,079  2,42,98,392  100.00  2,42,77,352  21,040  2,42,98,392  100.00 –
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(ii)   Shareholding of Promoters
Sl. 

No.
Shareholder's Name  Shareholding at the 

beginning of the Year 
 Shareholding at the 

end of the Year 
% change 
in share 
holding 
during 

the Year 

 No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

 No. of 
Shares 

 % of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company 

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

1 Diwakar Viniyog Private Limited  34,12,491 14.0441                       -    34,12,491 14.0441            -    -   
2 Suntrack Commerce Private Limited  29,84,237 12.2816                       -    29,84,237 12.2816            -    -   
3 Bhanu Vyapaar Private Limited  27,78,899 11.4366                       -    27,78,899 11.4366            -    -   
4 Emami Enclave Makers Pvt Ltd  14,11,000   5.8070                       -    14,11,000   5.8070            -    -   
5 Emami High Rise Pvt Ltd  13,92,000 5.7288                       -    13,92,000 5.7288            -    -   
6 Suraj Viniyog Private Limited  12,94,491 5.3275                       -    12,94,491   5.3275            -    -   
7 PriƟ Sureka  4,37,758 1.8016                       -    4,37,758 1.8016            -    -   
8 Prashant Goenka  40,366  0.1661                       -    40,366 0.1661            -    -   
9 Sushil Kumar Goenka  40,166  0.1653                       -    40,166 0.1653            -    -   
10 Manish Goenka  40,122   0.1651                       -    40,122 0.1651            -    -   
11 Ashish Goenka  40,000 0.1646                       -    40,000 0.1646            -    -   
12 TMT Viniyogan Limited  35,303    0.1453                       -    35,303 0.1453            -    -   
13 Rohin Raj Sureka  33,333      0.1372                       -    33,333 0.1372            -    -   
14 Vidisha Agarwal  26,666 0.1097                       -    26,666 0.1097            -    -   
15 Vidula Agarwal  26,666   0.1097                       -    26,666   0.1097            -    -   
16 Mohan Goenka  25,716 0.1058                       -    25,716  0.1058            -    -   
17 Aditya Vardhan Agarwal  22,099 0.0909                       -    22,099 0.0909            -    -   
18 Sobhna  Agarwal  20,000  0.0823                       -    20,000      0.0823            -    -   
19 Savitri Devi Agarwal  14,269 0.0587                       -    14,269 0.0587            -    -   
20 Harsha Vardhan Agarwal  8,685 0.0357                       -    8,685 0.0357            -    -   
21 Usha Agarwal  3,942    0.0162                       -    3,942       0.0162            -    -   
22 Madan Lal Agarwal  3,333  0.0137                       -    3,333 0.0137            -    -   
23 Santosh Goenka  2,999   0.0123                       -    2,999 0.0123            -    -   
24 Kusum  Agarwal  2,266 0.0093                       -    2,266 0.0093            -    -   
25 Laxmi Devi Bajoria  1,666 0.0069                       -    1,666     0.0069            -    -   
26 Abhishek Agarwal  1,333 0.0055                       -    1,333      0.0055            -    -   
27 Emami Paper Mills Ltd  833 0.0034                       -    833 0.0034            -    -   
28 Rajkumar Goenka  749 0.0031                       -    749 0.0031            -    -   
29 Radheshyam Goenka  748 0.0031                       -    748     0.0031            -    -   
30 Suresh Kumar Goenka  483 0.0020                       -    483  0.0020            -    -   
31 Meena Goenka  400 0.0016                       -    400   0.0016            -    -   
32 Pan Emami Cosmed Ltd  388 0.0016                       -    388 0.0016            -    -   
33 Mansi Agarwal  333 0.0014                       -    333 0.0014            -    -   
34 Emami Frank Ross Limited  333         0.0014                       -    333 0.0014            -    -   
35 JyoƟ Goenka  333 0.0014                       -    333  0.0014            -    -   
36 Avishi Sureka  333 0.0014                       -    333 0.0014            -    -   
37 Emami Capital Markets Limited  286 0.0012                       -    286 0.0012 -   -   
38 ShanƟ Devi Agarwal  237 0.0010                       -    237 0.0010 -   -   
39 Amitabh Goenka  171 0.0007                       -    171 0.0007   -   -   
40 Saroj Goenka  166 0.0007                       -    166 0.0007    -   -   
41 Indu Goenka  166 0.0007                       -    166 0.0007 -   -   
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Sl. 
No.

Shareholder's Name  Shareholding at the 
beginning of the Year 

 Shareholding at the 
end of the Year 

% change 
in share 
holding 
during 

the Year 

 No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

 No. of 
Shares 

 % of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company 

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

42 EPL SecuriƟes Ltd  166 0.0007                       -    166 0.0007 -   -   
43 Rashmi Goenka  166 0.0007                       -    166 0.0007 -   -   
44 Richa Agarwal  166 0.0007                       -    166 0.0007 -   -   
45 Nimisha Goenka  166 0.0007                       -    166 0.0007 -   -   
46 Shreya Goenka  166 0.0007                       -    166 0.0007 -   -   
47 Radheshyam Agarwal  166 0.0007                       -    166 0.0007 -   -   
48 Saswat Goenka  166 0.0007                       -    166 0.0007 -   -   
49 Sachin Goenka  133 0.0005                       -    133 0.0005 -   -   
50 Yogesh Goenka  133 0.0005                       -    133 0.0005 -   -   
51 Puja Goenka  111 0.0005                       -    111 0.0005 -   -   
52 Vibhash Vardhan Agarwal  104 0.0004                       -    104 0.0004 -   -   
53 Jayant Goenka  103 0.0004                       -    103 0.0004 -   -   

Total 1,41,07,511 58.0594                       -    1,41,07,511 58.0594  -   -   

(iii)    Change in Promoters’ Shareholding

Sl. 
No.

Name  Shareholding  at the 
beginning of the year 

 CumulaƟve Shareholding 
during the year 

 No. of shares at 
the beginning /
end of the year 

 % of total shares 
of the Company 

 No. of shares  % of total shares 
of the Company 

1 At the beginning of the year  1,41,07,511 58.06  1,41,07,511 58.06
Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Promoters Share 
holding during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc)

 No change in Shareholding during the year 

At the end of the year  1,41,07,511 58.06  1,41,07,511                      58.06 

(iv)  Shareholding PaƩern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Sl. 
No.

Name  Shareholding  Date  Increase/ 
(Decrease) in 
shareholding 

Reasons  CumulaƟve Shareholding 
during the year 

 No. of Shares 
at the beginning 
/end of the year 

 % of total 
Shares of the 

Company 

 No. of 
Shares 

 % of total 
Shares of the 

Company 
1 East India SecuriƟes Limited 10,75,000         4.42 01.04.2015

30.09.2015 100 Transfer 10,75,100               4.42 
09.10.2015 (100) Transfer 10,75,000               4.42 

10,75,000 4.42 31.03.2016
2 LSI Financial Services (P) 

Limited
10,00,000 4.12 01.04.2015
10,00,000 4.12 31.03.2016  No Change 

3 Neoworth Commercial 
Private Limited

8,00,000 3.29 01.04.2015
8,00,000 3.29 31.03.2016  No Change  

4 GanpaƟ Industrial Private 
Limited 

4,00,000 1.65 01.04.2015
4,00,000 1.65 31.03.2016 No Change
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Sl. 
No.

Name  Shareholding  Date  Increase/ 
(Decrease) in 
shareholding 

Reasons  CumulaƟve Shareholding 
during the year 

 No. of Shares 
at the beginning 
/end of the year 

 % of total 
Shares of the 

Company 

 No. of 
Shares 

 % of total 
Shares of the 

Company 
5 Kailash Sahebrao Katkar 1,49,767 0.62 01.04.2015

18.03.2016          50,233 Transfer 2,00,000               0.82 
2,00,000 0.82 31.03.2016

6 Anand Rathi* 70,855 0.29 01.04.2015 
29.05.2015     24,798 Transfer 95,653               0.39 
30.06.2015         32,863 Transfer 1,28,516               0.53 
30.10.2015      14,290 Transfer 1,42,806               0.59 
31.12.2015        5,684 Transfer 1,48,490               0.61 
08.01.2016            9,593 Transfer 1,58,083               0.65 
22.01.2016       13,953 Transfer 1,72,036               0.71 
19.02.2016          12,698 Transfer 1,84,734               0.76 
11.03.2016      5,150 Transfer 1,89,884               0.78 

1,89,884    0.78 31.03.2016
7 Sunita Biyani 1,33,583 0.55 01.04.2015

10.04.2015     1,788 Transfer 1,35,371               0.56 
17.04.2015     1,000 Transfer 1,36,371               0.56 
01.05.2015         666 Transfer 1,37,037               0.56 
12.06.2015     1,000 Transfer 1,38,037               0.57 
26.06.2015       2,100 Transfer 1,40,137               0.58 
30.06.2015   500 Transfer 1,40,637               0.58 
03.07.2015        2,500 Transfer 1,43,137               0.59 
10.07.2015    1,500 Transfer 1,44,637               0.60 
30.09.2015        3,691 Transfer 1,48,328               0.61 
09.10.2015   2,009 Transfer 1,50,337               0.62 
16.10.2015  1,000 Transfer 1,51,337               0.62 
23.10.2015 5,500 Transfer 1,56,837               0.65 
06.11.2015      200 Transfer 1,57,037               0.65 
13.11.2015      500 Transfer 1,57,537               0.65 
20.11.2015    1,036 Transfer 1,58,573               0.65 

1,58,573    0.65 31.03.2016
8 Anand Rathi Share & Stock 

Brokers Limited
  1,43,159 0.59 01.04.2015 (845) Transfer 1,42,314               0.59 

10.04.2015 745 Transfer 1,43,059               0.59 
17.04.2015 (364) Transfer 1,42,695               0.59 
24.04.2015 (650) Transfer 1,42,045               0.58 
01.05.2015 7,926 Transfer 1,49,971               0.62 
08.05.2015 1,914 Transfer 1,51,885               0.63 
15.05.2015 14,872 Transfer 1,66,757               0.69 
22.05.2015 (24,798) Transfer 1,41,959               0.58 
29.05.2015 27,863 Transfer 1,69,822               0.70 
05.06.2015 5,000 Transfer 1,74,822               0.72 
12.06.2015 375 Transfer 1,75,197               0.72 
19.06.2015 (375) Transfer 1,74,822               0.72 
26.06.2015 (32,763) Transfer 1,42,059               0.58 
30.06.2016 (100) Transfer 1,41,959               0.58 
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Sl. 
No.

Name  Shareholding  Date  Increase/ 
(Decrease) in 
shareholding 

Reasons  CumulaƟve Shareholding 
during the year 

 No. of Shares 
at the beginning 
/end of the year 

 % of total 
Shares of the 

Company 

 No. of 
Shares 

 % of total 
Shares of the 

Company 
03.07.2015 116 Transfer 1,42,075               0.58 
10.07.2015 1,423 Transfer 1,43,498               0.59 
17.07.2015 35,360 Transfer 1,78,858               0.74 
24.07.2015 (983) Transfer 1,77,875               0.73 
31.07.2015 (786) Transfer 1,77,089               0.73 
07.08.2015 (35,130) Transfer 1,41,959               0.58 
14.08.2015 2,100 Transfer 1,44,059               0.59 
21.08.2015 700 Transfer 1,44,759               0.60 
28.08.2015 (2,200) Transfer 1,42,559               0.59 
04.09.2015 608 Transfer 1,43,167               0.59 
11.09.2015 (800) Transfer 1,42,367               0.59 
18.09.2015 (408) Transfer 1,41,959               0.58 
30.09.2015 60 Transfer 1,42,019               0.58 
16.10.2015 (972) Transfer 1,41,047               0.58 
23.10.2015 45 Transfer 1,41,092               0.58 
30.10.2015 113 Transfer 1,41,205               0.58 
06.11.2015 3,436 Transfer 1,44,641               0.60 
13.11.2015 (217) Transfer 1,44,424               0.59 
20.11.2015 (781) Transfer 1,43,643               0.59 
27.11.2015 500 Transfer 1,44,143               0.59 
04.12.2015 (500) Transfer 1,43,643               0.59 
11.12.2015 (5,684) Transfer 1,37,959               0.57 
31.12.2015 556 Transfer 1,38,515               0.57 
08.01.2016 3,620 Transfer 1,42,135               0.58 
22.01.2016 3,010 Transfer 1,45,145               0.60 
29.01.2016 (36) Transfer 1,45,109               0.60 
05.02.2016 (1,845) Transfer 1,43,264               0.59 
19.02.2016 (5,154) Transfer 1,38,110               0.57 
11.03.2016 2,273 Transfer 1,40,383               0.58 
18.03.2016 (2,273) Transfer 1,38,110               0.57 
25.03.2016 490 Transfer 1,38,600               0.57 

1,38,600 0.57 31.03.2016
9 Sanjay Katkar   1,25,302 0.52 01.04.2015

22.05.2015       5,350 Transfer 1,30,652               0.54 
  1,30,652 0.54 31.03.2016

10 RG Texknit Private Limited 1,05,638 0.43 01.04.2015
1,05,638 0.43 31.03.2016 No Change

11 Harihar SecuriƟes Private 
Limited #

1,19,000 0.49 01.04.2015
10.04.2015 1,000 Transfer 1,20,000               0.49 
17.04.2015 (1,000) Transfer 1,19,000               0.49 
26.06.2015 (1,000) Transfer 1,18,000               0.49 
24.07.2015 (16,000) Transfer 1,02,000               0.42 
31.07.2015 (10,000) Transfer 92,000               0.38 
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Sl. 
No.

Name  Shareholding  Date  Increase/ 
(Decrease) in 
shareholding 

Reasons  CumulaƟve Shareholding 
during the year 

 No. of Shares 
at the beginning 
/end of the year 

 % of total 
Shares of the 

Company 

 No. of 
Shares 

 % of total 
Shares of the 

Company 
07.08.2015 (10,000) Transfer 82,000               0.34 
14.08.2015 (20,000) Transfer 62,000               0.26 
04.09.2015 200 Transfer 62,200               0.26 
04.12.2015 (200) Transfer 62,000               0.26 
11.12.2015 (2,000) Transfer 60,000               0.25 

60,000 0.25 31.03.2016

* Not in the List of Top 10 shareholders as on 01-04-2015. The same has been reflected above since the shareholder was one of the Top 
10 shareholders as on 31-03-2016.        

# Ceased to be in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on 31-03-2016. The same is reflected above since the shareholder was one of the Top 
10 shareholders as on 01-04-2015.         

(v)   Shareholding of directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

Sl. 
No.

Name  Shareholding  at the 
beginning of the year 

 CumulaƟve Shareholding 
during the year 

For Each of the Directors and KMP No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

At the beginning of the year  -    -    -    -   
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share holding 
during the year specifying the reasons for increase 
/ decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat 
equity etc):

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
hold Shares in the Company

At the End of the year  -    -    -    -   
    
V.    INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment                        (` in Lacs)

Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtness

Indebtedness at the beginning of 
the financial year
i)  Principal Amount – – – –
ii)  Interest due but not paid – – – –
iii)  Interest accrued but not due – – – –
Total (i+ii+iii) – – – –
Change in Indebtedness during 
the Financial Year
•  AddiƟon  32,801.75  90,821.27 –  1,23,623.02 

•  ReducƟon  –    –    –    –   
Net Change  32,801.75  90,821.27  –    1,23,623.02 
Indebtedness at the end of the 
Financial Year
i)  Principal Amount  32,645.37  84,720.11  –  1,17,365.48 
ii)  Interest due but not paid  –    –  –  –   
iii)  Interest accrued but not due  156.38  6,101.16  –  6,257.54 

Total (i+ii+iii)  32,801.75  90,821.27  –    1,23,623.02 
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VI.   REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A.  RemuneraƟon to Managing Director, Whole-Ɵme Directors and/or Manager:                                                    (` in Lacs)

Sl. 
No.

ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total
Mr. Girja Kumar Choudhary (WTD & CFO)

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in secƟon 

17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
111.04#        111.04

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 
1961

-                  -   

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under secƟon 17(3) 
Income-tax Act, 1961

-                  -   

2 Stock OpƟon -                  -   
3 Sweat Equity -                  -   
4 Commission -                  -   

- as % of profit -                  -   
- others, specify… -                  -   

5 Others, please specify -                  -   
Total (A) 111.04#        111.04 
Ceiling as per the Act 127.10

# Includes ` 75.20 Lacs from Emami Realty Limited, the amalgamaƟng Company.

Note : The above remuneraƟon is as per Income Tax Act, 1961 and exclude contribuƟon by the Company to Provident Fund and other 
annuity fund.

B.  RemuneraƟon to other Directors:                                                                                                                                    (` in Lacs)
Sl. 
No.

ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon Name of Directors

1 Independent Directors Mr. Abhijit DaƩa Mr. Hari Mohan 
Marda

Mrs. Karabi 
Sengupta

Mr. Ram Gobind 
Ganeriwala

Total 
Amount

Fee for aƩending board / commiƩee 
MeeƟngs

         0.23           0.45          0.33          0.97* 1.98 

Commission  –  –  –  –  – 
Others, please specify  –  –  –  –  – 
Total (1)          0.23           0.45          0.33          0.97 1.98

2 Other Non-ExecuƟve Director Mr. Basant Kumar 
Parakh

Fee for aƩending board / commiƩee 
MeeƟngs

         0.74** – – – 0.74

Commission  – – – – –
Others, please specify  – – – – –
Total (2)          0.74 – – – 0.74
Total (B)=(1+2) – – – – 2.72 
Total Managerial RemuneraƟon – – – – 113.76 
Overall Ceiling as per the Act Not Applicable as only siƫng fees have been paid, which is well within the limits prescribed under 

the Companies Act, 2013
*  Includes ` 0.49 Lacs from Emami Realty Limited, the amalgamaƟng Company.
**  Includes ` 0.46 Lacs from Emami Realty Limited, the amalgamaƟng Company.
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C.      RemuneraƟon to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/MANAGER/WTD-                                                                                  (` in Lacs)
Sl. 

No.
ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon Key Managerial Personnel

Ms. Payel Jain
(Company 
Secretary)

Mr. Rajesh 
Bansal*

Mr. Sanjay 
Choudhary*

Dr. K 
Ramamurthy*

Total

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in secƟon 17(1) of the 

Income-tax Act, 1961
       10.08       11.54     120.00      129.88        271.50 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961                -                 -                 -                  -                    -   
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under secƟon 17(3) Income-tax 

Act, 1961
               -                 -                 -                  -                    -   

2 Stock OpƟon                -                 -                 -                  -                    -   
3 Sweat Equity                -                 -                 -                  -                    -   
4 Commission                -                 -                 -                  -                    -   

- as % of profit                -                 -                 -                  -                    -   
- others, specify…                -                 -                 -                  -                    -   

5 Others, please specify                -                 -                 -                  -                    -   
Total (A)        10.08       11.54     120.00      129.88        271.50 

* The above persons were whole-Ɵme Director, whole-Ɵme Director and CEO respecƟvely of Emami Realty Limited, since amalagamated 
with the Company.

VII.  PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 
Type SecƟon 

of the 
Companies 

Act

Brief 
DescripƟon

Details of Penalty/ 
Punishment/ 

Compounding fees 
imposed

Authority 
(RD/ NCLT/ 

COURT)

Appeal made, 
if any (give 

Details)

A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN 
     DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

Nil



Annual Report 2015-16

Directors’ Report Annexure to the Directors’ Report Management Discussion & Analysis Corporate Governance

23

Industry Structure and Developments

According to the Economic Survey 2015-16, real estate 
sector consƟ tuted 7.4 percent of India’s GDP in 2014-15. 
Both domesƟ c and global slowdown aff ected the sector, 
with growth deceleraƟ ng from 4.4 percent in 2014-15 to 
3.7 percent in 2015-16. The overall performance of the 
sector conƟ nued to remain subdued and the Company 
remained exposed to sector specifi c and broad based 
economic challenges in the fi nancial year 2015-16. Demand 
for residenƟ al real estate segment was muted in almost all 
markets across the country.

Government policies have been instrumental in providing 
support to the real estate sector that suff ered much pain 
in the past two years and is now moving towards a more 
raƟ onal regime where developers are now focusing on 
project execuƟ on and delivery. Indian real estate sector 
has been sluggish for a few years but is expected to make 
a turnaround in the near future. Experts believe that 
the sector is now expected to record increase in sales 
and a reducƟ on in unsold inventories. They believe the 
government iniƟ aƟ ves announced this year will give a push 
to the sector and reinstate investor confi dence, thereby 
off ering the much-needed growth impetus to the real 
estate sector. The year will also see the sector moving from 
an investor-driven to an end-user driven cycle.

Emergence of nuclear families, rapid urbanisaƟ on and 
rising household income are likely to remain the key drivers 
for growth in all spheres of real estate, including residenƟ al, 
commercial and retail. The Indian real estate market size is 
expected to touch US$ 180 billion by 2020. 

India is slowly being posiƟ oned as a global investment 
desƟ naƟ on. In terms of Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) 
infl ows, real estate is currently the fourth-largest sector in 
the country. According to data released by Department of 
Industrial Policy and PromoƟ on (DIPP), the construcƟ on 
development sector in India has received Foreign Direct 
Investment (FDI) equity infl ows to the tune of US$ 24.156 
billion in the period April 2000-September 2015. The 
Government has also raised FDI limits for townships and 
seƩ lements development projects to 100 percent. Real 
estate projects within the Special Economic Zone (SEZ) 
are also permiƩ ed 100 percent  FDI. In August 2015, the 
Union Cabinet approved 100 Smart City Projects in India. 
The Government is focused on working to deliver on its 
promise of ‘Housing for All’ by 2022. In Union Budget 2015-
16, the government allocated US$ 3.72 billion for housing 
and urban development.

The policy announcements and reforms to revive the 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
sector such as government’s easing of FDI policy, the 
implementaƟ on of the Real Estate (RegulaƟ on and 
Development) Act, 2016 and Smart CiƟ es, and the 
exempƟ on of dividend distribuƟ on tax from the business 
trust, direct and indirect tax benefi ts for aff ordable housing 
projects have helped in generaƟ ng a posiƟ ve outlook for 
the sector. 

OpportuniƟ es 

Much awaited, the Government has noƟ fi ed the Real 
Estate (RegulaƟ on and Development) Act, 2016 and that 
has created a posiƟ ve environment for growth of this 
industry. Certainly this will usher relief to such aggrieved 
and helpless buyers whose moneys are stuck in pre-
launch booking as the Act has mandated the developers 
to launch the project only aŌ er all approvals are in place. 
This will help the real estate industry to grow in business-
like environment and will benefi t both the buyers and the 
developers in a regulated manner.

Further, increase in disposable incomes, rapid urbanizaƟ on 
and strong demographics will help the residenƟ al segment 
to further improve by creaƟ ng more demand from the mid 
income consumers. 

Threats and Challenges

Unfavourable changes in government policies and 
the regulatory environment can adversely impact the 
performance of the sector.

The Real Estate (RegulaƟ on and Development) Act, 
2016 has not catered to single window clearance for the 
projects. Therefore, delay in obtaining various approvals 
may pose a serious halter in the growth of the real estate 
industry even aŌ er slew of various iniƟ aƟ ves undertaken 
by the Government. Further, economic slowdown may also 
impact the growth of the real estate sector.

Discussion on fi nancial performance with respect to 
operaƟ onal performance and Outlook

The Scheme of Arrangement for AmalgamaƟ on of the 
wholly-owned subsidiary companies viz. Emami Realty 
Limited (“ERL”) and Emami Rainbow Niketan Private 
Limited (“ERNPL”) with the Company was approved by the 
Hon’ble High Court at CalcuƩ a vide its Order dated 14th 
June, 2016. The cerƟ fi ed copy of the said Order was fi led 
with the offi  ce of Registrar of Companies on 22nd July, 2016 
and accordingly, the Scheme have become operaƟ ve with 
eff ect from the Appointed Date i.e., 1st April, 2015. 

Your Directors are pleased to inform that our Project 
‘Emami City’ is ahead of delivery schedule and we are very 
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confi dent that the delivery of apartments to the customers 
will be well in advance. 

In respect of our Chennai Project ‘Emami Tejomaya’, your 
Company has awarded the construcƟ on contract to Larsen 
& Tourbo Limited, to ensure best possible quality of service. 
We have also aligned the size of units in order to suit the 
fi nancial reach of individual customers. Our Project has 
received good response from the customers.

The consolidated revenue of your Company for the year 

ended 31st March, 2016 is ` 32,763.07 Lacs and Loss 
aŌ er Tax is ` 423.98 Lacs as compared to the consolidated 
revenue and Profi t aŌ er Tax for the previous year, of 
` 7,295.50 Lacs and ̀  1,227.22 Lacs respecƟ vely, mainly due 
to unsold stock lying with one of the Associate Company 
due to poor market condiƟ ons. 

The highlights of performance of subsidiaries & associate 
companies and their contribuƟ on to the overall 
performance of the Company during the period under 
review, is tabulated below:

Risks and concerns

This real estate market is inherently a cyclical market 
and is aff ected by macroeconomic condiƟ ons, changes in 
applicable governmental schemes, changes in supply and 
demand for projects, availability of consumer fi nancing 
and liquidity. However, your Company has taken necessary 
steps to tackle these risks appropriately.

Internal control systems and their adequacy

Our internal control systems are adequate and provide, 
among other things, reasonable assurance of recording 
transacƟ ons of operaƟ ons in all material respects and 
of providing protecƟ on against misuse or losses from 
unauthorized use or disposiƟ on.

ParƟ culars Turnover Profi t / (Loss) 
AŌ er Tax

Profi t / Loss 
considered in 
consolidaƟ on

Networth aƩ ributable to 
Equity Shareholders as 
on 31.03.2016

Subsidiaries
Sneha Ashiana Pvt. Ltd. - (0.57) (0.57) (22.35)
Delta PV Pvt. Ltd. - 0.01 0.006 9.67
New Age Realty Pvt. Ltd. - (246.00) (147.60) (523.71)
Associates
Zandu Realty Limited 866.79 704.91 250.31 6485.19
Roseview Developers Pvt. Ltd. - (0.16) (0.08) (2.86)
Prajay Urban Pvt. Ltd. - (0.41) (0.20) (1.02)
Bengal Emami Housing Limited - (2.66) (0.80) 1.54
Swanhousing & Infra Pvt. Ltd. - 2.75 0.93 69.02

Human Resource and Industrial RelaƟ on

Your Company’s business is managed by a team of 
competent and passionate leaders, capable of enhancing 
your Company’s standing in the sector.

CauƟ onary Statement

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report may 
contain certain statements that might be considered 
forward looking. These statements are subject to certain 
risks and uncertainƟ es. Actual results may diff er materially 
from these expressed in the statement as external 
factors like Government policies, poliƟ cal and economic 
development, risk inherent to the sector could infl uence 
the Company’s operaƟ ons.
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COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

At Emami Infrastructure Limited, corporate governance has 
always been a focal point of aƩenƟon with emphasis on the 
complete well-being of all consƟtuents. Good corporate 
governance encompasses law, procedures, pracƟces and 
implicit rules that determine the management’s ability to 
take sound and informed business decisions vis-à-vis all its 
stakeholders i.e. shareholders, creditors, employees and the 
state. The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance 
envisages aƩainment of the highest level of transparency, 
accountability, integrity and equity in all facets of its 
operaƟons and in its interacƟon with stakeholders.

The Board of Directors of your Company is responsible 
for and commiƩed to sound principles of Corporate 
Governance in the Company. The Board plays a pivotal role 
in overseeing how the management serves the short and 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
long term interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. 
This belief is reflected in our governance pracƟces, under 
which we strive to maintain an effecƟve, informed and 
independent Board. We keep our governance pracƟces 
under conƟnuous review and benchmark ourselves to the 
best pracƟces across the globe.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ComposiƟon of Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of an 
opƟmum combinaƟon of ExecuƟve and Non-ExecuƟve 
Directors, including one woman Director, which is in 
conformity with the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure 
Requirements RegulaƟons), 2015 (“LisƟng RegulaƟons”). 
The Board as on 31st March, 2016 consists of 6 Directors 
out of which 4 Directors are Independent Director. The 
composiƟon and category of the directors on the Board are 
as follows:

Sl. No. Name DesignaƟon Category
1 Mr. Abhijit DaƩa (DIN: 00790029) Chairman Non-ExecuƟve Independent
2 Mr. Hari Mohan Marda (DIN: 00855466) Director Non-ExecuƟve Independent
3 Mr. Ram Gobind Ganeriwala (DIN: 00863042) Director Non-ExecuƟve Independent
4 Mrs. Karabi Sengupta (DIN: 02534951) Director Non-ExecuƟve Independent
5 Mr. Basant Kumar Parakh (DIN: 00103176) Director Non-ExecuƟve Non-Independent
6 Mr. Girja Kumar Choudhary (DIN: 00821762) Whole Time Director & CFO ExecuƟve

Board MeeƟngs & Procedure

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide 
on Company/business policy and strategy apart from 
normal business. The Agenda of the meeƟng is circulated 
well in advance to all the Directors for facilitaƟng effecƟve 
discussion and decision making. In addiƟon to the 
minimum informaƟon to be placed before the Board as 
per RegulaƟon 17(7) of the LisƟng RegulaƟons, the Board 
is also kept informed of major events wherever necessary.

Number and dates of Board MeeƟngs held during the year

Six Board meeƟngs were held during the financial year on 

25th May, 2015, 29th June, 2015, 10th August, 2015, 1st 
September, 2015, 13th November, 2015 and 11th February, 
2016. The maximum Ɵme gap between any two meeƟngs 
was less than 120 days as sƟpulated under RegulaƟon 17(2) 
of the LisƟng RegulaƟons. 

Number of meeƟngs held and aƩended during the year, 
aƩendance at the last Annual General MeeƟng (AGM) and 
the number of Directorships and CommiƩee Memberships 
/ Chairmanship in other companies of each of the Directors 
as on 31st March, 2016 are below:-

Name of Director Board MeeƟngs 
during the year

AƩendance 
at the last 

AGM

Other 
Directorships 

Memberships/ Chairmanship(s) 
of Board CommiƩees in other 

companies Held AƩended

Mr. Abhijit DaƩa 6 4 No 5 3 (including 2 as Chairman)
Mr. Hari Mohan Marda 6 6 Yes 7 4 (including 2 as Chairman)
Mr. Ram Gobind Ganeriwala 6 6 Yes 1 1
Mrs. Karabi Sengupta 6 6 Yes 1 -
Mr. Basant Kumar Parakh 6 5 Yes 2 -
Mr. Girja Kumar Choudhary 6 6 Yes 2 1
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Note:

1. Other directorships exclude directorships in the 
Foreign Companies, SecƟon 8 Companies and Private 
Limited Companies

2. Other CommiƩee memberships/ chairmanships 
include only Audit CommiƩee and Stakeholders’ 
RelaƟonship CommiƩee of Public Limited companies 
only

3. None of the Directors of your Company is related to 
each other 

4. None of the non-execuƟve directors hold any shares 
in the Company. The Company has not issued any 
converƟble securiƟes

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more 
than 10 board level commiƩees or Chairman of more than 
5 such CommiƩees as specified in RegulaƟon 26(1) of 
LisƟng RegulaƟons, across all the listed enƟƟes in which he 
is a Director.

None of the Independent Directors is acƟng as an 
Independent Director in more than 7 listed companies 
as required pursuant to RegulaƟon 25 of the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons. The details of familiarizaƟon program imparted 

to independent directors is available on the Company’s 
website at the web link: www.emamirealty.com/code.php

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board CommiƩees play a crucial role in the governance 
structure of the Company and have been consƟtuted to deal 
with specific areas / acƟviƟes which concern the Company 
and need a closer review. The Board CommiƩees are set up 
under the formal approval of the Board to carry out clearly 
defined roles as a part of good governance pracƟce. The 
minutes of the meeƟngs of all the CommiƩees are placed 
before the Board for review. 

The Board has currently established the following 
CommiƩees:

¾ Audit CommiƩee

¾ Stakeholders’ RelaƟonship CommiƩee

¾ NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon CommiƩee

Audit CommiƩee

As on March 31, 2016, the CommiƩee consists of 3 
Directors, who bring with them vast experience in the 
field of operaƟons, finance and accounts. The CommiƩee 
comprises of:

Sl. No. Name Category DesignaƟon
1. Mr. Ram Gobind Ganeriwala Non-ExecuƟve Independent Chairman
2. Mr. Hari Mohan Marda Non-ExecuƟve Independent Member
3. Mr. Girja Kumar Choudhary ExecuƟve Member

The Chairman of the Audit CommiƩee is an Independent 
Director and the Company Secretary acts as the Secretary 
to the CommiƩee. The Chairman of the Audit CommiƩee 
aƩended the previous Annual General MeeƟng held on 9th 
September, 2015.

The CommiƩee’s composiƟon and its terms of reference 
meet the requirements of SecƟon 177 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and RegulaƟon 18 of the LisƟng RegulaƟons.

The Audit CommiƩee of the Company is entrusted with the 
responsibility to supervise the Company’s internal controls 
and financial reporƟng process and inter-alia performs the 
following funcƟons:

i. Oversight of the company’s financial reporƟng process 
and the disclosure of its financial informaƟon to ensure 
that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and 
credible;

ii. RecommendaƟon for appointment, remuneraƟon and 
terms of appointment of auditors of the company;

iii. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any 
other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

iv. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial 
statements and auditor’s report thereon before 
submission to the Board for approval, with parƟcular 
reference to:

 a. MaƩers required to be included in the Director’s 
Responsibility Statement to be included in the 
Board’s Report in terms of Clause (c) of sub-
secƟon (3) of SecƟon 134 of the Companies Act, 
2013;

 b. Changes, if any, in accounƟng policies and 
pracƟces and reasons for the same

 c. Major accounƟng entries involving esƟmates 
based on the exercise of judgment by 
management

 d. Significant adjustments made in the financial 
statements arising out of audit findings

 e. Compliance with lisƟng and other legal 
requirements relaƟng to financial statements

 f. Disclosure of any related party transacƟons
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 g. Modified opinion(s) in the draŌ audit report 

v. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly 
financial statements before submission to the Board 
for approval;

vi. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of 
uses / applicaƟon of funds raised through an issue 
(public issue, rights issue, preferenƟal issue, etc.), 
the statement of funds uƟlized for purposes other 
than those stated in the offer document / prospectus 
/ noƟce and the report submiƩed by the monitoring 
agency monitoring the uƟlisaƟon of proceeds of 
a public or rights issue, and making appropriate 
recommendaƟons to the Board to take up steps in this 
maƩer;

vii. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and 
performance, and effecƟveness of audit process;

viii. Approval or any subsequent modificaƟon of 
transacƟons of the company with related parƟes;

ix. ScruƟny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

x. ValuaƟon of undertakings or assets of the company, 
wherever it is necessary;

xi. EvaluaƟon of internal financial controls and risk 
management systems;

xii. Reviewing, with the management, performance of 
statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 
internal control systems;

xiii. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit funcƟon, 
if any, including the structure of the internal audit 
department, staffing and seniority of the official 
heading the department, reporƟng structure coverage 
and frequency of internal audit;

xiv. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant 
findings and follow up there on;

xv. Reviewing the findings of any internal invesƟgaƟons 
by the internal auditors into maƩers where there is 
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal 
control systems of a material nature and reporƟng the 
maƩer to the Board;

xvi. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit 
commences, about the nature and scope of audit, 
audit observaƟons as well as post-audit discussion to 
ascertain any area of concern;

xvii. To look into the reasons for substanƟal defaults in 
the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared 
dividends) and creditors;

xviii. To review the funcƟoning of the Whistle Blower 
mechanism;

xix. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-
Ɵme Finance Director or any other person heading 
the finance funcƟon or discharging that funcƟon) 
aŌer assessing the qualificaƟons, experience and 
background, etc. of the candidate.

xx. The CommiƩee shall mandatorily review the following:

 (a) Management discussion and analysis of financial 
condiƟon and results of operaƟons;

 (b) Statement of significant related party transacƟons 
(as defined by the audit commiƩee), submiƩed 
by management;

 (c) Management leƩers / leƩers of internal control 
weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

 (d) Internal audit reports relaƟng to internal control 
weaknesses; and the appointment, removal 
and terms of remuneraƟon of the chief internal 
auditor shall be subject to review by the audit 
commiƩee.

 (e) Statement of deviaƟons:

  I. Quarterly statement of deviaƟon(s) including 
report of monitoring agency, if applicable, 
submiƩed to stock exchange(s) in terms of 
RegulaƟon 32(1).

  II. Annual statement of funds uƟlized for 
purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document/prospectus/noƟce in terms of 
RegulaƟon 32(7).

During the financial year ended March 31, 2016, Audit 
CommiƩee met 5 (Five) Ɵmes on 25th May, 2015, 10th 
August, 2015, 1st September, 2015, 13th November, 2015 
and 11th February, 2016, wherein all the members of the 
CommiƩee were present.

Stakeholders’ RelaƟonship CommiƩee

As on 31st March 2016, the CommiƩee comprises of 
Mr. Ram Gobind Ganeriwala, Independent Director, as the 
Chairman and Mr. Basant Kumar Parakh and Mr. Girja Kumar 
Choudhary as members. The composiƟon and the terms of 
reference of the CommiƩee meet with the requirements of 
RegulaƟon 20 of the LisƟng RegulaƟons and provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013. The Company Secretary acts as 
Secretary to the CommiƩee.

During the period under review, only one meeƟng of the 
CommiƩee was held on 13th November, 2015. All the 
members were present at the said meeƟng.

The CommiƩee has been consƟtuted to monitor and 
review investor’s grievance and carry out procedural 
maƩers relaƟng to share transfer, etc. and overseeing the 
funcƟoning of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the 
Company.
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During the year under review, no complaints were received 
by the Company. There were no complaints pending at 
the beginning and at the close of the financial year. No 
complaint was posted on SCORES, the web based complaint 
redressal system of SEBI.

The name, designaƟon and address of Compliance Officer 
of the Company is as under:

Name & DesignaƟon Ms. Payel Jain, Company 
Secretary

Address “Akash Tower”, 3rd Floor, 781, 
Anandapur, E. M. Bypass, 
Kolkata-700107

Contacts Phone: 033 6625 1228
E-mail payel.jain@emamirealty.com

NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon CommiƩee

As on 31st March, 2016, the CommiƩee comprises of 
Mr. Hari Mohan Marda as the Chairman and Mr. Ram 
Gobind Ganeriwala and Mr. Abhijit DaƩa as members. 
The CommiƩee’s composiƟon and its terms of reference 
meet the requirements of SecƟon 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and RegulaƟon 19 of the LisƟng RegulaƟons. The 
Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the CommiƩee.

Terms of Reference of the CommiƩee, inter alia, includes 
the following: 

¾ FormulaƟon of the criteria for determining 
qualificaƟons, posiƟve aƩributes and 
independence of a director and recommend to 
the board of directors a policy relaƟng to, the 
remuneraƟon of the directors, key managerial 
personnel and other employees;

¾ FormulaƟon of criteria for evaluaƟon of 
performance of independent directors and the 
board of directors;

¾ Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;

¾ IdenƟfying persons who are qualified to become 
directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid 
down, and recommend to the Board of Directors 
their appointment and removal.

¾ Whether to extend or conƟnue the term of 
appointment of the independent director, on the 
basis of the report of performance evaluaƟon of 
independent directors.

¾ To carry out any other funcƟon as is mandated by 
the Board from Ɵme to Ɵme and / or enforced by 
any statutory noƟficaƟon or modificaƟon as may 
be applicable;”

During the year under review, only one meeƟng was held on 
25th May, 2015. All the three members of the CommiƩee 

were present in the meeƟng. 

Performance evaluaƟon criteria for Independent Directors

During the year under review, the performance of the 
Independent Directors were evaluated on the parameters 
such as level of engagement, independence of judgement, 
contribuƟon to the strategic planning process, safeguarding 
the interest of the stakeholders, etc. and in context of 
the role played by them as a member of the Board at its 
meeƟngs, in assisƟng the Board in realising its role of 
strategic supervision of the funcƟoning of the Company.

RemuneraƟon policy

The success of the organizaƟon in achieving good 
performance and good governing pracƟces depends on 
its ability to aƩract and retain individuals with requisite 
knowledge and excellence as execuƟve and non-execuƟve 
Directors.

The RemuneraƟon Policy of the Company is aƩached as 
“Annexure - 3” to the Board’s Report.

Details of RemuneraƟon to all Directors:

A) The details of siƫng fees for the Financial Year 
2015-16 paid to the Non-ExecuƟve Directors and 
their shareholding in the Company are as under:                                                                                                                                           
                                                                               (` in Lacs)

Name of the Directors Siƫng Fees 
Mr. Abhijit DaƩa 0.23
Mr. Hari Mohan Marda 0.45
Mr. Ram Gobind Ganeriwala 0.97 *
Mrs. Karabi Sengupta 0.33
Mr. Basant Kumar Parakh 0.74 **

*    includes ` 0.49 Lacs from Emami Realty Limited, the amalgamaƟng 
      Company.
**  includes ` 0.46 Lacs from Emami Realty Limited, the amalgamaƟng 
     Company.

 No commission was paid to Directors during the year 
ended 31st March 2016.

 None of the Directors hold any shares in the Company.

B)  Details of RemuneraƟon paid to Mr. Girja Kumar 
Choudhary for the financial year 2015-16 are as under:

(` in Lacs)

Salary 63.00
ContribuƟon to Provident Fund 7.56
ContribuƟon to NaƟonal Pension 
Fund 

1.36

Bonus and Allowances 48.04
Total 119.96 *

* include ̀  79.88 Lacs  from Emami Realty Limited, the amalgamaƟng 
   Company.
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The tenure of office of Whole-Ɵme Director & CFO is for 5 
years from the date of appointment and can be terminated 
by either party by giving three months’ noƟce in wriƟng.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING

During the period under review, Independent Directors 
met on 11th February, 2016, inter-alia, to discuss:

a) EvaluaƟon of the Performance of the Independent 
Directors and Board of Directors as a whole;

b) EvaluaƟon of the quality, content and Ɵmelines of flow 
of informaƟon between the Management and the 
Board that is necessary for the Board to perform its 
duƟes effecƟvely and reasonably.

All the Independent Directors were present in the meeƟng.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

A) General meeƟngs 

 i. Annual General MeeƟng:

Year Day, Date & Time Venue
2014-15 Wednesday, 9th 

September, 2015 at 
2.30 P.M.

Emami Tower, 687 
Anandapur, 

E. M. Bypass, Kolkata 
700 107

2013-14 Friday, 5th 
September, 2014 at 

2.30 P.M.
2012-13 Monday, 12th 

August, 2013 at 
11.30 A.M.

 ii. A Court Convened MeeƟng of the Equity 
Shareholders of the Company was held on 26th 
March, 2016 at 10.30 A.M. at Emami Tower, 687, 
Anandapur, E. M. Bypass, Kolkata-700107 in terms 
of Order of the Hon’ble High Court at CalcuƩa, 
dated 17th February, 2016 for the purpose of 
considering and if thought fit, to approve the 
Scheme of Arrangement for AmalgamaƟon 
of Emami Realty Limited and Emami Rainbow 
Niketan Private Limited with the Company under 
SecƟon 391 & 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 
(“Scheme”). The resoluƟon for approval of the 
Scheme was overwhelmingly approved by the 

shareholders.

B) Whether any special resoluƟons passed in the previous 
three annual general meeƟngs; 

 a. NO special resoluƟon was passed in AGM held in 
2015 and 2013.

 b. In the AGM held on 5th September 2014, the 
following special resoluƟons were passed by the 
members:

  1. AlteraƟon of ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the 
Company;

  2. Revision in RemuneraƟon of Mr. Girja Kumar 
Choudhary, WholeƟme Director and CFO of 
the Company.

  3. Authority provided to the Board to borrow 
upto ` 500 crores under secƟon 180(1)(c) of 
the Companies Act, 2013;

  4. Authority provided to the Board to make 
investment upto ` 200 crores under secƟon 

186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

C) Whether any special resoluƟon passed last year 
through postal ballot, person who conducted the 
postal ballot exercise and details of voƟng paƩern 

 During the year under review, no special resoluƟon 
has been passed through the exercise of postal ballot.

 However, the Company conducted postal ballot and 
e-voƟng for obtaining approval of the Scheme by public 
shareholders as required by SEBI Circular No. CIT/CFD/
DIL/5/2013 dated 4th February, 2013 as modified by 
SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/8/2013 dated 21st May, 
2013 (“the SEBI Circulars”). The resoluƟon for approval 
of the Scheme was overwhelmingly approved by the 
public shareholders.

D) Whether any special resoluƟon is proposed to be 
conducted through postal ballot : None

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

a. PublicaƟon of results: The Company publishes its 
quarterly and annual results in newspapers such as 
“Financial Express”, “Ek Din” and “Ei Samay”. The 
same are also submiƩed to the Stock Exchanges. 

b. News, Releases etc.: The Company has a website www.
emamirealty.com and all vital informaƟon relaƟng to 
the Company and its performance including financial 
results are regularly posted on the Company’s website.

c. During the year under review, the Company did not 
make any presentaƟon to insƟtuƟonal investors or to 

analysts.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

i. AGM Details   

  Date : September 29, 2016

  Time : 12.00 Noon

 Venue :  Emami Tower, 687 
Anandapur, E. M. Bypass, 
Kolkata 700 107
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ii. Financial Calendar

 Financial year -1st April, 2016 to 31st March, 2017

 Financial ReporƟng for the Year 2016-17: 

ParƟculars Quarter/ year ending TentaƟve Schedule*
Unaudited Financial Results (1st Quarter) Q.E. 30.06.2016 On or before August 14, 2016
Unaudited Financial Results (2nd Quarter) Q.E. 30.09.2016 On or before November 14, 2016
Unaudited Financial Results (3rd  Quarter) Q.E. 31.12.2016 On or before February 14, 2017
Audited Financial Results (4th  Quarter/Annual) Y.E. 31.03.2017 On or before May 30, 2017

* tentaƟve and subject to change

iii. Book closure Dates : September 23, 2016 to September 29, 2016
    (Both days inclusive)

iv. Dividend Payment Date :  Not Applicable

 

v. LisƟng on Stock Exchanges :    BSE Limited (BSE)

    NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) 

    CalcuƩa Stock Exchange Limited (CSE)

 The lisƟng fees for financial year 2016-17 to BSE, NSE and CSE have been paid.

vi. Stock Code :  Trading symbol 

    BSE Limited - 533218

    NSE - EMAMIINFRA 

    CSE - 015214

 Demat ISIN No. : ISIN No. : INE778K01012

 Corporate IdenƟty No.  : L45400WB2008PLC121426

vii. Market Price Data

 High, Low during each month in the last financial year at BSE and NSE:

Month
BSE NSE

High (`) Low (`) High (`) Low (`)
Apr 2015 45.60 35.50 45.35 37.00
May 2015 42.00 34.50 42.50 34.00
Jun 2015 37.15 32.10 37.20 31.85
Jul 2015 42.00 32.50 41.45 32.00
Aug 2015 47.50 36.00 49.80 35.50
Sep 2015 53.45 40.20 54.00 41.80
Oct 2015 44.85 39.15 45.00 38.70
Nov 2015 42.45 38.00 43.50 37.50
Dec 2015 44.70 38.00 44.55 38.00
Jan 2016 43.00 35.20 43.00 36.15
Feb 2016 39.00 30.25 39.40 30.10
Mar 2016 40.95 31.40 40.25 31.55

 [Source: This informaƟon is compiled from the data available from the websites of BSE and NSE]
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viii. Performance in comparison to broad based indices:

 Comparison with BSE Sensex Comparison with NSE NiŌy:

ix.   Registrar and Share Transfer Agent and Share Transfer 
System

 The Company’s share transfers are handled by 
Maheshwari DatamaƟcs Pvt. Ltd., Registrar and 
Transfer Agents (RTA).

 Maheshwari DatamaƟcs Pvt.Ltd.
 6, Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor, Kolkata - 700 001.
 Phone : (033) 2243 5809 / 5029
 Fax No : (033) 2248 4787 
 Email Id : mdpldc@yahoo.com
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x. Share Transfer System

 The shares received in physical mode by the Company 
/ RTA are transferred expediƟously provided the 
documents are complete and shares under transfer 
are not under dispute.ConfirmaƟon in respect of 
the request for dematerializaƟon of shares is sent 
to respecƟve depositories – NaƟonal SecuriƟes 
Depository Limited (NSDL) / Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) within sƟpulated 
period.

xi. DistribuƟon of Shareholding and shareholding paƩern as on 31st March 2016

 DistribuƟon of Shareholding:

  Shareholding 
Shareholders Shares

Number % of Total Number % of Total
Upto 500 11,061 87.30 12,57,132 5.17
501 to 1000 789 6.23 6,69,443 2.76
1001 to 2000 369 2.91 5,71,238 2.35
2001 to 3000 145 1.14 3,76,033 1.55
3001 to 4000 69 0.54 2,52,551 1.04
4001 to 5000 51 0.40 2,40,379 0.99
5001 to 10000 82 0.65 6,13,418 2.52
10001 and above 104 0.83 2,03,18,198 83.62
Grand Total 12,670 100 2,42,98,392 100
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 Shareholding PaƩern:

Sl. No. DescripƟon No. of shares Percentage of capital
I. Promoter and Promoter group 1,41,07,511 58.06

II. Public Shareholding

Non-InsƟtuƟons

a. Bodies Corporate         47,43,217 19.52

b. Individuals 53,48,675 22.01

c. NBFC registered with RBI 4,800 0.02

c. Non Resident Individual                                            28,666 0.12

d. Clearing Member 65,523 0.27

Sub-total 1,01,90,881 41.94

 Total (I) +(II) 2,42,98,392 100.00

xii. DematerializaƟon of shares and liquidity:

 As on 31st March 2016, 2,42,77,352 shares of the 
Company, aggregaƟng to 99.91% of the paid up share 
capital of the Company was held in dematerialised 
form with the NSDL and CDSL.

xiii. Outstanding converƟble instruments, conversion 
date and likely impact on equity:

 The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants 
or any ConverƟble instruments.

xiv. Plant LocaƟons

 Not Applicable

xv. Address For Correspondence 

 Corporate Office:
 AkashTower, 3rd Floor
 781, Anandapur, E.M. Bypass,
 Kolkata 700 107.
 Tel No. 033 6625 1200 

 Registered Office:
 Emami Tower, 2nd Floor
 687, Anandapur E.M. Bypass, 
 Kolkata 700 107,
 Tel No. 033 6613 6264
 E-mail: infra@emamirealty.com

DISCLOSURES

1. Related party transacƟons:

 All contracts with our affiliates entered into during 
the year have no potenƟal conflict of interests of the 
Company at large and are being carried out at an arm’s 
length at fair market value.

 Details of such transacƟons as per requirement of 
AccounƟng Standard 18 are disclosed in Note No. 28 
to the Financial Statements.

 The policy on dealing with related party transacƟons 
may be referred to, at the Company’s website at the 
web link: www.emamirealty.com/code.php

2. Details of non-compliance by the Company:

 There has been no non-compliance and no strictures/
penalƟes have been imposed on the Company by 
the Stock Exchanges or the SecuriƟes and Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI) or any statutory authority on 
any maƩers related to capital markets during the last 
three years.

3. Whistle Blower Policy

 The Company has formed a Whistle Blower Policy/ 
Vigil Mechanism as required under SecƟon 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and RegulaƟon 22 of the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons. A Vigil (Whistle Blower) mechanism 
provides a channel to the employees and Directors to 
report to the management concerns about unethical 
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violaƟon of the 
Codes of conduct or policy. The said policy may be 
referred to, at the Company’s website at the weblink: 
www.emamirealty.com/code.php

 None of the officials/personnel of the Company has 
been denied access to the Audit CommiƩee. The 
Vigilance Officer/Chairman of Audit CommiƩee has 
not received any complaint during the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2016.

4. Compliance with requirements of Corporate 
Governance pursuant to SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons & 
Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015:

 The Company has complied with all the mandatory 
requirements of Corporate Governance of the 
LisƟng RegulaƟons and has adopted the following 
discreƟonary requirements of Part E of Schedule 
II as menƟoned in RegulaƟon 27(1) of the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons:
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 i. Modified opinion(s) in audit report

  The Company is in the regime of financial 
statements with unmodified audit opinion. 

 ii. ReporƟng of Internal Auditor

  The Internal Auditor directly reports to the Audit 
CommiƩee

5. The Company has formed a policy on material 
subsidiary as required under RegulaƟon 24 of the 
LisƟng RegulaƟons. The said policy may be referred 
to, at the Company’s website at weblink: www.
emamirealty.com/code.php.

6. The Company is not dealing in commodity and hence 
disclosure relaƟng to commodity price risks and 
commodity hedging acƟviƟes are not applicable.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As required under RegulaƟon 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015, the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior 
Management, affirmaƟon that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management 
in respect of financial year 2015-16.

For Emami Infrastructutre Limited

Place: Kolkata Girja Kumar Choudhary
Date: August 11, 2016 Whole Time Director & CFO

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION
To
Board of Directors
Emami Infrastructure Limited

1. I have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of Emami Infrastructure Limited for the year 
ended March 31, 2016 and that to the best of my knowledge and belief, I state that:

 (a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading;

 (b) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
exisƟng accounƟng standards, applicable laws and regulaƟons;

2. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transacƟons entered into by the Company during the year 
which are fraudulent, illegal or violaƟve of the Company’s Code of Conduct;

3. I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that I have evaluated the effecƟveness 
of the internal control systems of the Company and I have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit CommiƩee, 
deficiencies in the design or operaƟon of such internal controls, if any, of which I am aware and necessary steps 
have been taken to recƟfy these deficiencies.

4. I have indicated to the Auditors and Audit CommiƩee:
 (a) Significant changes, if any, in internal control over the financial reporƟng during the year;
 (b) Significant changes, if any, in accounƟng policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the 

notes to the financial statements; and
 (c) Instances of significant fraud of which I have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 

management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over the 
financial reporƟng.

Place: Kolkata 
Date: August 11, 2016

For Emami Infrastructure Limited

Girja Kumar Choudhary
Whole Time Director & CFO
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C ERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Independent Auditor’s CerƟficate

To,
The Members of 
Emami Infrastructure Limited 

We have examined the compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance by EMAMI INFRASTRUCTURE  LIMITED 
for the year ended on 31st March, 2016 as sƟpulated in Clause 49 of the LisƟng Agreements of the Company with stock 
exchanges for the period from 1st April, 2015 to 30th November, 2015 and as per the relevant provisions of the SEBI 
(LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 (“the LisƟng RegulaƟons”) as referred to in RegulaƟon 
15(2) of the LisƟng RegulaƟons for the period 1st December, 2015 to 31st  March, 2016.

The compliance of condiƟons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examinaƟon was 
limited to procedures and implementaƟon thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the condiƟons 
of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, we cerƟfy that to the best of our knowledge, 
the Company has complied with the condiƟons of Corporate Governance as sƟpulated in the above-menƟoned LisƟng 
Agreement / LisƟng RegulaƟons, as applicable. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the further viability of the Company nor the efficiency 
nor effecƟveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For S. K. Agrawal & Company
Firm RegistraƟon No. 306033E 

Chartered Accountants

J. K. Choudhury
Place: Kolkata  Partner
Date: August 11, 2016  Membership No.09367
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Report on the Standalone Financial Statements (REVISED)

We have audited the accompanying REVISED Standalone 
Financial Statements of EMAMI INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED 
(“the Company”) which comprises the REVISED Balance 
Sheet as at 31st March, 2016, the REVISED Statement of 
Profit and Loss, the REVISED Cash Flow Statement for the 
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounƟng 
policies and other explanatory informaƟon. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial 
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
maƩers stated in SecƟon 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparaƟon of these 
Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial posiƟon, financial performance 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounƟng principles generally accepted in India, including 
the AccounƟng Standards specified under SecƟon 133 of 
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounƟng records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for prevenƟng and detecƟng frauds and other 
irregulariƟes; selecƟon and applicaƟon of appropriate 
accounƟng policies; making judgments and esƟmates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementaƟon 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounƟng records, relevant to the 
preparaƟon and presentaƟon of the Financial Statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We 
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the 
accounƟng and audiƟng standards and maƩers which 
are required to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on AudiƟng specified under SecƟon 143(10) of the Act. 
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Financial 
Statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
financial control relevant to the Company’s preparaƟon 
of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluaƟng 
the appropriateness of the accounƟng policies used and 
the reasonableness of the accounƟng esƟmates made by 
the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluaƟng the overall 
presentaƟon of the Financial Statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and 
according to the explanaƟons given to us, the aforesaid 
Standalone Financial Statements give the informaƟon 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounƟng 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at 31st March, 2016, and its Loss and its 
Cash Flows for the year ended on that date. 

Other Ma ers

The Financial Statements of the Company for the year 
ended 31st March 2016 were earlier approved by the 
Board of Directors at their meeƟng held on 27th May 
2016, on which we had issued our report dated 27th May 
2016. These Financial Statements have been reopened and 
revised to give effect to Scheme as explained in Note 38 to 
the Financial Statement.

The financial statement of one of its LLPs is on the basis 
of unaudited accounts and the Financial Statements reflect 
the share of net loss of ` 349.12 lacs for the above LLP for 
the year then ended.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these maƩers.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2016 (“the Order”), as amended, issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-secƟon 
(11) of secƟon 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 
A” a statement on the maƩers specified in paragraphs 
3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable.

To the Members of
Emami Infrastructure Limited
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2. As required by secƟon 143 (3) of the Act, we report 
that: 

 (a) we have sought and obtained all the informaƟon 
and explanaƟons which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit; 

 (b) in our opinion proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examinaƟon of those 
books; 

 (c) the REVISED Balance Sheet, the REVISED 
Statement of Profit and Loss and the REVISED 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are 
in agreement with the books of account;

 (d) in our opinion, the aforesaid REVISED Standalone 
Financial Statements comply with the AccounƟng 
Standards specified under secƟon 133 of the Act, 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014;

 (e) on the basis of wriƩen representaƟons received 
from the directors as on March 31, 2016 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2016 
from being appointed as a director in terms of 
SecƟon 164 (2) of the Act;

 (f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporƟng of the 

Company and the operaƟng effecƟveness of 
such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B”;

 (g) With respect to the other maƩers to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons 
given to us: 

  (a) The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending liƟgaƟons on its financial PosiƟon in 
its financial statement - Refer Note 41 (b) to 
the Financial Statements.

  (b) The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivaƟve contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses.

  (c) There is no such sum which needs to be 
transferred, to the Investor EducaƟon and 
ProtecƟon Fund by the Company.

For S. K. AGRAWAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants

 Firm RegistraƟon No. 306033E

J. K. Choudhury
Place : Kolkata Partner
Date : 11th August, 2016 Membership No: 009367
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor’s 
Report to the members of EMAMI INFRASTRUCTURE 
LIMITED (“the Company”) on the REVISED Standalone 
Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March 
2016. We report that:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full parƟculars, including quanƟtaƟve 
details and situaƟon of fixed assets.

 (b) The Company has a regular programme of 
physical verificaƟon of its fixed assets by which 
fixed assets are verified in a phased manner. In 
accordance with this programme, certain fixed 
assets were verified during the year and no 
material discrepancies were noƟced on such 
verificaƟon. In our opinion, this periodicity of 
physical verificaƟon is reasonable having regard 
to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets.

 (c) According to informaƟon and explanaƟon given 
to us and on the basis of our examinaƟon of 
the records of the Company, the Ɵtle deeds of 
immovable properƟes are held in the name of 
the Company.

(ii) The inventories have been physically verified during 
the year by the management at regular intervals. In 
our opinion and according to the informaƟon and 
explanaƟons given to us, no material discrepancies 
were noƟced on physical verificaƟon.

(iii) The Company has granted unsecured loans to 
companies covered in the Register maintained under 
secƟon 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). In 
respect of such loans:

 a) In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms 
and condiƟons on which loans has been granted 
to the company listed in the register maintained 
under secƟon 189 of the Act is not, prima facie, 
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

 b) In case of the loans granted to the Company 
listed in the register maintained under secƟon 
189 of the Act, the borrowers have been regular 
in the payment of the principal and interest as 
sƟpulated.

 c) There are no overdue amounts in respect of the 
loan granted to the Company listed in the register 
maintained under secƟon 189 of the Act.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and 
explanaƟons given to us, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of secƟon 185 and the provision 
of SecƟon 186 of the Act with respect to loans, 
investments, guarantees and securiƟes made.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public.

(vi) As explained to us, the Company is not required 
to maintain cost records prescribed by the Central    
Government under sub-secƟon (1) of SecƟon 148 of 
the Act.

(vii) (a) According to informaƟon and explanaƟons given 
to us and on the basis of our examinaƟon of the  
books of account, and records, the Company has 
been generally regular in deposiƟng undisputed 
statutory dues including Provident Fund, 
Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, 
Service Tax, Value added Tax, Cess and any other 
statutory dues with the appropriate authoriƟes. 
According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons 
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of the above were in arrears as at March 
31, 2016 for a period of more than six months 
from the date on which they became payable. 
During the year, the Company did not have any 
dues towards duty of excise and duty of custom.

        (b) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons 
given to us, there are no material dues in    respect 
of Sales Tax, Income Tax, Custom Duty, Service 
Tax and Cess except the following:

Name of the Statute
Nature of Dues Amount under 

dispute not yet 
deposited (` in Lacs)

Financial Year to 
which the amount 

relates

Forum where the 
dispute is pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 47.29 2009-10 I.T.A.T. (Kolkata)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 34.72 2007-08 I.T.A.T.

 During the year, the Company did not have any dues 
towards duty of excise and duty of custom.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and 
explanaƟons given to us by the management, the 
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues 

to banks, financial insƟtuƟons and debenture holders.

(ix) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according 
to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, term 
loans availed by the Company were applied by the 
Company for the purposes for which the loans were 
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obtained. The Company did not raise any moneys 
by way of iniƟal public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year. 

(x) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given 
to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the 
Company by its officers or employees has been noƟced 
or reported during the year. 

(xi) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to 
us, the Company has paid or provided for managerial 
remuneraƟons in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of secƟon 197 
read with Schedule V to the Act; 

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion, all transacƟons with the related parƟes 
are in compliance with secƟon 177 and 188 of the Act 
and the details have been disclosed in the Financial 
Statements as required by the applicable accounƟng 
standards. 

(xiv) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given 
to us and based on our examinaƟon of records, the 
Company has not made any preferenƟal allotment 
or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
converƟble debentures during the year.

(xv) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given 
to us and based on our examinaƟon of records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transacƟons with Directors or persons connected 
with them. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) 
of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under 
secƟon 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For S. K. AGRAWAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants

 Firm RegistraƟon No. 306033E

J. K. Choudhury
Place : Kolkata Partner
Date : 11th August, 2016 Membership No: 009367

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause 
(i) of Sub-sec on 3 of Sec on 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporƟng of EMAMI INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED 
(“the Company”) to the extent records available with us 
in conjuncƟon with our audit of the financial statements 
of the Company as of and for the year ended 31st March, 
2016.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls. These 
responsibiliƟes include the design, implementaƟon and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevenƟon and detecƟon of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounƟng records, and the Ɵmely 
preparaƟon of reliable financial informaƟon, as required 
under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 
internal financial controls over financial reporƟng based 

on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial ReporƟng (the “Guidance Note”) and the 
Standards on AudiƟng, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under secƟon 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, 
both issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporƟng 
was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effecƟvely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporƟng and their operaƟng 
effecƟveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporƟng included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporƟng, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and tesƟng and 
evaluaƟng the design and operaƟng effecƟveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 
over financial reporƟng.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Repor ng

A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporƟng is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporƟng 
and the preparaƟon of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounƟng principles. A company's internal financial 
control over financial reporƟng includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transacƟons and disposiƟons of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transacƟons are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparaƟon of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounƟng principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizaƟons of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevenƟon or Ɵmely detecƟon of unauthorized acquisiƟon, 
use, or disposiƟon of the company's assets that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limita ons of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Repor ng

Because of the inherent limitaƟons of internal financial 

controls over financial reporƟng, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projecƟons of any evaluaƟon 
of the internal financial controls over financial reporƟng 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporƟng may become 
inadequate because of changes in condiƟons, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 
an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporƟng and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporƟng were operaƟng effecƟvely as at 31st 
March 2016, based on the internal control over financial 
reporƟng criteria established by the Company considering 
the essenƟal components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial ReporƟng issued by the ICAI.

For S. K. AGRAWAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants

 Firm RegistraƟon No. 306033E

J. K. Choudhury
Place : Kolkata Partner
Date : 11th August, 2016 Membership No: 009367
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(` in Lacs)

Note 31st March 2016 31st March 2015

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' Funds

Share Capital 2  485.97  485.97 

Reserves and Surplus 3 576.01 1,061.98  3,623.80  4,109.77 

Non - Current Liabili es

Long - Term Borrowings 4 68,374.27  –   

Long - Term Provisions 5  152.99 68,527.26  19.78  19.78 

Current Liabili es

Short - Term Borrowings 6  20,417.88  –   

Trade Payables 7  2,257.60  0.25   

Other Current LiabiliƟes 8  75,719.17  2.71

Short - Term Provisions 9  11.82  98,406.47  0.17  3.13 

TOTAL  1,67,995.71  4,132.68 

ASSETS

Non - Current Assets

Fixed Assets 10

Tangible Assets  113.50  –   

Intangible Assets  15.28  –   

Non - Current Investments 11  15,572.23  985.01 

Long - Term Loans and Advances 12  13,199.81  0.90 

Other Non - Current Assets 13  475.11 29,375.93  –    985.91 

Current Assets

Current Investments 14  419.67  –   

Inventories 15  61,378.28  –   

Trade Receivables 16  50.16  –   

Cash and Bank Balances 17  1,434.35  2.77 

Short - Term Loans and Advances 18  75,337.32  1,38,619.78  3,144.00  3,146.77 

TOTAL 1,67,995.71  4,132.68 

Summary of Significant AccounƟng 
Policies and Notes to Accounts

1 to 46

BALANCE SHEET as at 31st March, 2016

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For S. K. AGRAWAL & CO. Abhijit Da a Hari Mohan Marda Ram Gobind Ganeriwala
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director Director
Firm RegistraƟon No. 306033E

J. K. Choudhury Karabi Sengupta Girja Kumar Choudhary Payel Jain
Partner Director Whole me Director & CFO Company Secretary
M. No. 009367
Place : Kolkata
Date : 11th August, 2016
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(` in Lacs)

Note 2015-16 2014-15

INCOME

Revenue from OperaƟons 19  64.06  –   

Other Income 20  9,306.75  72.00 

Increase/(Decrease) in Inventories 21  20,401.55  –   

Total Revenue (I)  29,772.36  72.00 

EXPENSES

Employee Benefits Expense 22  1,523.08  57.52 

Finance Costs 23  12,457.60  –   

Project Expenses 24  16,027.75  –   

DepreciaƟon and AmorƟsaƟon Expense  48.36  –   

Other Expenses 25  539.15  19.33 

Total Expenses (II)  30,595.94  76.85 

Loss Before Tax (I-II)  (823.58)  (4.85)

Tax Expenses

Current Tax  –    –   

Income Tax for Earlier Years (net)  3.45  1.37 

Loss for the year  (827.03)  (6.22)

Earnings per Equity Share of face value of ` 2/- each

Basic & Diluted 26  (3.40)  (0.03)

Summary of Significant AccounƟng Policies and Notes to 
Accounts

1 to 46

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS for the year ended 31st March, 2016

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For S. K. AGRAWAL & CO. Abhijit Da a Hari Mohan Marda Ram Gobind Ganeriwala
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director Director
Firm RegistraƟon No. 306033E

J. K. Choudhury Karabi Sengupta Girja Kumar Choudhary Payel Jain
Partner Director Whole me Director & CFO Company Secretary
M. No. 009367
Place : Kolkata
Date : 11th August, 2016



42 infrastructure limited

Standalone Financial Statements

CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31st March, 2016
(` in Lacs)

2015-16 2014-15

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax  (823.58)  (4.85)

Add: Adjusted for :

DepreciaƟon and AmorƟsaƟon Expense  48.36  -   

Finance Costs  12,457.60  -   

Share of Loss in LLP  349.12  -   

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets  (0.06)  -   

Interest Income  (8,936.52)  -   

Profit on sale of Units of Mutual Funds  (13.54)  -   

Opera ng Profit before Working Capital Changes  3,081.38  (4.85)

Adjusted for :

Long - Term Provisions  71.67  5.00 

Trade Payables  444.19  -   

Other Current LiabiliƟes  12,348.40  (0.03)

Short - Term Provisions  (6.56)  (25.71)

Long - Term Loans and Advances  (2,548.03)  -   

Inventories  (20,401.56)  -   

Trade Receivables  (50.16)  -   

Non Current Assets  (339.88)  -   

Short - Term Loans and Advances  (723.74)  14.87 

Cash Generated from Opera ons  (8,124.29)  (10.72)

Less: Taxes Paid  3.45  1.37 

Net Cash from Opera ng Ac vi es (A)  (8,127.74)  (12.09)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets  (103.82)  -   

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets  1.49  -   

Purchase of units of Mutual Funds  (10,450.00)  -   

Sale of units of Mutual Funds  10,463.54  -   

Purchase of Long Term Non Current Investments  (1,922.74)  -   

Investment in Partnership Firm  44.00  -   

Purchase of Short-Term Current Investments  486.64  -   

Loans Given  (54,883.91)  (82.00)

Loans Realised  36,265.00  68.80 

Interest Received  5,385.94  26.09 

Net Cash from Inves ng Ac vi es (B)  (14,713.86)  12.89 



Annual Report 2015-16

Auditor’s Report Balance Sheet Statement of Profit & Loss Cash Flow Statement Notes to Financial Statements

43

(` in Lacs)

2015-16 2014-15

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Long-Term Borrowings  37,272.59  -   

Repayment of Long-Term Borrowings  (12,538.02)  -   

Proceeds from Short-Term Borrowings  18,787.00  -   

Repayment of Short-Term Borrowings  (11,909.53)  -   

Interest Paid  (8,084.81)  -   

Net Cash from Financing Ac vi es (C)  23,527.23  -   

Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  685.63  0.80 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year *  2.77  1.97 

Add: Transferred from amalgamaƟng Companies as at 1st April 2015  745.95  -   

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year *  1,434.35  2.77 

* Represents Cash and Bank Balance as indicated in Note No 17

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For S. K. AGRAWAL & CO. Abhijit Da a Hari Mohan Marda Ram Gobind Ganeriwala
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director Director
Firm RegistraƟon No. 306033E

J. K. Choudhury Karabi Sengupta Girja Kumar Choudhary Payel Jain
Partner Director Whole me Director & CFO Company Secretary
M. No. 009367
Place : Kolkata
Date : 11th August, 2016
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

VII.  INVENTORIES
 Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value 

whichever is lower except ConstrucƟon Work-in-
Progress which are valued at cost. ConstrucƟon 
Work-in-Progress includes cost of land, premium for 
development rights, construcƟon costs, allocated 
interest and expenses incidental to  the projects 
undertaken by the Company.

VIII. PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a 

legal and construcƟve obligaƟon as a result of a past 
event, for which it is probable that a cash ouƞlow will 
be required and reliable esƟmate can be made of the 
amount of the obligaƟon. ConƟngent liabiliƟes are 
disclosed when the Company has a possible obligaƟon 
or a present obligaƟon and it is probable that a cash 
ouƞlow will not be required to seƩle the obligaƟon. 
Provisions and ConƟngent LiabiliƟes are revalued at 
each Balance sheet date.

IX.  REVENUE RECOGNITION
 Revenue are recognised in accordance with the guiding 

principles of AccounƟng Standard - 9 ("AS"), noƟfied in 
the Companies (AccounƟng Standards) Rules 2006.

X.  BORROWING COSTS
 Borrowing costs that are aƩributable to the acquisiƟon 

or construcƟon of qualifying assets are capitalized as 
part of the cost of assets. All other borrowing costs 
are charged to revenue. A qualifying asset is one that 
takes substanƟal period of Ɵme to get ready for its 
intended use.

XI.  TAXATION
 Income Tax expense comprises current tax and 

deferred taxes. Income tax Expense is accounted for 
in accordance with AS-22 “AccounƟng for Taxes on 
Income” which includes current tax and deferred taxes. 
Deferred income tax reflects the impact of current 
year Ɵming differences between taxable income and 
accounƟng income for the year and reversal of Ɵming 
differences for earlier years. Deferred tax assets 
arising from Ɵming differences are recognised to the 
extent, there is reasonable certainty that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available against which 
such deferred tax assets will be realised.

XII. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
 a)  Short term employee benefits are recognised 

as expense at the undiscounted amount in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which 
the related service is rendered.

 b)  Post employment and other long term employee 
benefits are recognised as expense in the 

I.  BASIS OF PREPARATION

 These financial statements are prepared in accordance 
with Indian Generally Accepted AccounƟng Principles 
(GAAP) under the historical cost convenƟon on the 
accrual basis. GAAP comprises mandatory accounƟng 
standards as prescribed under SecƟon 133 of the 
Companies Act 2013 (the 'Act') read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 and the provisions 
of the Act (to the extent noƟfied). AccounƟng policies 
have been consistently applied except where a new 
accounƟng standard is iniƟally adopted or a revision 
to an exisƟng accounƟng standard requires a change 
in the accounƟng policy hitherto in use.

II. USE OF ESTIMATES

 The preparaƟon of financial statements, in conformity 
with the generally accepted accounƟng principles, 
requires esƟmates and assumpƟons to be made that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabiliƟes on 
the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporƟng period. Differences between actual results 
and esƟmates are recognized in the period in which 
the results are known / materialized.

III.  FIXED ASSETS

 Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciaƟon. Interest and other financial charges on 
loans borrowed specifically for acquisiƟon of capital 
assets are capitalized Ɵll the start of its intended use.

IV.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

 Intangible assets are recognized, only if it is probable 
that the future economic benefits that are aƩributable 
to the assets will flow to the enterprises and the cost 
of the assets can be measured reliably. The intangible 
assets are recorded at cost and are carried at cost 
less accumulated amorƟzaƟon and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. 

V.  DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

 DepreciaƟon are provided on wriƩen down value basis, 
at the rate determined with reference to the useful 
lives specified in the Schedule II of the Companies Act 
2013.

 Intangible Assets are amorƟzed over a period of five 
years.

VI. INVESTMENTS

 Long term investments are stated at cost. Current 
investments are stated at cost or fair value whichever 
is lower. DiminuƟon in value of long term investments 
other than temporary in nature is charged to Statement 
of Profit & Loss.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Statement of Profit and Loss  for the year in which 
the employees have rendered services. The 
expenses are recognised at the present value of 
amounts payable determined using the actuarial 
valuaƟon techniques at the end of each financial 
year. Actuarial gains or losses in respect of post 
employment and other long term benefits are 
charged to Statement of Profit & Loss.

XIII. SEGMENT REPORTING 

 Based on the guiding principles given in the AccounƟng 
Standard - 17 on “Segment ReporƟng”, issued by 
the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India, the 
Company’s primary business segment is Real Estate. 
Hence, the disclosure requirements of AS-17 in this 
regard are not applicable. 

XIV. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS  

 The Company idenƟfies impairable assets at the year 
end in accordance with the guiding principles of 
AccounƟng Standard 28, noƟfied in the Companies 
(AccounƟng Standards) Rules 2006, for the purpose 
of arriving at impairment loss thereon being the 
difference between the book value and recoverable 
value of relevant assets. Impairment loss, when 
crystallizes, is charged against revenues for the year.

XV. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS 

 TransacƟons in foreign currency are recorded at 

the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 
transacƟon. Assets and liabiliƟes related to foreign 
currency transacƟons, remaining unseƩled at the year 
end, are translated at the year end exchange rates. 
Forward exchange contracts, remaining unseƩled at 
the year end, backed by underlying assets or liabiliƟes 
are also translated at year end exchange rates. The 
premium payable on foreign exchange contracts is 
amorƟsed over the period of the contract. Exchange 
gains / losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

XVI. EARNING PER SHARE

 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the 
net profit/loss for the period aƩributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the year. 

 For the purpose of calculaƟng diluted earnings per 
share, the net profit or loss for the year aƩributable 
to equity shareholders and the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the year 
are adjusted for the effects for all diluƟve potenƟal 
equity shares.

XVII. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow 
statement comprise current account bank balance, 
cash in hand and bank deposit account balance.

2. SHARE CAPITAL

(` in Lacs)
31st March 2016 31st March 2015 

Authorized Shares

2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 2/- each  500.00  500.00 

20,50,000 Equity Shares of  ` 10/- each #  205.00  -   

 705.00  500.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up Shares

2,42,98,392 Equity Shares of ` 2/- each  485.97  485.97 

 485.97  485.97 
# Represents the amount relaƟng to the amalgamaƟng Companies

a. Reconcilia on of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repor ng period

EQUITY SHARES
31st March 2016 31st March 2015 

No. of Shares (` in Lacs) No. of Shares (` in Lacs)

At the beginning of the period  2,42,98,392  485.97  2,42,98,392  485.97 

Issued during the period  –   –  –   –

Outstanding at the end of the period  2,42,98,392  485.97  2,42,98,392  485.97 
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b. Rights a ached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 2/- per share. Each holder of equity shares 
is enƟtled to one vote per share.  In the event of liquidaƟon of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be 
enƟtled to receive remaining assets of the Company, aŌer distribuƟon of all preferenƟal amounts. The distribuƟon 
will be in proporƟon to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in Company

NAME OF SHAREHOLDERS
31st March 2016 31st March 2015 

No of
 shares

% holding 
in the class

No of
 shares

% holding 
in the class

Diwakar Viniyog  Private Limited  34,12,491 14.04%  34,12,491 14.04%

Suntrack Commerce Private Limted  29,84,237 12.28%  29,84,237 12.28%

Bhanu Vyapaar Private Limited  27,78,899 11.44%  27,78,899 11.44%

Emami Enclave Makers Private Limited  14,11,000 5.81%  14,11,000 5.81%

Emami High Rise Private Limited  13,92,000 5.73%  13,92,000 5.73%

Suraj Viniyog Private Limited  12,94,491 5.33%  12,94,491 5.33%

(` in Lacs)

3. RESERVES & SURPLUS

31st March 2016 31st March 2015

Capital Reserve  

At the beginning and at the end of the year 2,342.49  2,342.49 

Securi es Premium Account 

Transferred on AmalgamaƟon  780.00 
Less : Adjusted towards balance investments value of 
           amalgamaƟng Subsidiary Companies (Refer Note No. 38)  780.00 –

Surplus/(Deficit) in the Statement of Profit & Loss

At the beginning of the year  1,281.31  1,287.52 

Add: Transferred on amalgamaƟon (Refer Note No. 38)  (2,220.75)  –   

Less: Expenses wriƩen off  (0.01)  –   

Add: Surplus/(Deficit) transferred from Statement of Profit & Loss  (827.03)  (6.22)

Net Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss  (1,766.48)  1,281.31 

Total Reserves and Surplus 576.01  3,623.80 

4. LONG  TERM BORROWINGS

Secured

Term Loans from Banks (Refer Note No. 29)  26,074.27  –   

(A)  26,074.27  –   

Unsecured

Non ConverƟble Debentures (Refer Note No. 30(A))  30,000.00  –   

Term Loans from Non Banking Financial Companies (Refer Note No. 
30(B))

 12,300.00  –   

(B)  42,300.00  –   

(A+B)  68,374.27 –
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(` in Lacs)
5. LONG  TERM PROVISIONS

31st March 2016 31st March 2015 
Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note No. 27)  

Gratuity  73.90  8.38 
Leave Encashment  79.09  11.40 

 152.99  19.78 

6. SHORT  TERM BORROWINGS

Secured
OverdraŌ from Bank (Refer Note No. 29(b))*  331.10  -   

(A)  331.10  -   
Unsecured
Non ConverƟble Debentures (Refer Note No. 31(A))  10,000.00  -   
Term Loan from Non Banking Financial Companies (Refer Note No. 31(B))  10,000.00  -   
Loans from Other Body Corporates **  86.78  -   

(B)  20,086.78  -   
(A+B)  20,417.88  -   

*   Secured by the securiƟes as menƟoned in item No. (b) of Note No. 29 under the heading "Term Loan from Banks" as this facility is 
      sub-limit thereof.

** Repayable on demand

7. TRADE PAYABLES

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises  13.91  -   
Others  2,243.69 0.25   

 2,257.60 0.25   

8. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current MaturiƟes of Long Term Debts (Refer Note No. 29 & 30)  28,573.33  -   
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  6,257.54  -   
Advances from Related ParƟes (Refer Note No. 28)  371.17  -   
Unclaimed FracƟonal Share Sale Proceeds *  0.25  0.25 
Advances from Customers  39,437.83  -   
Advances from Others  4.33  -   
FluctuaƟng Capital Account with LLP  349.12  -   
LiabiliƟes for Expenses  7.27  1.50 
RetenƟon Money  344.03  -   
Other Payables **  374.30  0.96 

 75,719.17  2.71 
* There is no amount due and outstanding to be credited to Investors EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund as at 31st March, 2016.
** Includes statutory dues and employee benefits.

9. SHORT  TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note No. 27)

Gratuity  3.62  0.07 

Leave Encashment  8.20  0.10 

 11.82  0.17 
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11. NON  CURRENT INVESTMENTS

31st March 2016 31st March 2015 
(Long-Term)
A. Trade Investments

i. Investment Property
Flats (under ConstrucƟon)  4,073.31  –   

 4,073.31  –   
ii.  Investments in Equity Instruments

In Subsidiaries
Emami Realty Limited (Refer Note No. 38)
(Shares cancelled on amalgamaƟon)  –    980.00 
Emami Rainbow Niketan Private Limited (Refer Note No. 38)
(Shares cancelled on amalgamaƟon)  –    5.01 
In Associates
a. Quoted fully paid up

Zandu Realty Limited* 
2,86,329 Equity Shares of ` 100/- each  6,012.91  –   

b. Unquoted fully paid up
Roseview Developers Private Limited 
5,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each

 0.50  –   

Prajay Urban Private Limited
5,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each

 0.50  –   

Bengal Emami Housing Limited
60,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each

 6.00  –   

Swanhousing & Infra Private Limited
6,90,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each

 69.00  –   

 6,088.91  985.01 

(` in Lacs)
10. FIXED ASSETS

Gross Block Deprecia on / Amor sa on Net Block

As on
01.04.2015

Transferred on 
amalgama on 

as on 
01.04.2015

Addi ons Deduc ons/  
Adjustments 

As on 
31.03.2016

As on
01.04.2015

Transferred on 
amalgama on 

as on 
01.04.2015

For the 
Year

Deduc ons/ 
Adjustments

Upto
31.03.2016

As on
31.03.2016

As on
31.03.2015

Tangible Assets
Land                 –        5.46 – – 5.46 – –   –  –   –   5.46 –
Plant & Machinery                 –              0.70 – –  0.70 – 0.39   0.06 –   0.45 0.25 –
Office Equipments                 –   7.70 – – 7.70 – 4.70   1.41  –   6.11 1.59 –
Electrical Accessories                 –   49.72 – – 49.72 – 27.88  6.72 –   34.60 15.12 –
Computer Peripheral                 –    25.90 2.86 0.47 28.29 – 23.82 2.20 0.19 25.83 2.46 –
Furniture & Fiƫngs                 –           23.57   63.00 –   86.57 – 19.03  17.98  –      37.01 49.56 –
Porta Cabin                 –        15.79      –   –   15.79 – 15.79 –   –   15.79 –   –
Motor Car                 –             63.23 26.06   7.50 81.79 – 37.68 11.40  6.34 42.74 39.05 –

Sub-Total (A)                 –        192.07      91.92    7.97 276.02 – 129.29  39.77    6.53 162.53 113.50 –
Intangible Assets
SoŌware                 –   23.75 11.90 –   35.65 – 11.77  8.60 –   20.37 15.28 –

Sub-Total (B)                 –   23.75 11.90 – 35.65 – 11.77   8.60     – 20.37 15.28 –
Grand Total (A+B)                 –   215.82 103.82 7.97 311.67 – 141.06    48.37 6.53 182.90 128.78 –
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31st March 2016 31st March 2015 
iii. Investments in Limited Liability Partnership (Refer Note No. 33)

Unquoted
Capital Contribu on to:
Lohitka ProperƟes LLP  0.40  –   
Supervalue Nirman LLP  0.01  –   

 0.41  –   
B. Other Investments

i.  Investments in Preference Shares - Unquoted fully paid up
 Emami Paper Mills  Limited #

1,75,000 8% CumulaƟve Redeemable Non-converƟble Preference 
Shares of ` 100/- each

 700.00  –   

ii. Investments in Debentures -  Unquoted fully paid up
Vijaybhan Investments and Consultancy Private Limited $ 
4,30,760 9% Redeemable Non ConverƟble Debentures of ` 1,000/- 
each

 4,307.60  –   

iii. Investments in Bond - Unquoted fully paid up
Orbit Realty Infrastructure Limited 
4,00,000 Zero Percent OpƟonally Fully ConverƟble Bond of `100/- each

 402.00  –   

 15,572.23  985.01 
Aggregated amount of quoted investments  6,012.91  –   
Market value of Quoted Investments*  3,890.35  –   
Aggregated amount of unquoted investments  9,559.32  985.01 

* The market value of quoted investments is lower than book value due to temporary stock market condiƟons and is not permanent in 
nature. Hence no provision thereof is required.

# These Preference Shares are redeemable at a premium of ` 500/- per share on 27th March, 2025. However, the investee Company 
has an opƟon to redeem these preference shares before the redempƟon period.  

$ These Debentures are redeemable at par before the respecƟve maturity date either in full or in parts with the mutual consent of the 
Company and Debenture Holders.

 Zero Percent OpƟonally Fully ConverƟble Bonds are redeemable at a rate to be decided by issuer on or aŌer a period of 5 years 
from the date of allotment i.e. 5th March 2014.  However, the investee Company has an opƟon to redeem these Bonds before the 
redempƟon period.

 Note:
 All the above investments as at the end of year were acquired from amalgamaƟng subsidiary Companies as on 1st April 2015. 

(` in Lacs)

12. LONG  TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Unsecured, considered good)
Security Deposits  12,602.61  0.90 
Advances to Others  597.20  -   

 13,199.81  0.90 

13. OTHER NON  CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed deposits with banks *  464.11  -   

Interest Receivable from Fixed Deposits  11.00  -   

 475.11  -   

* Pledged with a bank as security against term loan maturing aŌer 12 months

(` in Lacs)
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(` in Lacs)

14. CURRENT INVESTMENTS

31st March 2016 31st March 2015 

(Short-Term)
Non-Trade
PainƟngs (Refer Note No. 36)  419.67  –   
Acquired on amalgamaƟon

 419.67  –   

15. INVENTORIES

A. Trade Goods
i. Equity Shares - Unquoted fully paid up

In Subsidiaries

Sneha Ashiana Private Limited 
50,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each

 5.00  –   

New Age Realty Private Limited
30,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each

 3.00  –   

Delta PV Private Limited
2,47,511 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each

 1,178.62  –   

(A)  1,186.62  –   
ii. Debentures - Unquoted fully paid up

Prajay Urban Private Limited
24,480 OpƟonally ConverƟble Debentures of ` 10,000/- each

 2,448.00  –   

(B)  2,448.00  –   
B. Work-in-Progress

Land  960.42  –   
Work-in-Progress  56,783.24  –   

(C)  57,743.66  –   
(A+B+C) 61,378.28  –   

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Unsecured, considered good)
Due for less than six months  50.16  –   

 50.16 –

17. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks  360.37  2.45 
Cash in hand  3.46  0.07 
Fixed deposits with banks*  309.72  –   

Other Bank Balances
Escrow Account/FracƟonal Share Sale Proceeds  0.25  0.25 
Fixed deposits with banks**  760.55  –   

 1,434.35  2.77 
* Pledged with a bank as security against term loan, maturing before 3 months.
** Pledged with a bank as security against term loan, maturing aŌer 3 months and before 12 months.
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(` in Lacs)

18. SHORT  TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

31st March 2016 31st March 2015 
(Unsecured, considered good)  
Loans 

Related ParƟes (Refer Note No. 28)  59,103.33  2,983.70 
Others  8,045.24  –   

Advances 
Employees  3.71  –   
Contractors/Suppliers  4,941.54  –   
Related ParƟes (Refer Note No. 28)  241.79  –   
Others  74.13  0.27 

Advance Income Tax and Refunds Receivable (Net of Provision)  1,146.64  159.97 
Balances with Government AuthoriƟes

Service Tax Credit Receivable  1,186.57  0.06 
VAT Credit Receivable  6.95  –   

Prepaid Expenses  37.85  –   
Other Receivables  549.57  –   

 75,337.32  3,144.00 

(` in Lacs)

19. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

2015–16 2014–15 
OperaƟng Income
   Sale of Shares  12.00  –   

(A)  12.00  –   
Other OperaƟng Income
   NominaƟon Charges  22.96  –   
   CancellaƟon Charges  29.27  –   
   Legal Fees Received  (0.17)  –   

(B)  52.06  –   
(A+B)  64.06  –   

20 OTHER INCOME

Interest Income from
Subsidiaries  1,513.85  –   
Associates  406.57  –   
Other Body Corporates  6,610.57  –   
Debentures  387.55  –   
Fixed Deposits  78.90  –   
Income Tax Refund  43.72  –   
Others  56.34  –   

(A)  9,097.50  –   
Dividend on Non–Current Investments  14.00  –   
Profit on Sale of units of Mutual Funds  13.54  –   
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets  0.06  –   
Service Charge Received  181.57  72.00 
Unpaid LiabiliƟes and unclaimed balances wriƩen back  0.04  –   
Miscellaneous Income  0.04  –   

(B)  209.25  72.00 
(A+B)  9,306.75  72.00 
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(` in Lacs)

21. INCREASE IN INVENTORIES

2015–16 2014–15 
I. Acquired on amalgama on as on 1st April 2015

Land  960.42  –   
Work–in–Progress  36,370.02  –   
Shares  1,198.29  –   
Debentures  2,448.00  –   

 40,976.73  –   
II. Closing Stock  –   

Land  960.42  –   
Work–in–Progress  56,783.24  –   
Shares  1,186.62  –   
Debentures  2,448.00  –   

 61,378.28  –   
Increase in Inventories (Net) (II–I)  20,401.55 –

22. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries, Gratuity & Allowances  1,477.38  52.72 
ContribuƟon to Provident and Other Funds  39.64  4.80 
Staff Welfare Expenses  6.06  –   

 1,523.08  57.52 

23. FINANCE COSTS

Interest Expenses  11,856.76  –   
Less: Transfer to Investment ProperƟes  423.13  –   

 11,433.63  –   
Other Borrowing Costs  1,023.97  –   

 12,457.60  –   

24. PROJECT EXPENSES

Materials Consumed  2,481.65 –
Payments to Contractors  12,007.36  –   
Consultants Fees  905.07  –   
Project PromoƟon & Expenses  407.06  –   
Insurance  (14.56)  –   
Repair & Maintenance  16.72  –   
Rates & Taxes  12.96  –   
Travelling & Conveyance  87.30  –   
Other OperaƟng Expenses  124.19  –   

 16,027.75 –
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(` in Lacs)

25. OTHER EXPENSES

2015-16 2014-15 
Electricity Charges  7.20  0.43 
Rent  25.32  1.08 
Repair & Maintenance  38.22  1.08 
Rates & Taxes  0.96  0.08 
AdverƟsement & Publicity  1.59  1.10 
Annual Custodial Fees  2.36  1.30 
Insurance  1.18  –   
LisƟng Fees  3.24  2.26 
Directors' Siƫng Fees (Refer Note No. 28)  3.20  1.38 
Postage & Courier Charges  7.09  1.78 
PrinƟng & StaƟonary  5.85  2.01 
Royalty  12.20  –   
Travelling & Conveyance  27.34  0.51 
Legal & Professional Fees  33.23  3.40 
Share of Loss in LLP (Refer Note No. 43)  349.12  –   
Miscellaneous Expenses  10.41  1.04 
Auditors' RemuneraƟon (Refer Note No. 32)  10.64  1.88 

 539.15  19.33 

26. EARNINGS PER SHARE EPS

Earnings per Share is calculated as follows:
Net Profit aŌer tax aƩributable to Equity Shareholders (827.03)  (6.22)
Weighted average number of equity shares  2,42,98,392  2,42,98,392 
Nominal value of Equity Share  2  2 
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (3.40)  (0.03)

27. DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

As per Actuarial ValuaƟons as on 31st March, 2016 and recognised in the financial statement in respect of Employee 
benefit schemes :    

(` in Lacs)

Par culars

31st March 2016 31st March 2015

Gratuity Leave 
Encashment

Gratuity Leave 
Encashment

Unfunded Unfunded Unfunded Unfunded
A. Components of Employer Expenses

1. Current Service Cost  18.54  17.52  1.13  1.02 
2. Interest Cost  4.84  5.35  0.49  0.70 
3. Expected Return on plan assets  –    –    –    –   
4. Actuarial Gain/Losses  10.89  25.84  0.71  1.00 
5. Total Expenses recognised in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss
 34.27  48.71  2.33  2.72 
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28. Related Party Transac ons
    i)     List of related par es where control exists and related par es with whom transac ons have taken place and rela onships:

Name of Related Party Rela onship
1.    Emami Realty Limited (amalgamated with the Company w.e.f. 01.04.2015) Subsidiary
2.    Emami Rainbow Niketan Private Limited (amalgamated with the Company 
        w.e.f. 01.04.2015)

Subsidiary

3.    Sneha Ashiana Private Limited Subsidiary
4.    Emami ConstrucƟons Private Limited (Ceased w.e.f. 30.03.2016) Subsidiary
5.    New Age Realty Private Limited Subsidiary
6.    Delta PV Private Limited Subsidiary
7.    Roseview Developers Private Limited Associate
8.    Bengal Emami Housing Limited Associate
9.    Prajay Urban Private Limited Associate

10.   Swanhousing & Infra Private Limited (w.e.f. 04.02.2016) Associate

Par culars

31st March 2016 31st March 2015

Gratuity Leave 
Encashment

Gratuity Leave 
Encashment

Unfunded Unfunded Unfunded Unfunded
B. Net asset/(liability) recognised in balance 

sheet as at 31st March, 2016
1. Present value of Defined Benefits 

ObligaƟon
 77.52  87.29  8.45  11.50 

2. Fair value of plan assets  –    –    –    –   
3. Funded Status [Surplus / (deficit)]  (77.52)  (87.29)  (8.45)  (11.50)
4. Net asset/(liability) recognised in 

balance sheet
 (77.52)  (87.29)  (8.45)  (11.50)

C. Change in Defined Benefit Obliga on 
during the year ended 31st March, 2016
1. Present value of DBO at beginning 

of period
 43.25  46.00  6.12  8.78 

2. Current Service Cost  18.54  17.52  1.13  1.02 
3. Interest Cost  4.84  5.35  0.49  0.70 
4. Actuarial gain/ Losses  10.89  25.84  0.71  1.00 
5. Benefits paid  –    (7.42)  –   –
6. Present value of DBO at the end of 

period
 77.52  87.29  8.45  11.50 

D. Change in Fair Value of Assets
1. Plan assets at beginning of period  –    –    –    –   
2. Expected Return on Plan assets  –    –    –    –   
3. Actuarial Gains  –    –    –    –   
4. Actual company contribuƟons  –    7.42 –  –   
5. Benefits paid  –    (7.42) –  –   
6. Plan assets at the end of period  –    –    –    –   

E. Actuarial Assump ons
1. Discount Rate 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
2. InflaƟon Rate 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%

(` in Lacs)
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28. Related Party Transac ons
11.  Zandu Realty Limited Associate
12.  Lohitka ProperƟes LLP (w.e.f. 01.04.2015) Limited Liability Partnership
13.  Supervalue Nirman LLP Limited Liability Partnership
14.  P S Srijan Projects (reƟred w.e.f. 01.04.2015) Partnership Firm

   ii)    Key Managerial Personnel & Other Directors:
a)   Key Managerial Personnel:

1. Mr. Girja Kumar Choudhary Whole-Ɵme Director & CFO
2. Ms. Payel Jain Company Secretary
3. Mr. Rajesh Bansal Whole-Ɵme Director w.e.f. 10.08.2015 in

Emami Realty Limited (AmalgamaƟng Company) 
4. Mr. Sanjay Choudhary Whole-Ɵme Director w.e.f. 01.04.2015 in

Emami Realty Limited (AmalgamaƟng Company) 
5. Dr. Kalyanasundaram Ramamurthy CEO w.e.f. 06.07.2015 in

Emami Realty Limited (AmalgamaƟng Company) 
b)  Other Directors:

1. Mr. Abhijit DaƩa Non-ExecuƟve Chairman (Independent)
2. Mr. Hari Mohan Marda Independent Director
3. Mr. Ram Gobind Ganeriwala Independent Director
4. Mrs. Karabi Sengupta Independent Director
5. Mr. Basant Kumar Parakh Non-ExecuƟve Non-Independent Director 
6. Mr. Debasish Bhaumik Independent Director in 

Emami Realty Limited (AmalgamaƟng Company) 
  iii)     Enterprises over which One Key Management Personnel has significant influence

1. Dev Infracity Private Limited (w.e.f. 10.08.2015)
2. Raj InfraproperƟes Private Limited (w.e.f. 10.08.2015)

  iv)    Enterprises wherein the Company's promoters have significant influence
1.   Add Albatross ProperƟes Private Limited
2.   AMRI Hospitals Limited
3.   Bhanu Vyapaar Private Limited
4.   CreaƟve CulƟvaƟon Private Limited
5.   Diwakar Viniyog Private Limited
6.   Emami Agrotech Limited
7.   Emami Capital Markets Limited
8.   Emami Cement Limited
9.   Emami Estates Private Limited
10. Emami Frankross Limited
11. Emami Home Private Limited
12. Emami Limited
13. Emami Vriddhi Commercial Private Limited
14. Fastgrow Crops Private Limited
15. Emami Beverages Limited
16. Jhansi ProperƟes Private Limited
17. Magnificent Vyapaar LLP
18. New Way ConstrucƟons Limited
19. Oriental Sales Agencies (India) Private Limited
20. Paradise Agriculture Private Limited
21. Sanjeevani Vyapaar LLP
22. Sneha Skyhigh Private Limited
23. Suntrack Commerce Private Limited
24. Sneha Abasan Private Limited
25. Emami Projects Private Limited
26. Emami Buildcon Private Limited
27. Emami Nirman Private Limited
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v.  Transac ons during the year with related par es: (` in Lacs)

Nature of Transac ons Subsidiary Associates Limited Liability 
Partnership & 

Partnership 

Key Management 
Personnel & Other 

Directors

En es over which 
Key Management 

Personnel have 
significant influence

 En es where 
Company's promoters  

have Significant 
Influence 

 Total 

31-03-16 31-03-15 31-03-16 31-03-15 31-03-16 31-03-15 31-03-16 31-03-15 31-03-16 31-03-15 31-03-16 31-03-15 31-03-16 31-03-15
Loans Taken         –            –                –           –                   –   –   –           –   –   –   787.00 –   787.00 –   
Loans Repaid     –      –         –   –   –   –   –   –   –   –    787.00 –      787.00 –   
Interest Paid     –      –         –   –   –   –   –   –   –   –   4.42 –   4.42 –   
Loan Given 5,916.25 82.00 649.00          –     3,780.40       –   –   –   –   –   37,698.04 –   48,043.69 82.00 
RealisaƟon of Loan Given 6,612.11 68.80 310.00  –   799.50       –   –   –   –   –   28,501.39 –   36,223.00 68.80 
Interest Received 928.97 26.09 336.28   –   554.12     –               –   –   108.73 –   2,530.21 –   4,458.30 26.09 
Service Charges Received    –   72.00 180.00   –       –      –         –   –   –   –       1.57 –   181.57 72.00 
Reimbursements 255.11   –   209.24       –   37.54         –               –   –   78.04 –      314.97 –   894.89 –   
Deposit given u/s 160 3.00    –              –     –       –      –         –   –   –   –   –   –   3.00 –   
Deposit refund u/s 160 3.00    –              –     –       –      –         –   –   –   –       –   –    3.00 –   
Purchase of Investments 400.00            –               –        –   0.40 –        –   –   –   –    88.66 –   489.06 –   
Sale of Investments   –       –      –         –   –   –   –   – –   –   512.30 –   512.30 –   
Security Deposit given 2,500.00     –      –         –   –   –   –   – –   –   24.73 –   2,524.73 –   
Refund of Security Deposit     –       –      –         –   –   –   –   – –   –      14.74 –   14.74 –   
Advances Given     –      –   18.79     –      –         –   –   –   53.89 –       71.88 –   144.56 –   
RealisaƟon of Advances Given     –      –         –   –   0.63 –   –   –   –   –        –   –   0.63 –   
Advances Received     –      –         –   –   –   –   –   –   –   –   254.00 –   254.00 –   
Repayment of Advances 
Received

    –      –         –   –   –   –   –   –   –   –     254.00 –   254.00 –   

Rent     –      –         –   –   –   –   –   –   –   –         25.32 –   25.32 –   
Repair & Maintenance     –      –         –   –   –   –   –   –   –   –          34.72 –   34.72 –   
Electricity Charges     –      –         –   –   –   –   –   –   –   –           7.20 –   7.20 –   
Royalty     –      –         –   –   –   –   –   –   –   –       12.20 –   12.20 –   
CorporaƟon Tax     –      –         –   –   –   –   –   –   –   –         0.69 –   0.69 –   
Professional Fees     –      –         –   –   –   –   –   –   –   –         2.23 –   2.23 –   
Commission Paid     –      –         –   –   –   –   –   –   –   –   237.75 –   237.75 –   
Share of Loss in LLP     –      –         –   –   349.12     –      –         –   –   –   –   –   349.12 –   
RemuneraƟons Paid *     –      –         –   –   –   –   391.46 49.79 –   –   –   –   391.46 49.79 
Siƫng Fees **     –      –         –   –   –   –   3.20 1.38        –   –    –   –   3.20 1.38 
Corporate Guarantee given     –      –         –   –   4,700.00     –      –         –   –      –         –   –   4,700.00 –   
Corporate Guarantee taken     –      –         –   –   –   –   9,000.00 –   87,800.00 96,800.00 –   
Corporate Guarantee released     –      –         –   –   –   –   –   42,032.00 42,032.00 –   
Balance as on 31st March 
2016
Loans Given 7,951.09  –   2,768.10   –   21,241.49 –         –   –         –   –   19,426.36 –   51,387.04 –   
Interest Receivable 1,487.05     –   400.33 –   2,873.24    –         –   –   5.04 –   2,950.63 –   7,716.28 –   
Advances Given –   2,983.70    18.79         –   –      –         –   –         152.46   –   70.54 –   241.79 2,983.70 
Advances Taken –     –   12.50    –         –   –           –   –           –   –   358.67 –   371.17 –   
FluctuaƟng Capital Account 
with LLP (Credit Balance)

–      –         –   –   349.12    –         –   –         –   –   –   –   349.12 –   

Security Deposit given 2,500.00    –         –   –   –   –   –   –   –   –   10,024.73 –   12,524.73 –   
Inventories 1,186.62    –         –   –   –   –   –   –   –   –   –   –   1,186.62 –   
Receivables –    –   68.95 –   –   –   –   –   –   –           –   –   68.95 –   
Investments  –   985.01 6,088.91 –   0.41 –       –   –       –   –   –   –   6,089.32 985.01 
Corporate Guarantee given     –      –         –   –   4,700.00     –      –         –      –         –    –   –   4,700.00 –   
Corporate Guarantee taken     –      –         –   –   –   –         –   –   9,000.00 –   1,69,268.00 –   1,78,268.00 –   
* Including ` 341.30 lacs paid to the Key Management Personnel of Emami Realty Limited, the amalgamaƟng Company.
** Including ` 1.47 lacs paid to the Key Management Personnel of Emami Realty Limited, the amalgamaƟng Company.
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(` in Lacs)

29. Details of terms of repayment and securi es provided in respect of secured long-term borrowings are as under:
Term Loans from Bank

Bank Nature of Security Repayment terms Interest 
Rate

31st March 2016 31st March 2015

a ICICI Bank Limited First charge on immovable property 
owned by Oriental Sales Agencies 
(India) Private Limited at 2 Jessore 
Road, Kolkata - 700028 under the 
name of Project "Emami City" and 
its receivables thereof as well as 
addiƟonal security of a land parcel 
owned by a related party  together 
with the corporate guarantee by 
the said related party to the extent 
of the value of above mortgaged 
land. Further, the loan is secured 
by the corporate guarantee of 
Oriental Sales Agencies (India) 
Private Limited as well as Fixed 
deposits of ` 631.53 lacs kept in 
lien with Bank.

Term Loan of ` 125 crores 
is repayable in 24 monthly 
installments of ` 5.20 crore 
each commenced from 
15th March, 2016 and of ` 
90 crores is repayable in 24 
monthly installments of ` 
3.75 crore each commencing 
from 15th April, 2018. 

12.10%                      20,830.15                                -   

b ICICI Bank Limited First charge on immovable 
property owned by Add Albatross 
ProperƟes Private Limited at 34 
EgaƩur Village, Chengalpet Taluk, 
Tamil Nadu under the name of 
Project "Emami Tejomaya" and its 
receivables thereof. Further, the 
loan is secured by the corporate 
guarantee of Add Albatross 
ProperƟes Private Limited and 
Oriental Sales Agencies (India) 
Private Limited and Fixed deposits 
of ` 216.13/- lacs kept in lien with 
Bank.

Term Loan is repayable in 
30 monthly installments of 
` 4.17 crore each 
commencing from 15th 
April, 2017 

12.35%                         6,984.12                                -   

c RBL Bank Limited First charge by way of equitable 
mortgage over the project 
land at Khailar, UP, as well as 
hypothecaƟon over the inventory 
and receivables thereof. Further, 
the loan is secured by the corporate 
guarantee of four related parƟes 
and Fixed deposits of ` 300.00/- 
lacs kept in lien with Bank.

Repayable in 12 quarterly 
installments commencing 
from April 2017

10.65%                         4,500.00                                -   

Total 32,314 .27                                -   
Less: Current MaturiƟes of Long Term Debt disclosed under Other Current LiabiliƟes (Refer Note 
No. 8)

                        6,240.00                                -   

Total 26,074 .27                                -   
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(` in Lacs)

30. Details of terms of repayment and securi es provided in respect of unsecured long-term borrowings are as under:
(A) Non Conver ble Debentures

Non Conver ble 
Debentures

Nature of Security Repayment terms Interest 
Rate

31st March 2016 31st March 2015

i. 1000 Non 
ConverƟble 
Debentures of 
` 10,00,000/- each

Pledge of equity shares coupled with 
corporate guarantee of a related 
party

Principal amount plus RedempƟon 
Premium @ 11.15% p.a. compounded 
annually payable on redempƟon i.e. 26th 
April, 2018.

Zero                      10,000.00                                -   

ii. 100 Non ConverƟble 
Debentures of 
` 1,00,00,000/- each

Pledge of equity shares coupled with 
corporate guarantee of a related 
party

Principal amount plus RedempƟon 
Premium such that the yield to maturity is 
@ 11.60% p.a.  payable on redempƟon i.e. 
13th August 2017.

Zero                      10,000.00                                -   

iii. 1000 Non 
ConverƟble 
Debentures of 
` 10,00,000/- each

Pledge of equity shares coupled with 
corporate guarantee of a related 
party

Principal amount plus RedempƟon 
Premium @ 11.10% p.a.  Compounded 
annually payable on redempƟon i.e. 2nd 
September 2016.

Zero                      10,000.00                                -   

iv 100 Non-ConverƟble 
Debentures of
` 1,00,00,000/- each

First pari- passu charge by mortgage 
of Project Land at Mulund, Mumbai 
owned by Lohitka ProperƟes LLP 
along with fixed and current assets 
thereof and First pari passu charge 
on Interest Service Reserve Account 
represented by Fixed deposits of
` 344.00/- lacs kept in lien. Further, 
the loan is secured by Personal 
Guarantee of a related party.

Payable in 10 quarterly installment 
commencing from 30th October 2017.

13.65%                      10,000.00                                -   

Total                      40,000.00                                -   
Less: Current MaturiƟes of Long Term Debt disclosed under Other Current LiabiliƟes (Refer Note No. 8)                      10,000.00                                -   

Total                      30,000.00                                -   

(B)  Term Loans from Non Banking Financial Companies
Financial Ins tu ons Nature of Security Repayment terms Interest 

Rate
31st March 2016 31st March 2015 

i. Kotak Mahindra 
Prime Limited 

Pledge of equity shares by a related 
party

Repayment due on 3rd March, 2017, 
subject to the exercise of put and call 
opƟon.

11.00%                         7,300.00                                -   

ii. Tata Capital Finance 
Services Limited

Pledge of equity shares by a related 
party

Repayment due on 14th March, 2017, 
subject to the exercise of put and call 
opƟon.

10.25%                         5,000.00                                -   

Repayment due on 8th February, 2017, 
subject to the exercise of put and call 
opƟon.

10.25%                         4,000.00                                -   

iii. L & T Finance Ltd Equitable Mortgage of Land at Jhansi 
owned alongwith certain related 
parƟes.

12 equal quarterly instalments of 
` 5.00 crore each commenced from 29th 
October 2015

12.20%                         5,000.00                                -   

Family Credit Ltd 12 equal quarterly instalments of 
` 3.33 crore each commenced from 29th 
October 2015

12.20%                         3,333.33                                -   

Total                      24,633.33                                -   
Less: Current MaturiƟes of Long Term Debt disclosed under Other Current LiabiliƟes (Refer Note No. 8)                      12,333.33                                -   

Total                      12,300.00                                -   
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31. Details of terms of repayment and securi es provided in respect of unsecured short-term borrowings are as under:
(A) Non Conver ble Debentures

Non Conver ble 
Debentures

Nature of Security Repayment terms Interest 
Rate

31st March 2016 31st March 2015 

i. 1000 Non 
ConverƟble 
Debentures of 
` 10,00,000/- each

Pledge of equity shares coupled 
with corporate guarantee of a 
related party

Principal amount plus 
RedempƟon Premium @ 
10.60% p.a.  Compounded 
annually payable on 
redempƟon i.e 8th July 2016

Zero                      10,000.00                                -   

Total                      10,000.00                                -   
(B) Term Loans from Non Banking Financial Companies

Financial 
Ins tu ons

Nature of Security Repayment terms Interest 
Rate

31st March 2016 31st March 2015 

i. Bajaj Finance 
Limited

Pledge of equity shares coupled 
with corporate guarantee by a 
related party

Repayment on 18th June 
2016, subject to the exercise 
of put and call opƟon.

10.15%                         2,000.00                                -   

ii. STCI Finance 
Limited

Pledge of equity shares coupled 
with corporate guarantee by a 
related party

Repayment on 2nd February, 
2017, subject to the exercise 
of put and call opƟon.  

10.15%                         4,000.00                                -   

iii Axis Finance 
Limited

Mortgage over Jhansi Land owned 
by certain related parƟes to be 
created within 3 months from the 
date of disbursement, i.e., 27th 
March, 2016

Repayment on 23rd March, 
2017

12.00%                         4,000.00                                -   

Total                      10,000.00                                -   

32. AUDITORS REMUNERATION

2015-16 2014-15 
As Auditors :

Audit Fees *  7.68  1.25 
Tax Audit Fees *  0.50  -   
Fees for Limited Review  0.45  0.45 
Others *  2.01  0.18 

 10.64  1.88 

* Inclding ̀  8.51 lac and ̀  0.17 lac paid to the auditors of Emami Realty Limited and Emami Rainbow Niketan Private Limited respecƟ vely, 
the amalgamaƟ ng Companies.

(` in Lacs)

33. INVESTMENT IN LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP

Company's Profit Sharing Ra o
I. Lohitka ProperƟes LLP (w.e.f. 01.04.2015) 10%
II. Supervalue Nirman LLP 1%

34. The Company has reƟ red from the partnership fi rm M/s P.S. Srijan Projects w.e.f. 1st April 2015.



60 infrastructure limited

Standalone Financial Statements

35. Current Non-Trade Investments Purchased and sold during the year 

Par culars

2015-16 2014-15

Purchased Sold Purchased Sold

Nos. of Units. Nos. of Units. Nos. of Units. Nos. of Units.
Birla Sun Life Cash Plus - Growth Direct Plan  41,87,572.228  41,87,572.228  –   –
Birla Sun Life Cash Plus - Growth Regular Plan  2,33,932.727  2,33,932.727  –   –

36. Current Trade Investments Purchased, acquired and sold during the year 

31st March 2016 31st March 2015 
PainƟng
Acquired on amalgamaƟon as on 1st April 2015  906.30 –
Add: Purchases  88.67  –   
Less: Sales  512.30 –
Less: Transferred to Fixed Assets  63.00 –
Closing Balance  419.67 –

37. The Company has entered into Joint Development Agreements for development of projects at Chennai & at 
Kolkata. Also, the Company is entering into an agreement with Sneha Ashiana Private Limited, pursuant to which 
the Company will develop its property at Coimbatore, for which a formal agreement is yet to be executed.

38. AMALGAMATION OF WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 
 a)  Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement for AmalgamaƟ on (hereinaŌ er called “the Scheme”) sancƟ oned by the 

Hon’ble High Court at CalcuƩ a vide its order dated 14th June, 2016, Emami Realty Limited (“ERL”) and Emami 
Rainbow Niketan Private Limited (“ERNPL”), wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company engaged in the business 
of real estate, have been amalgamated with the Company with eff ect from 1st April 2015 (the “appointed date”) 
and pursuant thereto, the enƟ re business and all assets and liabiliƟ es of ERL and ERNPL have been transferred to 
and vested in the Company on a going concern basis, w.e.f. the appointed date. The Scheme became eff ecƟ ve on 
22nd July 2016 (the “eff ecƟ ve date”), upon fi ling of the Order of Hon’ble High Court at CalcuƩ a with the Registrar 
of Companies, West Bengal. Consequent to such fi ling, the Scheme has been given eff ect to in these fi nancial 
statements.  

 b)  The amalgamaƟ on has been accounted for under the “Pooling of Interest” method as prescribed by AccounƟ ng 
Standard 14 “AccounƟ ng for AmalgamaƟ ons” specifi ed under SecƟ on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. Accordingly, the assets, liabiliƟ es and reserves of ERL and ERNPL 
as at 1st April 2015 have been taken over at their book values and in the same form.   

 c)  Pursuant to the Scheme coming into eff ect :      
  i) All the equity shares held by the Company in ERL and ERNPL stand cancelled. 
  ii)  In accordance with the Scheme, the diff erence between the carrying value of investment in ERL in the books 

of the Company and the aggregate face value of shares of ERL has been adjusted against the SecuriƟ es 
Premium Account of the Company.

  iii)  The diff erence between carrying value of investments in ERNPL in the books of the Company and the 
aggregate face value of shares of ERNPL has been adjusted against the Surplus in the Statement of Profi t & 
Loss of the Company.

  iv) Debit Balance in Statement of Profi t & Loss of ERL and ERNPL has been adjusted against the Surplus in 
Statement of Profi t & Loss of the Company.

 d)  The fi nancial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2016, were earlier approved by the 
Board of Directors at their meeƟ ng held on 27th May, 2016 on which the Statutory Auditors of the Company had 
issued their report dated 27th May, 2016. These fi nancial statements have been reopened and revised to give 
eff ect to the Scheme as stated hereinabove.
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39. The Company has iniƟ ated criminal proceedings against M/S Karthikeya Ancillaries Pvt. Ltd. & its directors with 
whom it has entered into Area Assignment Agreement for purchase of 28,750 sqŌ  area in the proposed Shopping 
Mall at Coimbatore. The book value of total Investment in the project as on 31/03/2016 is ` 9,62,42,855. Further, 
pursuant to the order of the Hon’ble Madras High Court, JusƟ ce P K Balasubramanyan, ReƟ red Judge of the Hon’ble 
Supreme Court of India, the Sole Arbitrator, has commenced the arbitraƟ on proceedings and the Company has 
fi led the Statement of Claims. The maƩ er is pending disposal before the Arbitral Tribunal. The Company has been 
legally advised that the result of such proceedings are expected to be in its favour. 

40. The Company operates in a single business segment i.e. Real Estate Development. Therefore, segment reporƟ ng as 
per AS - 17 noƟ fi ed by the Companies (AccounƟ ng Standard) Rules 2006 is not applicable.

41. Con  ngent Liabili  es not provided for in respect of:

 a.  Corporate Guarantee given to Axis Finance Ltd for Lohitka ProperƟ es LLP ` 4,700 Lacs (P.Y. ` Nil) 
 b.  Disputed Tax demands ` 82.02 Lacs (P. Y. ` 47.29 Lacs)
 c.  Bank Guarantee to Sales Tax AuthoriƟ es ` 38.20 Lacs (P.Y. ` Nil) 

42. Expenditure in Foreign Currency (on payment basis)                                                                                           (` in Lacs) 

2015-16 2014-15 
Employee Training Expenses  28.96 –
Design Consultancy Services  67.58 –
Others  9.57  –   

 106.11 –

43. The accounƟ ng of share of loss in a LLP in which the Company has become partner, with eff ect from 1st April, 2015, 
has been done based on unaudited fi nancial statements and any diff rence in the fi gure of loss will be accounted for 
on compleƟ on of the audit of such LLP.

44. There were no dues outstanding for more than 45 days to any Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Creditor. 
The above informaƟ on regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise has been determined to the extent such 
communicaƟ on has been received from the respecƟ ve parƟ es by the Company. This has been relied upon by the 
Auditors.

45. Since there is no virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence, the Company has not recognized deferred 
tax assets of ` 343.55 lacs (P.Y. ` 6.13 lacs) as at  31.03.2016 on unabsorbed business loss as recommended under 
AccounƟ ng Standard (AS - 22) on “Deferred TaxaƟ on” issued by The InsƟ tute of Chartered Accountants of India.

 (` in Lacs)

Par culars 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Timing Difference with respect to DepreciaƟon  (52.16)  –   
Total  (52.16)  –   
Deferred tax liability (A)  (18.05)  –   
Current year Loss  445.64  19.84 
Earlier year loss  434.40  –   
Provision for Gratuity  77.52  –   
Provision for Leave Encashment  87.29  –   
Total  1,044.84  19.84 
Deferred Tax Assets (B)  361.60  6.13 
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) (B-A)  343.55  6.13 
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As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For S. K. AGRAWAL & CO. Abhijit Da a Hari Mohan Marda Ram Gobind Ganeriwala
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director Director
Firm RegistraƟon No. 306033E

J. K. Choudhury Karabi Sengupta Girja Kumar Choudhary Payel Jain
Partner Director Whole me Director & CFO Company Secretary
M. No. 009367
Place : Kolkata
Date : 11th August, 2016

46. a)  Previous year’s fi gures have been rearranged  or regrouped wherever necessary. 

 b)  In view of the amalgamaƟ on of Emami Realty Limited and Emami Rainbow Niketan Private Limited with the 
Company with eff ect from 1st April 2015, the fi gures for the current year are not comparable with those of the 
previous year.
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To the Members of
Emami Infrastructure Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 
(REVISED)
We have audited the accompanying REVISED Consolidated 
Financial Statements of EMAMI INFRASTRUCTURE 
LIMITED (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries and 
associates (collecƟ vely referred to as “the Company” or “the 
Group”), comprising of the REVISED Consolidated Balance 
Sheet as at 31stMarch 2016, the REVISED Consolidated 
Statement of Profi t and Loss, the REVISED Consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a 
summary of the signifi cant accounƟ ng policies and other 
explanatory informaƟ on (hereinaŌ er referred to as “the 
REVISED Consolidated Financial Statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
the preparaƟ on of these Consolidated Financial Statements 
in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated 
fi nancial posiƟ on, consolidated fi nancial performance and 
consolidated cash fl ows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounƟ ng principles generally accepted in India, 
including the AccounƟ ng Standards specifi ed under SecƟ on 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinaŌ er referred to as 
“the Act”) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. The Board of Directors of the Company are 
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounƟ ng 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for prevenƟ ng 
and detecƟ ng frauds and other irregulariƟ es; the selecƟ on 
and applicaƟ on of appropriate accounƟ ng policies; making 
judgments and esƟ mates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and the design, implementaƟ on and maintenance of 
adequate internal fi nancial controls, that were operaƟ ng 
eff ecƟ vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounƟ ng records, relevant to the preparaƟ on and 
presentaƟ on of the Financial Statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for 
the purpose of preparaƟ on of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as 
aforesaid.

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. 
While conducƟ ng the audit, we have taken into account 
the provisions of the Act, the accounƟ ng and audiƟ ng 
standards and maƩ ers which are required to be included 
in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules made thereunder. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on AudiƟ ng specifi ed under secƟ on 143(10) of the Act. 
Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated 
Financial Statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal fi nancial control relevant to the Holding 
Company’s preparaƟ on of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
An audit also includes evaluaƟ ng the appropriateness of 
the accounƟ ng policies used and the reasonableness of 
the accounƟ ng esƟ mates made by the Holding Company’s 
Board of Directors, as well as evaluaƟ ng the overall 
presentaƟ on of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the 
audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of 
their report referred to Other MaƩ er paragraph below is 
suffi  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟ on and 
according to the explanaƟ ons given to us, the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements give the informaƟ on 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounƟ ng 
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated 
state of aff airs of the Company, as at 31st March 2016, and 
their consolidated loss and their consolidated cash fl ows 
for the year ended on that date. 

Other Ma  ers

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for 
the year ended 31st March 2016 were earlier approved by 
the Board of Directors at their meeƟ ng held on 27th May 
2016, on which we had issued our report dated 27th May 
2016. These consolidated fi nancial statements have been 
reopened and revised to give eff ect to Scheme as explained 
in Note 40 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

The REVISED Consolidated Financial Statements also 
included the Group’s share of net loss of ` 0.20 lacs for 
the year ended 31st March, 2016, but the same has not 
been considered as the book value of investment in 
associate has become NIL, in respect of the associate, 
whose Financial Statements has been audited by other 
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auditor whose reports have been furnished to us by the 
Management and our opinion on the REVISED Consolidated 
Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts 
and disclosures included in respect of this associate, and our 
report in terms of sub-secƟ on (3) and (11) of SecƟ on 143 of 
the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associate, is 
based solely on the reports of other auditor.  

The Financial Statement of one  of its LLPs is on the basis 
of unaudited accounts and the Consolidated Financial 
Statements refl ect the share of net loss of ` 349.12 lacs for 
the above LLP for the year then ended.
Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this maƩer.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
1. As required by sub-secƟ on 3 of SecƟ on 143 of the Act, 

we report, to the extent applicable, that: 
 a. We have sought and obtained all the informaƟon 

and explanaƟons which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law relaƟ ng to preparaƟ on of the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept 
so far as it appears from our examinaƟ on of those 
books and the reports of the other auditor.

c) The REVISED Consolidated Balance Sheet, the 
REVISED Consolidated Statement of Profi t and 
Loss, and the REVISED Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparaƟ on of the 
REVISED Consolidated Financial Statements. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid REVISED Consolidated 
Financial Statements comply with the AccounƟ ng 
Standards specifi ed under SecƟ on 133 of the Act, 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. 

e) On the basis of the wriƩ en representaƟ ons 
received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on 31st March 2016 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company 

and the report of the subsidiary companies and 
the report of statutory auditors of its associate 
company, none of the Directors of the Group 
companies and its associates except Mr. Suressh 
Menda, whose declaraƟ on has not been received 
by the Company, is disqualifi ed as on 31st March 
2016 from being appointed as a Director in terms 
of sub-secƟ on 2 of SecƟ on 164 of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporƟ ng of the 
Group and the operaƟ ng eff ecƟ veness of such 
controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure 
A”; and

g) With respect to the other maƩ ers to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our informaƟ on 
and according to the explanaƟ ons given to us:

  (i) The Consolidated Financial Statements 
disclose the impact of pending liƟ gaƟ ons 
on the Consolidated  Financial posiƟ on 
of the Group - Refer to Note 50(b) to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements;

  (ii)  The Group did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivaƟ ve contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses.

  (iii) There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor EducaƟ on and ProtecƟ on Fund by 
the associate companies. Further, there is no 
sum which needs to be transferred, to the 
Investment EducaƟ on and ProtecƟ on Fund 
by the holding company and the subsidiary 
companies.

 For S. K. AGRAWAL & CO.
 Chartered Accountants
 Firm RegistraƟon No. 306033E

  J. K. Choudhury
Place : Kolkata Partner
Date  : 11th August, 2016 Membership No. 009367

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause 
(i) of Sub-sec on 3 of Sec on 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) 
In conjuncƟon with our audit of the REVISED Consolidated 
Financial Statements of the Company as of and for the 
year ended 31st March 2016, we have audited the internal 
financial controls over financial reporƟng of Emami 
Infrastructure Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its 
subsidiary companies, and its associate companies as of 
that date.

ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls 
The RespecƟve Board of Directors of the Holding Company, 
its subsidiary companies and its associate companies, 
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial 
reporƟng criteria established by the Company considering 
the essenƟal components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial ReporƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered 
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Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibiliƟes 
include the design, implementaƟon and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operaƟng 
effecƟvely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevenƟon and detecƟon of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounƟng records, and the Ɵmely preparaƟon of reliable 
financial informaƟon, as required under the Companies Act 
2013.
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporƟng based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial ReporƟng (the “Guidance Note”) issued by ICAI 
and the Standards on AudiƟng, issued by ICAI and deemed 
to be prescribed under secƟon 143(10) of the Act, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls, 
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 
and, both issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporƟng was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effecƟvely in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporƟng and their operaƟng 
effecƟveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporƟng included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporƟng, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and tesƟng and 
evaluaƟng the design and operaƟng effecƟveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and 
the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the 
associate companies in terms of their report referred to 
in the Other MaƩers paragraph below, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporƟng. 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Repor ng 
A Company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporƟng is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporƟng 
and the preparaƟon of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 

accounƟng principles. A Company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporƟng includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transacƟons and disposiƟons of the assets of the Company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transacƟons are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparaƟon of Financial 
Statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounƟng principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the Company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizaƟons of management and directors of the 
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevenƟon or Ɵmely detecƟon of unauthorized acquisiƟon, 
use, or disposiƟon of the Company’s assets that could have 
a material effect on the Financial Statements. 
Inherent Limita ons of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Repor ng 
Because of the inherent limitaƟons of internal financial 
controls over financial reporƟng, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projecƟons of any evaluaƟon 
of the internal financial controls over financial reporƟng 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporƟng may become 
inadequate because of changes in condiƟons, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary 
companies and its associate companies have, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporƟng and such internal financial controls 
over financial reporƟng were operaƟng effecƟvely as at 
March 31, 2016, based on the internal control over financial 
reporƟng criteria established by the Company considering 
the essenƟal components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note issued on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial ReporƟng issued by ICAI.
Other Ma ers
Our aforesaid report under SecƟon 143(3)(i) of the Act 
on the adequacy and operaƟng effecƟveness of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporƟng in so 
far as it relates to one associate company is based on the 
corresponding reports of the auditors of such company.

For S. K. AGRAWAL & CO.
 Chartered Accountants
 Firm RegistraƟon No. 306033E

  J.K.Choudhury
Place : Kolkata Partner
Date  : 11th August, 2016 Membership No. 009367
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(` in Lacs)

Note 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital 2  485.97  485.97 
Reserves and Surplus 3 946.29 1,432.26  4,067.20  4,553.17 
Minority Interest  7.92  7.92 
Non - Current Liabili es
Long - Term Borrowings 4  68,374.27  72,400.56 
Long - Term Provisions 5  152.99  68,527.26  95.31  72,495.87 
Current Liabili es
Short - Term Borrowings 6  22,566.75  6,952.65 
Trade Payables 7  2,257.60  2,825.39 
Other Current LiabiliƟes 8  75,871.72  60,647.25 
Short - Term Provisions 9  11.81  1,00,707.88  1,508.77  71,934.06 
TOTAL 1,70,675.32  1,48,991.02 
ASSETS
Non - Current Assets
Fixed Assets 10

Tangible Assets  113.50  115.79 
Intangible Assets  15.28  11.98 

Goodwill  on ConsolidaƟon 11  1,165.19  932.72 
Non - Current Investments 12 17,050.97  18,252.82 
Long - Term Loans and Advances 13  11,150.86  12,978.66 
Other Non - Current Assets 14  475.11 29,970.91  142.00  32,433.97 
Current Assets
Current Investments 15  419.66  906.30 
Inventories 16 67,001.71  71,031.33 
Trade Receivables 17  50.16  -   
Cash and Bank Balances 18  1,408.19  1,011.78 
Short - Term Loans and Advances 19  71,824.69  1,40,704.41  43,607.64  1,16,557.05 
TOTAL  1,70,675.32 1,48,991.02

Summary of Significant AccounƟng 
Policies and Notes to Accounts

1 to 52

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as at 31st March, 2016

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For S. K. AGRAWAL & CO. Abhijit Da a Hari Mohan Marda Ram Gobind Ganeriwala
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director Director
Firm RegistraƟon No. 306033E

J. K. Choudhury Karabi Sengupta Girja Kumar Choudhary Payel Jain
Partner Director Whole me Director & CFO Company Secretary
M. No.  009367

Place : Kolkata
Date : 11th August, 2016
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As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For S. K. AGRAWAL & CO. Abhijit Da a Hari Mohan Marda Ram Gobind Ganeriwala
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director Director
Firm RegistraƟon No. 306033E

J. K. Choudhury Karabi Sengupta Girja Kumar Choudhary Payel Jain
Partner Director Whole me Director & CFO Company Secretary
M. No.  009367

Place : Kolkata
Date : 11th August, 2016

(` in Lacs)
Note 2015-16  2014-15 

INCOME
Revenue from OperaƟons 20  24,180.77  2,774.12 
Other Income 21  8,582.30  4,521.38 
Increase/(Decrease) in Inventories 22  9.10  29,383.95 
Total Revenue (I)  32,772.17  36,679.45 
EXPENSES
Purchases 23  772.12  3,402.76 
Employee Benefits Expense 24  1,769.70  1,724.66 
Finance Costs 25  13,668.81  9,577.27 
Project Expenses 26  16,619.67  22,818.73 
DepreciaƟon and AmorƟsaƟon Expense  63.65  72.12 
Other Expenses 27  548.57  136.94 
Total Expenses (II)  33,442.52  37,732.48 
Loss Before Tax (I-II)  (670.35)  (1,053.03)
Tax Expenses

Current Tax -  -   
Income Tax for Earlier Years (net)  4.42  1.39 

Loss a er Tax before Minority Interest  (674.77)  (1,054.42)
Add : Share of Profit/(Loss) transferred to Minority Interest  0.01  (0.10)
Loss before Share from Associates  (674.78)  (1,054.32)
Less : Share of Profit from Associates  250.80  2,281.54 
Profit/(Loss) for the year  (423.98)  1,227.22 

Earnings per Equity Share of face value of ` 2/- each
Basic & Diluted 28 (1.74) 5.05
Summary of Significant AccounƟng Policies and Notes to Accounts 1 to 52

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS for the year ended 31st March, 2016
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(` in Lacs)
2015-16  2014-15

A.  CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax  (670.35)  (1,053.03)
Add : Adjusted for :
DepreciaƟon and AmorƟsaƟon Expense  63.65  72.12 
Finance Costs  13,668.81  9,577.27 
Share of (Profit)/Loss in Partnership Firm  -    (13.46)
Share of (Profit)/Loss in LLP  349.12  -   
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  (0.06)  0.18 
Interest Income  (8,134.81)  (4,111.56)
Profit on Sale of units of Mutual Funds  (13.54)  (56.05)
Opera ng Profit before Working Capital Changes  5,262.82  4,415.48 
Adjusted for :
Long - Term Provisions  57.69  12.16 
Trade Payables  (567.79)  1,875.53 
Other Current LiabiliƟes  14,875.35  7,652.58 
Short - Term Provisions  (1,496.96)  1,474.98 
Long - Term Loans and Advances  1,827.80  (5.08)
Inventories  4,029.62  (29,383.95)
Trade Receivables  (50.16)  -   
Short - Term Loans and Advances  Έ270.31Ή  Έ785.58Ή
Cash Generated from Opera ons  23,668.06  (14,743.88)
Less : Taxes Paid  4.42  1.39 
Net Cash from Opera ng Ac vi es (A)  23,663.64  (14,745.27)

B.   CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets  (103.81)  (17.79)
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets  39.20  0.41 
Purchase of units of Mutual Funds  (10,450.00)  (21,000.00)
Sale of units of Mutual Funds  10,463.54  21,056.04 
Purchase of Long Term Investment  (1,517.37)  (4,772.74)
Investment in LLP  (0.40)  -   
Investment in Partnership Firm  41.00  90.00 
Purchase of Current Investments  -    (906.30)
Sale of Current Investments  486.64  -   
Loans Given  (61,415.31)  (45,797.64)
Loans Realised  33,468.58  52,357.00 
Investment in Fixed Deposits  (333.11)  199.86 
Interest Received  8,134.81  1,942.87 
Net Cash from Inves ng Ac vi es (B)  (21,186.23)  3,151.71 

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31st March, 2016
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(` in Lacs)
2015-16  2014-15

C.   CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Long-Term Borrowings  (4,026.29)  36,945.13 
Proceeds from Short-Term Borrowings  15,614.10  (15,970.83)
Interest Paid  (13,668.81)  (9,577.27)
Net Cash from Financing Ac vi es (C)  (2,081.00)  11,397.03 
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  396.41  (196.53)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year *  1,011.78  1,208.31 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year *  1,408.19  1,011.78 

* Represents Cash and Bank Balance as indicated in Note No. 18

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For S. K. AGRAWAL & CO. Abhijit Da a Hari Mohan Marda Ram Gobind Ganeriwala
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director Director
Firm RegistraƟon No. 306033E

J. K. Choudhury Karabi Sengupta Girja Kumar Choudhary Payel Jain
Partner Director Whole me Director & CFO Company Secretary
M. No.  009367

Place : Kolkata
Date : 11th August, 2016



Consolidated Financial Statements

70 infrastructure limited

I.  Principles of Consolida on  
 The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to 

EMAMI INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (“the Company”), 
its Subsidiary Companies and Associate Companies 
(referred to as “the group”) (Refer Note 1(xix) (a & 
b)). The Subsidiary and Associate Companies have 
been consolidated as per AccounƟng Standards on 
AccounƟng for Consolidated Financial Statements (AS 
21) and AccounƟng for Investments in Associates in 
Consolidated Financial Statements (AS 23) respecƟvely 
noƟfied in Companies (AccounƟng Standards) Rules 
2006. The Consolidated Financial Statements have 
been prepared on the following basis:-

 a.  The Consolidated Financial Statements have been 
combined on line-by-line basis by adding together 
the book values of like items of assets, liabiliƟes, 
income and expenses, aŌer fully eliminaƟng all 
significant intra-group transacƟons / balances 
and resulƟng unrealised profits or losses.

 b.  Investments in Associate Companies have been 
accounted as per AccounƟng Standard (AS) 23 
“AccounƟng for Investments in Associates in 
Consolidated Financial Statements” noƟfied by 
the Companies (AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 
2006.

 c.  The difference  between the cost of investment 
in the Subsidiaries over its proporƟonate share in 
the net assets value at the Ɵme of acquisiƟon of 
stake in subsidiaries is recognised in the financial 
statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the 
case may be. 

 d.  Goodwill arising out of consolidaƟon is not being 
amorƟzed.

 e.  Minority interest in the net assets of consolidated 
subsidiaries consists of:

  (a) the amount of equity aƩributable to 
minoriƟes at the date on which investment 
in a subsidiary is made; and

  (b) the minority share of movements in 
equity since the date the parent subsidiary 
relaƟonship came into existence.

 f.  The difference  between the cost of investment 
in the Associates and the Company’s share of net 
assets at the Ɵme of acquisiƟon of share in the 
Associates is idenƟfied in the financial statements 
as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may 
be.

 g.  As far as possible the Consolidated Financial 
Statements are prepared using uniform 
accounƟng policies for like transacƟons and 
other events in similar circumstances and are 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ON CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

presented in the same manner as the Company’s 
Financial Statements.

 h.  The Financial Statements of the enƟƟes used for 
the purpose of consolidaƟon are drawn up to the 
same reporƟng date as that of the Company.

II.  Basis of prepara on  
 These financial statements are prepared in accordance 

with Indian Generally Accepted AccounƟng Principles 
(GAAP) under the historical cost convenƟon on the 
accrual basis. GAAP comprises mandatory accounƟng 
standards as prescribed under SecƟon 133 of the 
Companies Act 2013 (the ‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 and the provisions 
of the Act (to the extent noƟfied). AccounƟng policies 
have been consistently applied except where a new 
accounƟng standard is iniƟally adopted or a revision 
to an exisƟng accounƟng standard requires a change 
in the accounƟng policy hitherto in use.

III.  Use of es mates
 The preparaƟon of financial statements, in conformity 

with the generally accepted accounƟng principles, 
requires esƟmates and assumpƟons to be made that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabiliƟes on 
the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporƟng period. Differences between actual results 
and esƟmates are recognized in the period in which 
the results are known / materialized.

IV.  Fixed Assets 
 Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated 

depreciaƟon. Interest and other financial charges on 
loans borrowed specifically for acquisiƟon of capital 
assets are capitalized Ɵll the start of its intended use.

V.  Intangible Assets 
 Intangible assets are recognized, only if it is probable 

that the future economic benefits that are aƩributable 
to the assets will flow to the enterprises and the cost 
of the assets can be measured reliably. The intangible 
assets are recorded at cost and are carried at cost 
less accumulated amorƟzaƟon and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any.  

VI.  Deprecia on and Amor sa on
 DepreciaƟon are provided on wriƩen down value basis, 

at the rate determined with reference to the useful 
lives specified in the Schedule II of the Companies Act 
2013. 

 Intangible Assets are amorƟzed over a period of five 
years.

VII.  Investments   
 Long term investments are stated at cost. Current 
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investments are stated at cost or fair value whichever 
is lower. DiminuƟon in value of long term investments 
other than temporary in nature is charged to Statement 
of Profit & Loss.

VIII.  Inventories 
 Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value 

whichever is lower except ConstrucƟon Work-in-
Progress which are valued at cost. ConstrucƟon 
Work-in-Progress includes cost of land, premium for 
development rights, construcƟon costs, allocated 
interest and expenses incidental to  the projects 
undertaken by the Company.

IX.  Provisions and Con ngent Liabili es 
 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a 

legal and construcƟve obligaƟon as a result of a past 
event, for which it is probable that a cash ouƞlow will 
be required and reliable esƟmate can be made of the 
amount of the obligaƟon. ConƟngent liabiliƟes are 
disclosed when the Company has a possible obligaƟon 
or a present obligaƟon and it is probable that a cash 
ouƞlow will not be required to seƩle the obligaƟon. 
Provisions and ConƟngent LiabiliƟes are revalued at 
each Balance sheet date.

X.  Revenue Recogni on 
 Revenue are recognised in accordance with the guiding 

principles of AccounƟng Standard - 9, noƟfied in the 
Companies (AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 2006. 

XI.  Borrowing Costs
 Borrowing costs that are aƩributable to the acquisiƟon 

or construcƟon of qualifying assets are capitalized as 
part of the cost of assets. All other borrowing costs 
are charged to revenue. A qualifying asset is one that 
takes substanƟal period of Ɵme to get ready for its 
intended use.

XII.  Employee Benefits
 a)  Short term employee benefits are recognised 

as expense at the undiscounted amount in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which 
the related service is rendered.

 b)  Post employment and other long term employee 
benefits are recognised as expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss  for the year in which 
the employees have rendered services. The 
expenses are recognised at the present value of 
amounts payable determined using the actuarial 
valuaƟon techniques at the end of each financial 
year. Actuarial gains or losses in respect of post 
employment and other long term benefits are 
charged to Statement of Profit & Loss.

XIII.  Taxa on
 Income Tax expense comprises current tax and 

deferred taxes. Income tax Expense is accounted for 
in accordance with AS-22 “AccounƟng for Taxes on 
Income” which includes current tax and deferred taxes. 

Deferred income tax reflects the impact of current 
year Ɵming differences between taxable income and 
accounƟng income for the year and reversal of Ɵming 
differences for earlier years. Deferred tax assets 
arising from Ɵming differences are recognised to the 
extent, there is reasonable certainty that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available against which 
such deferred tax assets will be realised. 

XIV.  Foreign Currency Transac ons
 TransacƟons in foreign currency are recorded at 

the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 
transacƟon. Assets and liabiliƟes related to foreign 
currency transacƟons, remaining unseƩled at the year 
end, are translated at the year end exchange rates. 
Forward exchange contracts, remaining unseƩled at 
the year end, backed by underlying assets or liabiliƟes 
are also translated at year end exchange rates. The 
premium payable on foreign exchange contracts is 
amorƟsed over the period of the contract. Exchange 
gains/losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

XV.  Impairment of Assets
 The Company idenƟfies impairable assets at the 

year end in accordance with the guiding principles 
of AccounƟng Standard 28, noƟfied in Companies 
(AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 2006, for the purpose 
of arriving at impairment loss thereon being the 
difference between the book value and recoverable 
value of relevant assets. Impairment loss, when 
crystallizes, are charged against revenues for the 
year. 

XVI.  Segment Repor ng 
 Based on the guiding principles given in the AccounƟng 

Standard - 17 on “Segment ReporƟng”, issued by 
the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India, the 
Company’s primary business segment is Real Estate. 
Hence, the disclosure requirements of AS-17 in this 
regard is not applicable.

XVII. Earning per share
 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the 

net profit/loss for the period aƩributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period.  

 For the purpose of calculaƟng diluted earnings per 
share, the net profit or loss for the period aƩributable 
to equity shareholders and the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period are adjusted for the effects for all diluƟve 
potenƟal equity shares.

XVIII. Cash and Cash Equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow 

statement comprise current account bank balance, 
cash in hand and bank deposit account balance.
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XIX. List of Subsidiaries and Associates which alongwith Emami Infratsructure Limited, the parent, cons tute the Group, 
considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements are as under:   

(a) Subsidiaries  Country of Incorpora on  Extent of Holding 
Sneha Ashiana Private Limited                                                                                                                India 100%
Emami ConstrucƟons Private Limited (Ceased w.e.f. 30th 
March, 2016 )                                                                                                        

 India 100%

New Age Realty Private Limited                                                                                                                 India 60%
Delta PV Private Limited                                                                                                                 India 55%

(b) Associates  Country of Incorpora on  Extent of Holding 
Roseview Developers Private Limited *                       India 50%
Prajay Urban Private Limited *  India 50%

Bengal Emami Housing Limited  India 30%

Swanhousing & Infra Private Limited w.e.f. 4th February, 2016  India 33.66%
Zandu Realty Limited  India 35.51%

 * The carrying amount of the investment has been reported as Nil, as the Group’s share of losses exceeds the cost/carrying value.

(` in Lacs)

2. SHARE CAPITAL

31st March 2016 31st March 2015 

Authorized Shares

2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 2/- each  500.00  500.00 

20,50,000 Equity Shares of  ` 10/- each #  205.00  -   

 705.00  500.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up

2,42,98,392 Equity Shares of ` 2/- each  485.97  485.97 

 485.97  485.97 
# Represents the amount relaƟng to the amalgamaƟng Companies

a. Reconcilia on of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repor ng period

EQUITY SHARES
31st March 2016 31st March 2015

No. of Shares (` in lacs) No. of Shares (` in lacs)

At the beginning of the period  2,42,98,392  485.97  2,42,98,392  485.97 

Issued during the period  -    -    -    -   

Outstanding at the end of the period  2,42,98,392  485.97  2,42,98,392  485.97 

b. Rights a ached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 2/- per share. Each holder of equity shares 
is enƟtled to one vote per share.  In the event of liquidaƟon of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be 
enƟtled to receive remaining assets of the Company, aŌer distribuƟon of all preferenƟal amounts. The distribuƟon 
will be in proporƟon to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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c. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in Company

NAME OF SHAREHOLDERS
31st March 2016 31st March 2015

No of
 shares

% holding 
in the class

No of
 shares

% holding 
in the class

Diwakar Viniyog  Private Limited  34,12,491 14.04%  34,12,491 14.04%

Suntrack Commerce Private Limted  29,84,237 12.28%  29,84,237 12.28%

Bhanu Vyapaar Private Limited  27,78,899 11.44%  27,78,899 11.44%

Emami Enclave Makers Private Limited  14,11,000 5.81%  14,11,000 5.81%

Emami High Rise Private Limited  13,92,000 5.73%  13,92,000 5.73%

Suraj Viniyog Private Limited  12,94,491 5.33%  12,94,491 5.33%

(` in Lacs)

3. RESERVES & SURPLUS

 31st March 2016  31st March 2015 

Capital Reserve  
At the beginning and at the end of the year  2,342.49  2,342.49 
Surplus/ (Deficit) in the Statement of Profit & Loss
At the beginning of the year  1,724.71  499.91 
Less: Adjustment of loss arising on consolidaƟon of investments sold to a 
subsidiary in an earlier year (Refer Note No. 42)  2,931.36 

 -   

Less: Goodwill arising on ConsolidaƟon adjusted (Refer Note No. 43)  234.43  -   
Add: Surplus/(deficit) transferred from Statement of Profit & Loss  (423.98)  1,227.22 
Less: Adjustment on account of Schedule-II DepreciaƟon  -    2.42 
Net surplus/ (deficit) in the Statement of Profit & Loss  (1,396.20)  1,724.71 
Total Reserves and Surplus  946.29  4,067.20 

4. LONG  TERM BORROWINGS

Secured

Term Loans from Banks (Refer Note No. 31)  26,074.27  14,375.56 

(A)  26,074.27  14,375.56 

Unsecured

Non ConverƟble Debentures (Refer Note No. 32A)  30,000.00  30,000.00 

OpƟonally ConverƟble Debentures *  -    3,025.00 

Term Loans from Non Banking Financial Companies  (Refer Note No. 32B)  12,300.00  25,000.00 

(B)  42,300.00  58,025.00 

(A+B)  68,374.27  72,400.56 

* Represents 56 OpƟonally ConverƟble Redeemable Debentures of face value of ` 50 lacs each issued on 21/02/2011 and 9 OpƟonally 
ConverƟble Redeemable Debentures of face value of ` 25 lacs each issued on 31/03/2012 which have been redeemed at par on 
05/09/2015.
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(` in Lacs)
5. LONG  TERM PROVISIONS

31st March 2016 31st March 2015 
Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note No. 29)  

Gratuity  73.90  49.15 
Leave Encashment  79.09  46.16 

 152.99  95.31 

6. SHORT  TERM BORROWINGS

Secured
OverdraŌ Facility from Bank (Refer Note No. 31B)*  331.10  1,753.63 

(A)  331.10  1,753.63 
Unsecured
Non ConverƟble Debentures (Refer Note No. 32A)  12,000.00  -   
Term Loan from Non Banking Financial Companies (Refer Note No. 32B)  10,000.00  5,000.00 
Loans from Other Body Corporates **  235.65  199.03 

(B)  22,235.65  5,199.03 
(A+B)  22,566.75  6,952.65 

*   Secured by the securiƟes as menƟoned in item No. (b) of Note No. 31 under the heading “Term Loan from Banks” as this facility is 
      sub-limit thereof. 

** Repayable on demand

7. TRADE PAYABLES

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises  13.91  -   
Others  2,243.69  2,825.39 

 2,257.60  2,825.39 

8. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current MaturiƟes of Long Term Debts (Refer Note No. 31 & 32)  28,573.33  12,520.00 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  6,376.24  1,909.13 
Interest accrued and due on borrowings  -    61.29 
Advances from Related ParƟes (Refer Note No. 30)  371.17  12.50 
Unclaimed FracƟonal Share Sale Proceeds #  0.25  0.25 
Advances from Customers  39,437.83  45,264.54 
Advances from Others  4.33  219.68 
FluctuaƟng Capital Account with LLP  349.12  -   
LiabiliƟes for Expenses  24.03  19.42 
RetenƟon Money  344.21  126.76 
Other Payables

Employee Benefits  15.63  45.32 
Taxes & Others  375.58  468.36 

 75,871.72  60,647.25 
# There is no amount due and outstanding to be credited to Investors EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund as at March 31, 2016
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(` in Lacs)

9. SHORT  TERM PROVISIONS

31st March 2016 31st March 2015 

Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note No. 29)

Gratuity  3.61  5.24 

Leave Encashment  8.20  5.44 

Provision for Expenses  -    1,498.09 

 11.81  1,508.77 

10. FIXED ASSETS

Par culars
Gross Block Deprecia on/ Amor sa on Net Block

As on 
01.04.2015

Addi ons Deduc ons/ 
Adjustments 

As on 
31.03.2016

As on 
01.04.2015

For the 
Year 

Deduc ons/
Adjustments 

Upto
31.03.2016

As on 
31.03.2016

As on 
31.03.2015

Tangible Assets
Land 5.46                     -                -        5.46                   -                  -                    -                     -                  5.46  5.46 
Plant & Machinery        52.24                     -     51.54    0.70             16.88            0.06  16.49                0.45                0.25    35.36 
Office Equipments       20.32                     -       12.62           7.70             13.73            1.41              9.03                6.11                1.59       6.60 
Electrical Accessories      49.72                     -                 -   49.72             27.88            6.72      -                34.60              15.12              21.84 
Computer Peripheral       37.99         2.85        12.55 28.29             33.84            2.20           10.22              25.82                2.47      4.14 
Furniture & Fiƫngs       53.00   63.00           13.64 102.36             41.95          17.98       7.13              52.80              49.56        11.05 
Motor Car 77.89           26.06 22.16    81.79             46.55          11.40 15.21              42.74              39.05 31.34 

Sub-Total (A) 296.62 91.91 112.51 276.02           180.83          39.76 58.08            162.52            113.50 115.79 
Intangible Assets
SoŌware 25.49 11.90 1.74 35.65             13.51            8.60 1.74              20.37              15.28 11.98 

Sub-Total (B) 25.49 11.90 1.74 35.65             13.51            8.60 1.74              20.37              15.28 11.98 
Grand Total (A+B) 322.11 103.81 114.25 311.67           194.34          48.36 59.82            182.89            128.78 127.76 

 Previous Year 305.17 17.79 0.86 322.10           120.06          74.54 0.26            194.34            127.76 

11. GOODWILL  ON CONSOLIDATION

31st March 2016 31st March 2015 
Opening Balance  932.72  932.72 
Less: Adjusted on Sale of Subsidiary  1.96  -   
Add: Adjusted on amalgamaƟon (Refer Note No. 43)  234.43  -   

 1,165.19  932.72 
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12. NON  CURRENT INVESTMENTS

31st March 2016 31st March 2015 
(Long-Term Investment)
A. Trade Investments

i.   Investments Property
     Flats (under ConstrucƟon) 4,073.31 2,641.97 

4,073.31 2,641.97 
ii. Investments in Equity Instruments

In Associates
a. Quoted fully paid up

Zandu Realty Limited  8,944.27  8,944.27 
2,86,329 Equity Shares of `100/- each
Less: Adjusted on amalgamaƟon (Refer Note No. 42)  2,931.36  -   
Add: Share of Profit upto 31st March, 2016  1,482.40  7,495.31  1,231.74  10,176.01 

 b. Unquoted fully paid up
Roseview Developers Private Limited 0.50 0.50 
5,000 Equity Shares of `10/- each
Add: Share of Loss upto 31st March, 2016 (0.50) -   (0.50) -   
Prajay Urban Private Limited 0.50 0.50 
5,000 Equity Shares of `10/- each
Add: Share of Loss upto 31st March, 2016 (0.50) -   (0.50) -   
Bengal Emami Housing Limited 6.00 6.00 
60,000 Equity Shares of `10/- each
Add: Share of Loss upto 31st March, 2016 (3.59) 2.41 (2.79) 3.21 
Swanhousing & Infra Private Limited 69.00 -   
6,90,000 (Nil) Equity Shares of `10/- each
Add: Share of Profit upto 31st March, 2016   0.93 69.93 -      -   

 7,567.65 10,179.22 
iii. Investments in Preference Shares

Unquoted fully paid up
Emami Paper Mills  Limited* 700.00 700.00 
1,75,000 8% CumulaƟve Redeemable Non-converƟble 
Preference Shares of `100/- each

iv. Investments in Debentures
Unquoted fully paid up
Vijaybhan Investments and Consultancy Private Limited # 4,307.60 4,287.60 
4,30,760 (4,28,760) 9% Redeemable Non ConverƟble 
Debentures of ` 1,000/- each

v. Investments in Bonds
Unquoted fully paid up
Orbit Realty Infrastructure Limited $ 402.00 400.00 
4,00,000 Zero Percent OpƟonally ConverƟble Bond of 
`100/- each

(` in Lacs)
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14. OTHER NON  CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed deposits with Banks *  464.11  136.55 
Interest Receivable from Fixed Deposits  11.00  5.45 

 475.11  142.00 
* Pledged with a bank as security against term loan maturing aŌer 12 months

15. CURRENT INVESTMENTS

(Short-Term)

Non-Trade Investments

PainƟngs (Refer Note No. 38)  419.66  906.30 

 419.66  906.30 

31st March 2016 31st March 2015 
vi. Investments in Limited Liability Partnership (Refer Note 
     No. 35)

Capital Contribu on to:
Lohitka ProperƟes LLP   0.40    -   
Supervalue Nirman LLP   0.01    0.01 

vii. Investments in Partnership Firm (Refer Note No. 36)
 P.S. Srijan Projects (reƟred w.e.f. 01.04.2015) 44.00 120.54 
 Less: ContribuƟon withdrawls 41.00 90.00 
 Less: Receivables 3.00 -   
 Add: Share of Profit upto 31st March, 2016      -   - 13.46 44.00 

 12,977.66  15,610.83 
B. Other Investments

i.  Government SecuriƟes 
    6 Year NaƟonal Savings CerƟficates       -   0.02 

Total Non - Current Investments  17,050.97  18,252.82 
Aggregated amount of quoted investments  7,495.31  10,176.01 
Market value of quoted investments <  3,890.35  4,939.60 
Aggregated amount of unquoted investments  9,555.66  8,076.81 

*   These Preference Shares are redeemable at a premium of ` 500/- per share on 27th March, 2025. However, the investee Company 
has an opƟon to redeem these preference shares before the redempƟon period.

#    These Debentures are redeemable at par before the respecƟve maturity date either in full or in parts with the mutual consent of the 
Company and Debenture Holders.

$   Zero Percent OpƟonally Fully ConverƟble Bonds are redeemable at a rate to be decided by issuer on or aŌer a period of 5 years 
from the date of allotment i.e., 5th March, 2014. However, the investee Company has opƟon to redeem these Bonds before the 
redempƟon period.

< The market value of quoted investments is lower than book value due to temporary stock market condiƟons and is not permanent in 
nature. Hence no provision thereof is required.

(` in Lacs)
13. LONG  TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

31st March 2016 31st March 2015 
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security Deposits  10,503.66  12,328.92 
Advances to Others  647.20  649.74 

 11,150.86  12,978.66 

(` in Lacs)
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17 TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Unsecured, considered good)
Due for less than six months  50.16  -   

 50.16  -   

18. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks  327.85  170.18 
Cash in hand  7.16  14.69 
Cheques in hand  -    0.80 
Fixed deposits with banks*  312.38  250.12 

Other Bank Balances
Escrow Account/FracƟonal Share Sale Proceeds  0.25  0.25 
Fixed deposits with banks**  760.55  575.74 

 1,408.19  1,011.78 
* Pledged with a bank as security against term loan, maturing before 3 months.
** Pledged with a bank as security against term loan, maturing aŌer 3 months and before 12 months.

19. SHORT  TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Unsecured, considered good)      
Loans

Related ParƟes (Refer Note No. 30)  55,443.06  2,759.14 
Others  8,045.24  32,782.42 

Advances
Employees  3.71  2.78 
Contractors/Suppliers  4,941.54  5,474.96 
Related ParƟes (Refer Note No. 30)  241.79  -   

Advances to Others  74.13  896.96 
Advance Income Tax and Refunds Receivable (Net of Provision)  1,146.89  790.10 
Balances with Government AuthoriƟes

Service Tax Credit Receivable  1,194.81  622.21 
VAT Credit Receivable  6.95  9.26 

Prepaid Expenses  37.85  101.98 
Other Receivables  688.72  167.83 

 71,824.69  43,607.64 

(` in Lacs)

16. INVENTORIES

31st March 2016 31st March 2015 
A. Work-in-Progress

Land  5,149.56  6,711.45 
Materials in hand  -    606.01 
Work-in-Progress  59,404.15  61,265.87 

(A)  64,553.71  68,583.33 
B. Trade Goods

Debentures - Unquoted fully paid up
Prajay Urban Private Limited

24,480 OpƟonally ConverƟble Debentures of `10,000/- each  2,448.00  2,448.00 
(B)  2,448.00  2,448.00 

(A+B)  67,001.71  71,031.33
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(` in Lacs)

20. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

2015-16 2014-15 
Opera ng Income

Sale of Land  -    88.00 
Sale of Flats  22,134.43  2,640.70 
Profit on Sale of Subsidiary  0.33  -   
Adjustment arising on De-subsidiarisaƟon (Refer Note No. 41)  1,992.85  -   

(A)  24,127.61  2,728.70 
Other Opera ng Income

NominaƟon Charges  23.06  25.81 
CancellaƟon Charges  30.27  -   
Legal Fees Received  (0.17)  19.61 

(B)  53.16  45.42 
(A+B)  24,180.77  2,774.12 

21. OTHER INCOME

Interest Income from
Loan Given  7,747.26  3,925.08 
Debentures  387.55  186.48 
Fixed Deposit  85.22  77.63 
Income Tax Refund  44.22  0.58 
Others  88.19  -   

(A)  8,352.44  4,189.76 
Dividend on Non-Current Investments  14.00  14.00 
Profit on Sale of units of Mutual Funds  13.54  56.05 
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets  0.06  -   
Share of Profit in Partnership Firm  -    13.46 
Service Charges Received  181.57 -
Unpaid LiabiliƟes and unclaimed balances wriƩen back  0.04  0.01 
Miscellaneous Income  20.65  248.10 

(B)  229.86  331.62 
(A+B)  8,582.30  4,521.38 

22. INCREASE IN INVENTORIES

I.  Opening Stock
Land  6,711.45  3,371.11 
Work-in-Progress  61,871.88  35,828.27 
Debentures  2,448.00  2,448.00 

 71,031.33  41,647.38 
Less: Work-in-Progress transferred on sale of a subsidiary  4,038.72 -

 66,992.61  41,647.38
II. Closing Stock

Land  5,149.56  6,711.45 
Work-in-Progress  59,404.15  61,871.88 
Debentures  2,448.00  2,448.00 

 67,001.71  71,031.33 
Increase in Inventories (Net) (II - I)  9.10  29,383.95 
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(` in Lacs)

23. PURCHASES

2015-16 2014-15 
Purchase of Land  772.12  3,402.76 

 772.12  3,402.76 

24. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries, Gratuity & Allowances  1,719.72  1,679.66 
ContribuƟon to Provident and Other Funds  42.85  38.22 
Staff Welfare Expenses  7.13  6.78 

 1,769.70  1,724.66 

25. FINANCE COSTS

Interest Expenses  12,631.02  8,960.20 
Other Borrowing Costs  1,037.79  617.07 

 13,668.81  9,577.27 

26. PROJECT EXPENSES

Materials Consumed  2,574.91  4,957.67 
Payments to Contractors  12,155.51  11,850.86 
Consultants Fees  957.90  824.02 
Project PromoƟon & Expenses  434.38  289.55 
Insurance  (14.12)  (0.49)
Repair & Maintenance  21.84  23.91 
Rent  12.69  3.00 
Rates & Taxes  21.95  184.33 
Travelling & Conveyance  104.73  92.48 
ConstrucƟons Expenses  8.02  279.00 
Other OperaƟng Expenses  340.94  813.50 
Upfront Premium  -    3,500.00 
Auditor’s RemuneraƟon  0.92  0.92 

 16,619.67  22,818.73 

27. OTHER EXPENSES

Electricity Charges  7.20  7.54 
Rent  26.75  19.93 
Repair and Maintenance  38.57  23.05 
Rates & Taxes  1.15  1.12 
AdverƟsement & Publicity  1.59  1.62 
Annual Custody Charges  2.36  1.30 
Annual LisƟng Fees  3.24  2.27 
Directors' Siƫng Fees (Refer Note No. 30)  3.20  2.42 
Postage & Telephone  7.09  1.98 
PrinƟng & StaƟonery  6.19  5.51 
Insurance  1.18  -   
Royalty  12.20  1.00 
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29 DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

As per Actuarial ValuaƟons as on 31st March, 2016 and recognised in the financial statement in respect of Employee 
benefit schemes :    

Par culars

31st March 2016 31st March 2015
Gratuity Leave 

Encashment
Gratuity Leave 

Encashment
Unfunded Unfunded Unfunded Unfunded

A. Components of Employer Expenses
1. Current Service Cost  18.54  17.52  15.86  12.91 
2. Interest Cost  4.84  5.35  3.64  3.27 
3. Expected Return on plan assets  -    -    -    -   
4. Actuarial Gain/Losses  10.89  25.84  (10.65)  (0.59)
5. Total Expenses recognised in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss
 34.27  48.70  8.86  15.59 

B. Net asset/(liability) recognised in balance 
sheet as at 31st March, 2016
1. Present value of Defined Benefits 

ObligaƟon
 77.52  87.29  54.39  51.60 

2. Fair value of plan assets  -    -    -    -   
3. Funded Status [Surplus / (deficit)]  (77.52)  (87.29)  (54.39)  (51.60)
4. Net asset/(liability) recognised in 

balance sheet
 (77.52)  (87.29)  (54.39)  (51.60)

C. Change in Defined Benefit Obliga on 
during the year ended 31st March, 2016
1. Present value of DBO at beginning 

of period
 43.25  46.00  45.53  45.65 

2. Current Service Cost  18.54  17.52  15.86  12.91 
3. Interest Cost  4.84  5.35  3.64  3.27 
4. Actuarial gain/ Losses  10.89  25.84  (10.65)  (0.59)
5. Benefits paid  -    (7.42)  -    (9.64)
6. Present value of DBO at the end of 

period
 77.52  87.29  54.39  51.60 

2015-16 2014-15 
Travelling & Conveyance  27.34  16.55 
Legal & Professional Fees  33.73  31.51 
Share of Loss in LLP (Refer Note No. 48)  349.12  -   
Miscellaneous Expenses  16.22  12.86 
Auditor’s RemuneraƟon (Refer Note No. 34)  11.44  8.29 

 548.57  136.94 

28. EARNINGS PER SHARE EPS

Earnings per Share is calculated as follows:
Net Profit aŌer tax aƩributable to Equity Shareholders  (423.98)  1,227.22 
Weighted average number of equity shares (Basic and Diluted)  2,42,98,392  2,42,98,392 
Nominal value of Equity Share  2  2 
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share  (1.74)  5.05 

(` in Lacs)
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
    i)     En es, other than subsidiaries, under the control of the Group:  

Name of Related Party Rela onship
1. Roseview Developers Private Limited Associate
2. Bengal Emami Housing Limited Associate
3. Prajay Urban Private Limited Associate
4. Swanhousing & Infra Private Limited (w.e.f. 04.02.2016) Associate
5. Zandu Realty Limited Associate
6. Lohitka ProperƟes LLP (w.e.f. 01.04.2015) Limited Liability Partnership
7. Supervalue Nirman LLP Limited Liability Partnership
8. P S Srijan Projects (reƟred w.e.f. 01.04.2015) Partnership Firm

   ii)    Key Managerial Personnel & Other Directors:
a) Key Managerial Personnel

1. Mr. Girja Kumar Choudhary WholeƟme Director & CFO
2. Ms. Payel Jain Company Secretary
3. Mr. Rajesh Bansal Whole-Ɵme Director w.e.f. 10.08.2015 in

Emami Realty Limited (AmalgamaƟng Company) 
4. Mr. Sanjay Choudhary Whole-Ɵme Director w.e.f. 01.04.2015 in

Emami Realty Limited (AmalgamaƟng Company) 
5. Dr. Kalyanasundaram Ramamurthy CEO w.e.f. 06.07.2015 in

Emami Realty Limited (AmalgamaƟng Company)
b) Other Directors

1. Mr. Abhijit DaƩa Non-ExecuƟve Chairman (Independent)
2. Mr. Hari Mohan Marda Independent Director
3. Mr. Ram Gobind Ganeriwala Independent Director
4. Mrs. Karabi Sengupta Independent Director
5. Mr. Basant Kumar Parakh Non-ExecuƟve Non-Independent Director 
6. Mr. Debasish Bhaumik Independent Director in 

Emami Realty Limited (AmalgamaƟng Company)

Par culars

31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

Gratuity Leave 
Encashment

Gratuity Leave 
Encashment

Unfunded Unfunded Unfunded Unfunded
D. Change in Fair Value of Assets

1. Plan assets at beginning of period  -    -    -    -   
2. Expected Return on Plan assets  -    -    -    -   
3. Actuarial Gains  -    -    -    -   
4. Actual company contribuƟons  -    7.42  -    (9.64)
5. Benefits paid  -    (7.42)  -    (9.64)
6. Plan assets at the end of period  -    -    -    -   

E. Actuarial Assump ons
1. Discount Rate 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
2. InflaƟon Rate 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%

(` in Lacs)
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
   iii)   Enterprises over which One Key Management Personnel has significant influence

1. Dev Infracity Private Limited (w.e.f. 10.08.2015)
2. Raj InfraproperƟes Private Limited (w.e.f. 10.08.2015)

  iv)   En es where Company’s promoters  have Significant Influence
1.   Add - Albatross ProperƟes Private Limited
2.   AMRI Hospitals Limited
3.   Bhanu Vyapaar Private Limited
4.   CreaƟve CulƟvaƟon Private Limited
5.   Diwakar Viniyog Private Limited
6.   Emami Agrotech Limited
7.   Emami Buildcon Private Limited
8.   Emami Capital Markets Limited
9.   Emami Cement Limited
10. Emami Estates Private Limited
11. Emami Frankross Limited
12. Emami Home Private Limited
13. Emami Limited
14. Emami Projects Private Limited
15. Emami Nirman Private Limited
16. Emami Vriddhi Commercial Private Limited
17. Fastgrow Crops Private Limited
18. Emami Beverages Limited
19. Jhansi ProperƟes Private Limited
20. Magnificent Vyapaar LLP
21. New Way ConstrucƟons Limited
22. Oriental Sales Agencies (India) Private Limited
23. Paradise Agriculture Private Limited
24. Sanjeevani Vyapaar LLP
25. Sneha Skyhigh Private Limited
26. Suntrack Commerce Private Limited
27. Sneha Abasan Private Limited
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v.  Transac ons during the year with related par es:                                                                                                       (` in Lacs)             

Nature of Transac ons Associates Limited Liability 
Partnership & 

Partnership 

Key Management 
Personnel & Other 

Directors

 En es where Key 
Management Personnel  

have Significant 
Influence 

 En es where 
Company's promoters  

have Significant 
Influence 

 Total 

31-03-2016 31-03-2015 31-03-2016 31-03-2015 31-03-2016 31-03-2015 31-03-2016 31-03-2015 31-03-2016 31-03-2015 31-03-2016 31-03-2015
Loans Taken -   -   -   -    -   -   -   -   787.00 -    787.00  -   
Loans Repaid -   -   -   -    -   -   -   -   787.00          -    787.00  -   
Interest Paid -   -   -   -    -   -   -   -   4.42 -    4.42  -   
Loan Given 649.00 375.50 3,780.40 -    -   -   -   -   37,698.04 -    42,127.44  375.50 
RealisaƟon of Loan Given 310.00 -   799.50 -    -   -   -   -   28,501.39 -    29,610.90  -   
Interest Received 336.28 210.02 554.12 -     -   -   108.73 -   2,530.21 -    3,529.33  210.02 
Service Charges Received 180.00 -   -   -    -   -   -   -             1.57 -    181.57  -   
Reimbursements 209.24 -      37.54 -    -   -   78.04 -   314.97 -   639.78  -   
Purchase of Investments -   -   0.40 -    -   -   -   -   88.66 -    89.06  -   
Sale of Investments -    -   -   -    -   -   -   -   512.30 -    512.30  -   
Security Deposit given -    -   -   -    -   -   -        -   24.73 -    24.73  -   
Refund of Security Deposit -    -   -   -    -   -   -   -   14.74 -    14.74  -   
Advances Given -    -   -     -         -   -   53.89   -   71.88 -   125.77  -   
RealisaƟon of Advances Given    -   -   0.63 -    -   -   -   -   -   -    0.63  -   
Advances Received -    -   -   -    -   -   -   -   254.00 -    254.00  -   
Repayment of Advances 
Received

-    -   -   -    -   -   -        -   254.00 -    254.00  -   

Rent -    -   -   -    -   -   -   -   25.32 -    25.32  -   
Repair & Maintenance -    -   -   -    -   -   -   -   34.72 -    34.72  -   
Electricity Charges -    -   -   -    -   -    -   -   7.20         -    7.20  -   
Royalty -    -   -   -    -   -    -   -   12.20 -    12.20  -   
CorporaƟon Tax -    -   -   -    -   -    -   -   0.69 -    0.69  -   
Professional Fees -    -   -   -    -   -    -   -    2.23 -    2.23  -   
Commission Paid -    -   -   -    -   -    -   -   243.97 -    243.97  -   
Share of Loss in LLP -   -   349.12 -    -   -    -   -   -   -    349.12  -   
Receipt from Partnership Firm -   -   -   90.00 -    -   -    -   -   -    -    90.00 
RemuneraƟons Paid -    -   -   -   386.00 109.85 -    -   -   -    386.00  109.85 
Siƫng Fees -    -   -   -   3.20 2.42 -    -     -        -    3.20  2.42 
Corporate Guarantee taken -    -   -   -   -   -   9,000.00 -   89,800.00 -    98,800.00  -   
Corporate Guarantee released -    -   -   -   -   -        -   -   42,032.00 -    42,032.00  -   
Balance as on 31st March 2016
Loans Given 2,768.10 2,429.10 21,241.49 -     -    -      -    -   24,485.06 -    48,494.65  2,429.10 
Interest Receivable 400.33 330.04 2,873.24 -     -   -   5.04   -   3,669.79 -    6,948.40  330.04 
Advances Given 18.79           -        -     -        -   -   152.46 -   70.54  -   241.79  -   
Advances Taken 12.50 12.50         -   -     -   -         -   -   358.67      -    371.17  12.50 
FluctuaƟng Capital Account 
with LLP (Credit Balance)

-   -   349.12 -     -    -   -   -   -   -    349.12  -   

Security Deposit given -   -           -   -     -   -         -   -   10,024.73 -    10,024.73  -   
Receivables 68.95 -           -   -     -   -         -   -         -   -    68.95  -   
Investments 6,088.91 -   0.41 -     -   -         -   -         -   -    6,089.32  -   
Corporate Guarantee given  -       -   4,700.00 -     -   -         -   -         -   -    4,700.00  -   
Corporate Guarantee taken    -        -        -          -             -          -     9,000.00    -   1,71,268.00 -    1,80,268.00  -   
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(` in Lacs)

31. Details of terms of repayment and securi es provided in respect of secured long-term borrowings are as under:
Term Loans from Bank

Bank Nature of Security Repayment terms Interest 
Rate

31st March 2016 31st March 2015

a ICICI Bank Limited First charge on immovable property 
owned by Oriental Sales Agencies (India) 
Private Limited at 2 Jessore Road, Kolkata 
- 700028 under the name of Project 
“Emami City” and its receivables thereof 
as well as addiƟonal security of a land 
parcel owned by a related party  together 
with the corporate guarantee by the said 
related party to the extent of the value of 
above mortgaged land. Further, the loan 
is secured by the corporate guarantee of 
Oriental Sales Agencies (India) Private 
Limited as well as Fixed deposits of ` 
631.53 lacs kept in lien with Bank.

Term Loan of ` 125 
crores is repayable 
in 24 monthly 
installments of ` 
5.20 crore each 
commenced from 15th 
March, 2016 and of 
` 90 crores is repayable 
in 24 monthly 
installments of 
` 3.75 crore each 
commencing from 
15th April, 2018. 

12.10%  20,830.15  18,895.56 

b ICICI Bank Limited First charge on immovable property 
owned by Add-Albatross ProperƟes 
Private Limited at 34 EgaƩur Village, 
Chengalpet Taluk, Tamil Nadu under the 
name of Project “Emami Tejomaya” and 
its receivables thereof. Further, the loan 
is secured by the corporate guarantee of 
Add-Albatross ProperƟes Private Limited 
and Oriental Sales Agencies (India) Private 
Limited and Fixed deposits of ` 216.13/- 
lacs kept in lien with Bank.

Term Loan is repayable 
in 30 monthly 
installments of 
` 4.17 crore each 
commencing from 
15th April, 2017 

12.35%                         6,984.12 4,000.00

c ICICI Bank Limited First charge of immovable property 
at Kukatpally, Hyderabad, project 
receivables and addiƟonal security of a 
land parcel owned by third party coupled 
with the corporate guarantee by the said 
third party.

Repayable in 24 equal 
monthly installment of 
` 3.33 Crores from 
15th April 2014.

12.35% – 4,000.00

d RBL Bank Limited First charge by way of equitable mortgage 
over the project land at Khailar, UP, as 
well as hypothecaƟon over the inventory 
and receivables thereof. Further, the loan 
is secured by the corporate guarantee of 
four related parƟes and Fixed deposits of 
` 300.00/- lacs kept in lien with Bank.

Repayable in 12 
quarterly installments 
commencing from 
April 2017

10.65%                         4,500.00                                -   

Total  32,314.27  26,895.56 
Less: Current MaturiƟes of Long Term Debt disclosed under Other Current LiabiliƟes (Refer Note 
No. 8)

 6,240.00  12,520.00 

Total  26,074.27  14,375.56 
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32. Details of terms of repayment and securi es provided in respect of unsecured long-term borrowings are as under:
(A) Non Conver ble Debentures

Non Conver ble 
Debentures

Nature of Security Repayment terms Interest 
Rate

31st March 2016 31st March 2015

i. 1000 Non 
ConverƟble 
Debentures of 
` 10,00,000/- each

Pledge of equity shares coupled 
with corporate guarantee of a 
related party

Principal amount plus 
RedempƟon Premium @ 
11.15% p.a. compounded 
annually payable on 
redempƟon i.e. 26th April, 
2018.

Zero                      10,000.00  10,000.00 

ii. 100 Non 
ConverƟble 
Debentures of 
` 1,00,00,000/- 
each

Pledge of equity shares coupled 
with corporate guarantee of a 
related party

Principal amount plus 
RedempƟon Premium such 
that the yield to maturity is 
@ 11.60% p.a.  payable on 
redempƟon i.e. 13th August 
2017.

Zero                      10,000.00  10,000.00 

iii. 1000 Non 
ConverƟble 
Debentures of 
` 10,00,000/- each

Pledge of equity shares coupled 
with corporate guarantee of a 
related party

Principal amount plus 
RedempƟon Premium @ 
11.10% p.a.  Compounded 
annually payable on 
redempƟon i.e. 2nd 
September 2016.

Zero                      10,000.00  10,000.00 

iv 100 Non 
ConverƟble 
Debentures of
` 1,00,00,000/- 
each

First pari- passu charge by 
mortgage of Project Land at 
Mulund, Mumbai owned by 
Lohitka ProperƟes LLP along with 
fixed and current assets thereof 
and First pari passu charge on 
Interest Service Reserve Account 
represented by Fixed deposits of 
`344.00/- lacs kept in lien. Further, 
the loan is secured by Personal 
Guarantee of a related party.

Payable in 10 quarterly 
installment commencing 
from 30th October 2017.

13.65%                      10,000.00  -   

Total                      40,000.00  30,000.00 
Less: Current MaturiƟes of Long Term Debt disclosed under Other Current LiabiliƟes (Refer Note 
No. 8)

                     10,000.00  -   

Total                      30,000.00  30,000.00 

(` in Lacs)

(B)  Term Loans from Non Banking Financial Companies                                                                                                                                                                                                
Financial 
Ins tu ons

Nature of Security Repayment terms Interest 
Rate

31st March 2016 31st March 2015 

i. Kotak Mahindra 
Prime Limited 

Pledge of equity shares by a related 
party

Repayment due on 3rd March, 
2017, subject to the exercise 
of put and call opƟon.

11.00%  7,300.00  7,300.00 

Repaid in FY 2015-16 11.25%  -    3,700.00 

ii. Kotak Mahindra 
Investment Limited

Pledge of equity shares coupled with 
corporate guarantee of a related 
party

Repaid in FY 2015-16 11.50%  -    3,000.00 

iii. Tata Capital Finance 
Services Limited

Pledge of equity shares by a related 
party

Repayment due on 14th 
March, 2017, subject to the 
exercise of put and call opƟon.

10.25%  5,000.00  5,000.00 

Repayment due on 8th 
February, 2017, subject to the 
exercise of put and call opƟon.

10.25%  4,000.00  4,000.00 
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(` in Lacs)
iv. Axis Finance Limited Pledge of equity shares by a related 

party
Repaid in FY 2015-16 11.25%  -    2,000.00 

v. L & T Finance Ltd

Equitable Mortgage of Land at Jhansi 
owned alongwith certain related 
parƟes.

12 equal quarterly 
instalments of ` 5.00 Crore 
each commenced from 29th 
October 2015

12.20%  5,000.00  -   

Family Credit Ltd 12 equal quarterly 
instalments of ` 3.33 crore 
each commenced from 29th 
October 2015

12.20%  3,333.33  -   

Total  24,633.33  25,000.00 
Less: Current MaturiƟes of Long Term Debt disclosed under Other Current LiabiliƟes (Refer Note 
No. 8)

 12,333.33  -   

Total  12,300.00  25,000.00 

33. Details of terms of repayment and securi es provided in respect of unsecured short-term borrowings are as under:
(A) Non Conver ble Debentures

Non Conver ble 
Debentures

Nature of Security Repayment terms Interest 
Rate

31st March 2016 31st March 2015 

i. 1000 Non 
ConverƟble 
Debentures of 
` 10,00,000/- each

Pledge of equity shares coupled 
with corporate guarantee of a 
related party

Principal amount plus 
RedempƟon Premium @ 
10.60% p.a.  Compounded 
annually payable on 
redempƟon i.e 8th July 2016

Zero  10,000.00  -   

ii 20 Non 
ConverƟble 
Debentures of 
` 10,00,000/- each

Pledge of equity shares coupled 
with corporate guarantee of a 
related party

Principal amount plus 
RedempƟon Premium @ 
10.15% p.a.  Compounded 
annually payable on 
redempƟon i.e 16th 
September 2016

Zero  2,000.00 -

Total  12,000.00  -   
(B) Term Loans from Non Banking Financial Companies

Financial 
Ins tu ons

Nature of Security Repayment terms Interest 
Rate

31st March 2016 31st March 2015 

i. Bajaj Finance 
Limited

Pledge of equity shares coupled 
with corporate guarantee by a 
related party

Repayment on 18th June 
2016, subject to the exercise 
of put and call opƟon.

10.15%  2,000.00  2,000.00 

ii. STCI Finance 
Limited

Pledge of equity shares coupled 
with corporate guarantee by a 
related party

Repaid in FY 2015-16 11.25%  -    3,000.00 

iii. STCI Finance 
Limited

Pledge of equity shares coupled 
with corporate guarantee by a 
related party

Repayment on 2nd February, 
2017, subject to the exercise 
of put and call opƟon.  

10.15%  4,000.00  -   

iv. Axis Finance 
Limited

Mortgage over Jhansi Land owned 
by certain related parƟes to be 
created within 3 months from the 
date of disbursement, i.e., 27th 
March, 2016

Repayment on 23rd March, 
2017

12.00%  4,000.00  -   

Total  10,000.00  5,000.00 
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(` in Lacs)

34. AUDITORS REMUNERATION

2015-16 2014-15 
As Auditors 

Audit Fees  8.48  6.34 
Tax Audit Fees  0.50  0.70 
Fees for Limited Review  0.45  0.60 
CerƟficaƟon Fees  2.01  1.57 

 11.44  9.21 

35. INVESTMENT IN LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP

Company's Profit Sharing Ra o
I. Lohitka ProperƟes LLP (w.e.f. 01.04.2015) 10%
II. Supervalue Nirman LLP 1%

36. The Company has reƟ red from the partnership fi rm M/s P.S. Srijan Projects w.e.f. 1st April 2015.

37. Current Non-Trade Investments Purchased and Sold during the year 

Par culars

2015-16 2014-15

Purchased Sold Purchased Sold

Nos. of Units. Nos. of Units. Nos. of Units. Nos. of Units.
Birla Sun Life Cash Plus - Growth Direct Plan  41,87,572.228  41,87,572.228  94,77,041.473  94,77,041.473 
Birla Sun Life Cash Plus - Growth Regular Plan  2,33,932.727  2,33,932.727  -    -   

(` in Lacs)

38. Current Trade Investments Purchased, acquired and sold during the year 

Par culars 2015-16 2014-15
Pain ng
Opening Balance  906.30  -   
Add: Purchase  88.66  906.30 
Less: Sale  512.30  -   
Less: Transferred to Fixed Assets  63.00  -   
Closing Balance  419.66  906.30 

39. The Company has entered into Joint Development Agreements for development of projects at Chennai & at 
Kolkata. Also, the Company is entering into an agreement with Sneha Ashiana Private Limited, pursuant to which 
the Company will develop its property at Coimbatore, for which a formal agreement is yet to be executed. 

40. AMALGAMATION OF WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 
 a)  Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement for AmalgamaƟ on (hereinaŌ er called “the Scheme”) sancƟ oned by the 

Hon’ble High Court at CalcuƩ a vide its order dated 14th June, 2016, Emami Realty Limited (“ERL”) and Emami 
Rainbow Niketan Private Limited (“ERNPL”), wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company engaged in the business 
of real estate, have been amalgamated with the Company with eff ect from 1st April 2015 (the “appointed date”) 
and pursuant thereto, the enƟ re business and all assets and liabiliƟ es of ERL and ERNPL have been transferred to 
and vested in the Company on a going concern basis, w.e.f. the appointed date. The Scheme became eff ecƟ ve on 
22nd July 2016 (the “eff ecƟ ve date”), upon fi ling of the Order of Hon’ble High Court at CalcuƩ a with the Registrar 
of Companies, West Bengal. Consequent to such fi ling, the Scheme has been given eff ect to in these fi nancial 
statements. 
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 b)  The amalgamaƟ on has been accounted for under the “Pooling of Interest” method as prescribed by AccounƟ ng 
Standard 14 “AccounƟ ng for AmalgamaƟ ons” specifi ed under SecƟ on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. Accordingly, the assets, liabiliƟ es and reserves of ERL and ERNPL 
as at 1st April 2015 have been taken over at their book values and in the same form.  

 c)  Pursuant to the Scheme coming into eff ect :      
  i) All the equity shares held by the Company in ERL and ERNPL stand cancelled. 
  ii)  In accordance with the Scheme, the diff erence between the carrying value of investment in ERL in the books 

of the Company and the aggregate face value of shares of ERL has been adjusted against the SecuriƟ es 
Premium Account of the Company.        

  iii)  The diff erence between carrying value of investments in ERNPL in the books of the Company and the 
aggregate face value of shares of ERNPL has been adjusted against the Surplus in the Statement of Profi t & 
Loss of the Company.

  iv)  Debit Balance in Statement of Profi t & Loss of ERL and ERNPL has been adjusted against the Surplus in 
Statement of Profi t & Loss of the Company. 

 d)  The fi nancial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2016, were earlier approved by the 
Board of Directors at their meeƟ ng held on 27th May, 2016 on which the Statutory Auditors of the Company had 
issued their report dated 27th May, 2016. These fi nancial statements have been reopened and revised to give 
eff ect to the Scheme as stated hereinabove.

41. Emami Realty Limited which is amalgamated with the Company has sold its stake in its wholly owned subsidiary 
namely, Emami ConstrucƟ ons Private Limited during the fi nancial year 2015-16. The accumulated loss of ̀  1,992.85 
Lacs accounted on consolidaƟ on upto the date of sale of its stake in the above said subsidiary has been reversed as 
per AccounƟ ng Standard 21 “Consolidated Financial Statements”. 

42. The Company had sold certain investments to one of its wholly owned subsidiary in an earlier year and the loss of 
` 2,931.36 Lacs incurred on such sales, which could not be adjusted earlier due to reinstatement  of such investments  
at original cost, on eliminaƟ on of the loss at the Ɵ me of consolidaƟ on due to intra-group transacƟ on, has been 
adjusted with the surplus in the Statement of Profi t & Loss, since the above subsidiary has got amalgamated with 
the Company during the year. 

43. Goodwill of ` 234.43 Lacs arisen on consolidaƟ on of wholly owned subsidiaries and appearing in the books as on 
1st April, 2015,  has been adjusted with surplus in the Statement of Profi t & Loss,  since the above subsidiaries have 
got amalgamated with the Company during the year.

44. Investments includes Goodwill on consolidaƟ on of Associates amounƟ ng to ` 0.77 Lacs (P.Y. ` 1.41 Lacs)

45. Against the JDA Assignment Agreement entered by New Age Realty Pvt Ltd, subsidiary of the Company with M/S. 
Presidium ConstrucƟ on (Coimbatore) Pvt. Ltd. and M/S Karthikeya Ancillaries Pvt. Ltd. (the landlord) for assignment of 
JDA entered into between the landlord and Presidium ConstrucƟ on Pvt. Ltd. for development of an immovable property 
situated at Avinashi Road, Coimbatore, the said landlord has served TerminaƟ on NoƟ ce. The said Company has taken 
requisite legal steps including challenging the terminaƟ on and fi ling of cases before the various Courts. In terms of 
order of injuncƟ on passed by the learned Principal District Munsif, Coimbatore, the subject property is presently in 
possession of the said Company. Pursuant to the order of the Hon’ble Madras High Court, JusƟ ce P K Balasubramanyan, 
ReƟ red Judge of the Supreme Court of India, the Sole Arbitrator, has commenced the arbitraƟ on proceedings and 
the said Company has fi led the Statement of Claims. The maƩ er is pending disposal before the Arbitral Tribunal. The 
Company has been legally advised that the result of such proceedings are expected to be in its favour.

46. The Company has iniƟ ated criminal proceedings against M/s Karthikeya Ancillaries Private Limited & its directors with 
whom the Company has entered into Area Assignment Agreement for purchase of 28,750 sqŌ  area in the proposed 
Shopping Mall at Coimbatore. The book value of total Investment in the project as on 31/03/2016 is ` 962.43 lacs 
(P.Y. ` 962.43 lacs). Further, pursuant to the order of the Hon’ble Madras High Court, JusƟ ce P K Balasubramanyan, 
ReƟ red Judge of the Supreme Court of India, the Sole Arbitrator, has commenced the arbitraƟ on proceedings and the 
Company has fi led the Statement of Claims. The maƩ er is pending disposal before the Arbitral Tribunal. The Company 
has been legally advised that the result of such proceedings are expected to be in its favour. 
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47. The Group operates in a single business segment. Therefore, segment reporƟ ng as per AS - 17 noƟ fi ed by the 
Companies (AccounƟ ng Standard) Rules, 2006 is not applicable.

48. The accounƟ ng of share of loss in a LLP in which the Company has become partner, with eff ect from 1st April, 2015, 
has been done based on unaudited fi nancial statements and any diff rence in the fi gure of loss will be accounted for 
on compleƟ on of the audit of such LLP. 

49. Since there is no virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that suffi  cient future taxable income will be 
available against which deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets of ` 614.91 lacs (P.Y. ` 385.81 lacs) 
arising on account of carried forward unabsorbed business lossess and depreciaƟ on have not been recognised in 
the accounts as recommended under AccounƟ ng Standard (AS-22) on “Deferred TaxaƟ on” issued by the InsƟ tute 
of Chartered Accountants of India.

 (` in Lacs)

Par culars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
Timing Difference with respect to DepreciaƟon  (52.15)  50.55 
Total  (52.15)  50.55 
Deferred Tax Liabili es (A)  (18.05)  (17.49)
Provision for Leave Encashment  87.29  34.50 
Provision for Gratuity  77.52  34.80 
Current year loss  691.82  202.44 
Earlier year loss  1,094.65  1,152.02 
Total  1,828.93  1,305.18 
Deferred Tax Assets (B)  632.96  403.30 
Deferred Tax Assets (B-A)  614.91  385.81 

50. Con  ngent Liabili  es not provided for in respect of: 
a.  Corporate Guarantee given to Axis Finance Ltd for Lohitka ProperƟ es LLP ` 4,700 lacs (P.Y. ` 4,700 lacs) 
b.  Disputed Tax demands (Net of advances) ` 82.01 lacs (P.Y. ` 102.12 lacs) 
c.  Bank Guarantee ` 38.20 lacs (P.Y. ` 125.11 lacs) 

51. There were no dues outstanding for more than 45 days to any Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Creditors. 
The above informaƟ on regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise has been determined to the extent such 
communicaƟ on has been received from the respecƟ ve parƟ es by the Company. This has been relied upon by the 
Auditors.

52. Previous year’s fi gures have been rearranged  or regrouped wherever necessary.
52.  

      
      
      

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For S. K. AGRAWAL & CO. Abhijit Da a Hari Mohan Marda Ram Gobind Ganeriwala
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director Director
Firm RegistraƟon No. 306033E

J. K. Choudhury Karabi Sengupta Girja Kumar Choudhary Payel Jain
Partner Director Whole me Director & CFO Company Secretary
M. No.  009367

Place : Kolkata
Date : 11th August, 2016



Auditor’s Report Balance Sheet Statement of Profit & Loss Cash Flow Statement Subsidiary Companies’ Financial Highlights

Annual Report 2015-16 91

Form AOC-I
(Pursuant to fi rst proviso to sub-sec  on (3) of sec  on 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SUBSIDIARIES & ASSOCIATES 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Rs. in Lakhs, except percentage of shareholding)

Sl. No. 1 2 3
Name of subsidiary Sneha Ashiana 

Private Limited
Delta PV Private 

Limited
New Age Realty 
Private Limited

Date since when the subsidiary was acquired 20.07.2007 02.09.2008 05.06.2007
ReporƟ ng Date 31.03.2016 31.03.2016 31.03.2016
ReporƟ ng Currency INR INR INR
Share capital 5.00 45.00 5.00
Reserves & surplus (27.35) (27.41) (877.85)
Total Assets 5,344.62 1,145.39 1,126.81
Total LiabiliƟ es 5,366.97 1,127.80 1,999.66
Investments - - -
Turnover - - -
Profi t/(Loss) before TaxaƟ on (0.57) 0.01 (246.00)
Tax Expense - 0.003 -
Profi t/(Loss) aŌ er taxaƟ on (0.57) 0.01 (246.00)
Proposed Dividend - - -
% of Shareholding 100 55 60

Notes:

1. Emami Rainbow Niketan Private Limited and Emami Realty Limited have been amalgamated with the Company w.e.f. 
1st April, 2015 in accordance with the terms of Scheme of AmalgamaƟ on sancƟ oned by the Hon’ble High Court at  
CalcuƩ a vide Order dated 14th June, 2016;

2. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operaƟ ons – NONE

3. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year- Emami ConstrucƟ on Private Limited ceased 
to be the Wholly-owned Subsidiary w.e.f. 30.03.2016; 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Abhijit Da a Hari Mohan Marda Ram Gobind Ganeriwala
 Chairman Director Director

Place : Kolkata Karabi Sengupta Girja Kumar Choudhary Payel Jain
Date : 11th August, 2016 Director Whole me Director & CFO Company Secretary
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Part “B”

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 129 (3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 RELATED TO ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

(Rs. in Lakhs, except no. of shares and % of shareholding)

Nam of Associates Roseview 
Developers 

Private Limited

Prajay Urban 
Private 
Limited

Bengal 
Emami 

Housing 
Limited 

Swanhousing 
Infra & 
Private 
Limited

Zandu Realty 
Limited

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2016 31.03.2016 31.03.2016 31.03.2016 31.03.2016

2. Date on which the Associate was 
associated or acquired

25.01.2007 31.03.2008 27.06.2011 04.02.2016 31.03.2010

3. Shares of Associates held by the 
Company on the year end

- No. 5,000 5,000 60,000 6,90,000 2,86,329
- Amount of Investment 0.50 0.50 6.00 69.00 6012.91

- Extent of Holding (%) 50 50 30 33.66 35.51 
4. DescripƟ on of how there is 

signifi cant infl uence Based on the percentage of holding over these investees

5. Reason why the associate/joint 
venture is not consolidated

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A N.A.

6. Networth aƩ ributable to 
Shareholding as per latest audited 
Balance Sheet 

(2.86) (1.02) 1.54 69.02 6485.19

7. Profi t / Loss for the year
i. Considered in ConsolidaƟ on (0.08) (0.20) (0.80) 0.93 250.31
ii. Not considered in 

ConsolidaƟ on
- - - -

Notes:

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operaƟ ons- NONE

2. Names of associates or joint ventsures which have been liquidated or sold during the year- NONE

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Abhijit Da a Hari Mohan Marda Ram Gobind Ganeriwala
 Chairman Director Director

Place : Kolkata Karabi Sengupta Girja Kumar Choudhary Payel Jain
Date : 11th August, 2016 Director Whole me Director & CFO Company Secretary




